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PART I

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Except for historical information contained herein, certain matters included in this annual report on Form 10-K are, or may be deemed to be forward-
looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933. The words "will,"
"may," "designed to," "believe," "should," "anticipate," "plan," "expect," "intend," "estimate" and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the date of this annual report. These forward-looking statements are contained principally under Item 1, "Business," and under Item 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." Because these forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties, actual results could differ materially from the expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements include those described in Item 1A, "Risk Factors" and Item 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." In addition, new risks emerge from time to time and it is not
possible for management to predict all such risk factors or to assess the impact of such risk factors on our business. Given these risks and uncertainties, the
reader should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements
to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.

Unless otherwise specifically stated, references in this report to "Flex," the "Company," "we," "us," "our" and similar terms mean Flex Ltd. and its
subsidiaries.

ITEM 1.    BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

Flex is the advanced, end-to-end manufacturing partner of choice that helps a diverse customer base design, build, deliver and manage innovative
products that improve the world. Through the collective strength of a global workforce across approximately 30 countries with responsible, sustainable
operations, Flex delivers technology innovation, supply chain, and manufacturing solutions to diverse industries and end markets. The Company's full suite of
specialized capabilities includes design and engineering, supply chain, manufacturing, post-production and post-sale services, and proprietary products. Flex
partners with customers across a diverse set of industries including data center, communications, enterprise, consumer, automotive, industrial, healthcare,
industrial and power. As of March 31, 2025, Flex's two operating and reportable segments were as follows:

• Flex Agility Solutions ("FAS"), which is comprised of the following end markets:

◦ Communications, Enterprise and Cloud ("CEC"), including data center, edge, and communications infrastructure
◦ Lifestyle, including appliances, floorcare, smart living, Heating, Ventilation and Air-Conditioning ("HVAC"), and power tools
◦ Consumer Devices, including mobile and high velocity consumer devices.

• Flex Reliability Solutions ("FRS"), which is comprised of the following end markets:

◦ Industrial, including industrial devices, capital equipment, renewables, critical power, and embedded power.
◦ Automotive, including compute platforms, power electronics, motion, and interface
◦ Health Solutions, including medical devices, medical equipment, and drug delivery

In fiscal year 2025, Flex formally introduced the next phase in its strategic evolution, its EMS + Products + Services approach. This hybrid model is
focused on strengthening the Company’s core manufacturing and supply chain capabilities while expanding its portfolio of proprietary products and value-
added services to maximize value creation for customers. To advance this approach, the Company completed several strategic acquisitions in fiscal year 2025
that enhance its differentiated portfolio to address critical data center customer challenges around power, heat and scale. These included the acquisitions of
JetCool Technologies Inc. ("JetCool") to expand direct-to-chip liquid cooling capabilities and Crown Technical Systems ("Crown") to increase critical power
capabilities while adding opportunities in grid modernization.

On January 2, 2024, the Company completed its previously announced spin-off of its remaining interests in Nextracker Inc. ("Nextracker") to Flex
shareholders on a pro-rata basis based on the number ordinary shares of Flex held by each
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shareholder of Flex (the "Distribution") as of December 29, 2023, which was the record date of the Distribution, pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger,
dated as of February 7, 2023. The historical financial results and financial position of our former Nextracker business, which was previously reported as a
separate operating and reportable segment, are presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations. The historical statements of
comprehensive income and cash flows and the balances related to stockholders’ equity have not been revised to reflect the effect of the Nextracker spin-off. See
note 7 "Discontinued Operations" to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further information.

The FAS segment is optimized for speed to market, based on a highly flexible supply and manufacturing system. The FRS segment is optimized for
longer product lifecycles requiring complex ramps with specialized production models and critical environments.

Our customers include many of the world's leading data center, consumer products, healthcare, automotive, consumer products and industrial companies.
We are focused on establishing long-term relationships with our customers and have been successful in expanding relationships to incorporate additional
product lines and services.

In fiscal year 2025, our ten largest customers accounted for approximately 44% of net sales. No customer accounted for greater than 10% of the
Company's net sales in fiscal year 2025.

Flex believes that long-term technology transitions and supply chain challenges are increasing complexity across the value chain, fueling demand for
outsourcing partners with specialized services. In the data center sector, the rise of AI is pushing hyperscalers toward integrated solutions and comprehensive
support from fewer suppliers. With our EMS + Products + Services approach, Flex has positioned the Company as the only outsourcing partner offering fully
integrated racks, vertical services, and a complete power products portfolio from the grid to the chip. Additionally, Flex is continuously building toward a
vision of the future of manufacturing through strategic investments and implementations that drive increasing optimization and productivity for us and our
customers.

Additionally, rising global uncertainty over the past few years including trade and tariff issues, increasing geopolitical unrest, and severe labor shortages
are creating further complexity. The recent tariffs imposed by the current U.S. administration and retaliatory tariffs imposed by other countries are accelerating
these trends. As a result, companies are rethinking their entire production strategies. We are seeing a global rebalancing in sourcing and production locations to
maximize resiliency and decrease time to market. With sustainability as a continued area of focus, businesses are being held to a much higher standard for how
and where their products are sourced and produced, and, increasingly, how they are serviced and disposed.

These complexities are making it harder for companies to manage their own supply chains, manufacturing operations and products. They are looking for
trusted partners to help them navigate this complex environment. We believe that only a few outsourcing providers have the right capabilities and scale to meet
these challenges effectively and profitably. Flex is one of these partners.

STRATEGY

Our EMS + Products + Services strategy is centered upon enhancing our core manufacturing and supply chain capabilities while broadening our portfolio
of proprietary products and value-added services, maximizing value creation for our customers and shareholders. We are actively investing in areas that
strengthen our competitive positioning, whether through advanced product lifecycle capabilities, cutting-edge manufacturing and product technologies, or
innovative processes and business methods.

We are consistently advancing our expertise in factory automation, robotics, artificial intelligence, vertical integration, simulation, digital twins, and
power, among other disruptive technologies, while reinforcing our positioning in the AI-centric data center ecosystem. We select ethical partners and integrate
the supply chain so that our customers can operate efficiently and responsibly. We are committed to investing in our employees and communities.

Customer Focus. We believe that building strong partnerships with our customers and delivering on our commitments strengthens trust and customer
retention. We focus on delivering distinctive products and services in a cost-effective manner with fast time to market. We are highly collaborative and leverage
our global system and processes to operate with speed and responsiveness to provide customers reliable and responsible solutions throughout the product
lifecycle.

Markets. We focus on companies that are leaders in their industry and value our superior capabilities in design and engineering, supply chain,
manufacturing, post-production and post-sale services. We focus on high-growth industries and markets where we have distinctive competence and a
compelling value proposition. In addition to our end-to-end services and power products for the data center, examples include investments in specific
technologies and capabilities for automotive, healthcare, industrial, and consumer-related markets. Our market-focused approach to managing our business
increases
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customers' competitiveness by leveraging our deep vertical and cross-industry expertise, as well as global scale, regional presence, and agility to respond to
changes in market dynamics.

Operations and People. We continue to invest in maintaining a leadership position in our world-class manufacturing services and capabilities including
automation, simulation tools, digitizing our factories, and implementing leading edge advanced manufacturing methodologies. We leverage our broad set of
capabilities globally to provide a competitive advantage by minimizing logistics costs, manufacturing costs, and cycle times while increasing flexibility,
responsiveness, and supply chain resiliency. We also focus on hiring and retaining the world’s best talent, with an emphasis on attracting the best engineering,
functional and operational leaders as we develop the future leaders of the Company. Simultaneously we are committed to driving a purposeful workforce
evolution that reskills and upskills employees to co-work with advanced technologies such as AI and robotics, resulting in data-driven decision making,
improved work environments, and enhanced productivity.

SERVICE OFFERINGS

Flex provides design and engineering, supply chain, manufacturing, post-production and post-sale services through a network of approximately 100
locations in approximately 30 countries across four continents. Beyond our core advanced manufacturing and supply chain capabilities, we maximize value to
our customers through proprietary products and value-added services. We have established global scale through an extensive network of manufacturing
operations and services sites in the world's major products markets (Asia, the Americas, and Europe) to serve the supply chain needs of both multinational and
regional companies.

We offer global economies of scale in advanced materials and technology sourcing, manufacturing and post-sale services, as well as market-focused
expertise and capabilities in design and engineering. As a result of extensive experience in specific markets, we have developed a deep understanding of
complex market dynamics, giving us the ability to anticipate trends that impact customers' businesses. Our expertise can help improve customers' market
positioning by effectively adjusting product plans and roadmaps to efficiently and cost-effectively deliver high quality products that meet their geographic and
time to market requirements.

Our end-to-end services include all processes necessary to design, build, deliver, and manage a wide range of products for customers. These services
include:

Design and Engineering Services. Across all of the key industries and markets in which Flex does business, we offer industry-leading global design and
engineering services, with extensive product design and engineering resources that provide design services, product development, systems integration services,
and solutions to satisfy a wide array of customer requirements, including:

• System architecture;

• User interface and industrial design;

• Cross-industry technologies;

• Hardware design;

• Software integration; and

• Design for excellence.

Flex provides differentiated offerings to support major technology transitions such as compute and power, as well as specialized capabilities across the
product lifecycle, such as mechanicals, plastics, and advanced printed circuit board assembly ("PCBA"). The Company’s design and engineering services help
customers de-risk technology adoption, develop products from concept to volume production and go to market in a rapid, cost effective and low risk manner.

Flex is exposed to different and, in some cases greater, potential liabilities from the various design and engineering services we provide than those we
typically face in our core assembly and manufacturing services. See "Risk Factors—The success of certain of our activities depends on our ability to protect
our intellectual property rights; claims of infringement or misuse of intellectual property and/or breach of license agreement provisions against our customers
or us could harm our business."

Supply Chain Services. We offer one of the most trusted and resilient global supply chain services through a combination of digital supply chain
capabilities, deep expertise, real time visibility and analytics, and collaborative supplier relationships to help customers navigate complex, global supply chains.
Through our component services, we provide manufacturing,
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customization, procurement, global logistics services and innovative supply chain solutions on a wide range of electronic components by utilizing the Flex
global procurement and supply chain ecosystem to increase resiliency.

Manufacturing Services. Our manufacturing operations and systems assembly generate the majority of our revenues and include PCBA and assembly of
systems and subsystems that incorporate printed circuit boards and complex electromechanical components. We assemble electronic products with custom
electronic enclosures on either a build-to-order or configure-to-order basis. As customers seek to provide greater functionality in physically smaller products,
they increasingly require more sophisticated manufacturing technologies and processes. Our investment in advanced manufacturing equipment and our
expertise in innovative miniaturization, packaging and interconnective technologies enable us to offer a variety of leading-edge manufacturing solutions. We
support a wide range of product demand profiles, from low-volume, high-complexity programs, to high-volume production. Our manufacturing capabilities and
systems assembly include enclosures, testing services, and materials procurement and inventory management.

Post-production Services. Through forward logistics and value-added fulfillment, including warehousing and vendor managed inventory, omni-channel
fulfillment, kitting, configuration and postponement, Flex empowers customers to find the optimal route to market and deliver a seamless customer experience.
Our customers are enabled to maximize operational resiliency thanks to the breadth of our global scale, strategic insights and extensive visibility. Our post-
production services are tailored to customers from a wide range of industries that serve business-to-business and business-to-consumer markets.

Post-sale Services. We provide a suite of integrated reverse logistics and circular economy services that use globally consistent processes, which help
increase our customers' brand loyalty by improving turnaround times and raising end-customer satisfaction levels while significantly reducing the carbon
footprint for our customers. Our post-sale services include returns management, spare parts logistics, asset recovery, repair, refurbishment, warranty services,
recycling and e-waste management. We service multiple product lines such as consumer and midrange products, printers, smart phones, audio devices,
consumer medical devices, notebook personal computers, floorcare products, and highly complex infrastructure products.

Portfolio of Power and Cooling Products. We offer an industry-leading, differentiated product portfolio of power and cooling products that tackle all
power and data center heat challenges across compute densities. Our embedded and critical power products help data center customers meet increasing power
demands given the proliferation of Generative AI. Our embedded power capabilities span power shelves, battery back-up units, capacitive energy storage
systems, and DC/DC converters, helping customers address board and rack power density requirements. At data center facilities, Anord Mardix, a Flex
company, offers a broad array of critical power capabilities including building information modelling and prefabricated construction and turnkey installation of
switchgear, busway, power distribution and modular power pods, along with monitoring solutions and services. Additionally, Crown, acquired by Flex in fiscal
year 2025, provides fully integrated power distribution and protection systems, including modular solutions, medium voltage switchgear, control, and relay
products for data centers, utilities, and power generation. For liquid cooling, JetCool, also acquired by Flex in fiscal year 2025, mitigates data center heat
challenges with patented microconvective cooling technology, capable of cooling over 3,000W, as well as offering complete turn-key microconvective cooling
systems that include fully-sealed cold plates, direct liquid-to-chip products, and a coolant distribution unit (CDU).

COMPETITION

The contract manufacturing services market is extremely competitive. Flex competes against numerous domestic and foreign manufacturing service
providers, as well as current and prospective customers, who evaluate our capabilities in light of their own capabilities and cost structures.

In recent years, we have seen an increased level of diversification by many companies in the technology, automotive and healthcare industries along with
the convergence of many industries being transformed by technology advances. Digitization and increasingly complex products require highly customized
solutions, in turn resulting in significant changes to the overall manufacturing and supply chain landscape.

We believe the principal competitive factors in the contract manufacturing services market are quality and range of services; design and technological
capabilities; cost; location of sites; supply chain resiliency; sustainability; and responsiveness and flexibility. We believe we are extremely competitive with
regard to all of these factors.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

We continuously enhance our business through the development and expansion of our product and service offerings. Our EMS + Products + Services
approach is designed to bolster our competitiveness through the expansion of our core manufacturing and supply chain capabilities alongside proprietary
products and value-added services. We strive to maintain the efficiency and flexibility of the organization, with repeatable execution that adapts to macro-
economic changes to provide clear value to customers, while increasing their competitiveness. We have a focused strategy on delivering value to customers
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through a comprehensive suite of product lifecycle capabilities, global and regional footprint, and vertical and cross-industry expertise.
Global Scale and Regional Strength. We believe our global scale and regional capabilities are a significant competitive advantage, as customers

increasingly require a broad range of product lifecycle services globally. Increasingly, customers are evaluating regional-based supply chains to enhance
resiliency and to take advantage of time to market and specific customization required to win in those markets. Our global expertise, footprint and diverse
supply chain network provide customers with the ability to quickly adjust to changing regional, trade and manufacturing dynamics, including as a result of
recent changes in tariffs and retaliatory tariffs. Flex's physical infrastructure includes approximately 100 facilities in approximately 30 countries, staffed by
approximately 148,000 employees, providing customers with truly global scale and strategic geographic distribution capabilities to meet their market needs.
We have a very balanced global manufacturing footprint with 43% of net sales in North America, 17% in China, 21% in Europe, the Middle East and Africa
("EMEA"), and 19% in other areas in our fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 (with net sales attributable to the country in which the product is manufactured, or
service is provided).

Long-Standing, Diverse Customer Relationships. We believe our long-term relationships with key customers are the result of our track record of meeting
commitments and delivering value that increases customers' competitiveness. We serve a wide range of customers across six reporting units within the FAS and
FRS segments. No customer accounts for more than 10% of our annual revenue and the ten largest accounted for 44% of our net sales in fiscal year 2025.

Cross-Industry Synergies. One of our competitive strengths is our ability to leverage technology from one industry and apply it to a different application
within another industry. Examples include our expertise in power and compute technology. For example, we leverage our experience in the data center to
support power and compute applications in automotive. These cross-industry synergies give our customers access to technology they would not otherwise have.

Industrial Parks; Cost-Efficient Manufacturing Services. We have developed self-contained industrial parks that co-locate manufacturing and logistics
operations with our suppliers in various cost-efficient locations. We offer a range of manufacturing services and capabilities in close proximity to vertically
integrate the manufacturing process and offer additional value to our customers. These sites enhance supply chain management efficiency, while providing
multi-technology solution value for customers.

HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Culture underlies our stakeholder experience. Our values are intended to reflect and guide our behaviors and shape our culture. We endeavor for our
values-driven culture to align us as we pursue our purpose, uphold our mission, live our values, advance toward our vision, and execute our strategy.

In support of cultivating a high-performing culture with our workforce, we continue to proliferate our Ways of Working, four specific behaviors that bring
our values to life through actions, provide a framework for how we make decisions, and support ongoing progress on our Flex Forward strategy. The purpose
of these behaviors is to enable us to put our culture into practice and provide an accountability system through training and development as well as
performance management systems to ensure our desired behaviors become a part of our everyday working norms. Building on our vision, mission, values, and
Ways of Working, we use this framework to assess, hire, train, and nurture our talent to develop the skills necessary for our ongoing success.

How we live our values defines our culture:

• We support each other as we strive to find a better way.

• We move fast with discipline and purpose.

• We do the right thing always.

We bring our values to life through four behaviors:

1. Respect and value others.

2. Collaborate and share openly.

3. Learn and adapt.

4. Honor commitments.

We believe that the performance of our Company is impacted by our human capital management, and as a result we consistently work to attract, select,
develop, engage and retain strong talent.
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Our purpose, vision, mission and value statements aim to cultivate a high-performing culture where employees are empowered and given opportunities to
reach their full potential. We are committed to providing a positive and safe workplace for our employees. Further, we are committed to respecting the human
rights of our employees and improving their quality of life. Our leaders guide our teams to execute our strategy by focusing on building and developing our
people, defining and driving our strategy, and delivering results.

Employees. As of March 31, 2025, our global workforce totaled approximately 148,000 employees including our contractor workforce. In certain
international locations, our employees are represented by labor unions and by work councils.

Region: Number of Employees
Americas 59,786
Asia 59,754
Europe 28,439

Total 147,979

Well-being, Health, and Safety. Flex is committed to providing a safe and injury-free workplace. We provide programs and tools to improve physical,
mental, financial, and social well-being. Our programs give access to a variety of innovative, flexible, and convenient health and wellness programs for our
global employees, including on-site health centers in some of our major factories and providing 100% of employees access to emotional and mental health
programs.

We promote a "zero-injury" culture through health and safety management systems, some of which are certified ISO 45001:2018, that implement a data-
driven and risk-based approach in monitoring and reporting performance regularly. Some of the specific goals for which we measure our performance include
increasing employee development, social and environmental management system audits, human rights policy training completion, Responsible Business
Alliance ("RBA") compliance for rest day requirements and decreasing safety incident rates.

Talent Attraction, Development, and Retention. Talent attraction, development, and retention are critical to our success and core to our mission as a
company. To support the advancement of our employees, we provide training and development programs and opportunities encouraging advancement from
within as well as continue to fill our team with strong and experienced external talent. We leverage both formal and informal programs, including in-person,
virtual, social and self-directed learning, mentoring, coaching, and external development to identify, foster, and retain top talent. Employees have access to
courses through our learning and development platform, Flex Learn. In 2024, our employees completed more than five million hours of training programs.

We are also focused on completing talent and performance reviews. Our in-depth talent reviews serve to identify high potential talent to advance in roles
with greater responsibility, assess learning and development needs, and establish and refresh succession plans for critical leadership roles across the enterprise.
Our Ways of Working are integrated into our talent assessment and performance assessment processes. Our performance assessment process promotes
transparent communication of team member performance, which we believe is a key factor in our success. The performance and the talent reviews enable
ongoing assessments, reviews, and mentoring to identify career development and learning opportunities for our employees.

Employee Engagement. To attract and retain the best talent, we strive to establish a culture where our team members can freely contribute their
differentiated perspectives, ideas, and experiences, and have opportunities to grow professionally and develop to their highest potential. As a part of our efforts
to improve employee experiences at Flex, we conduct the annual enterprise-wide employee engagement Flex Voice survey. Our leadership uses the results of
the survey to continue developing our strengths and identify and take action on opportunities for improvement. In fiscal year 2025, 92% of employees
completed the Flex Voice survey and the results reflected continued engagement.

Compensation and Benefits. Our total rewards are designed to attract, motivate and retain employees. Our compensation philosophy is driven by the
desire to attract and retain top talent, while ensuring that compensation aligns with our corporate financial objectives and the long-term interests of our
shareholders. Our pay structures offer competitive salaries, bonuses, and equity awards in the countries where we operate.

In each of the countries where we have operations, our comprehensive benefit plans offer a locally competitive mix of some or all of the following:
medical, dental and vision insurance, short and long-term disability, flexible spending accounts, various types of voluntary coverage, and other benefit
programs. We routinely benchmark our salaries and benefits against market peers to ensure our total rewards package remains competitive.

Board Oversight of Human Capital Management. The Compensation and People Committee of our Board of Directors is responsible for assisting the
Board in oversight of our human capital management, including among other aspects, receiving
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periodic updates regarding, and overseeing any significant change to our human capital management strategy including, corporate culture, compensation
policies and practices, and talent attraction training, development and retention programs.

SUSTAINABILITY

At Flex, our sustainability journey began in 2002 with the creation of the Flex Foundation. For more than 20 years, sustainability has been integrated into
the fabric of our company, a key area of differentiation for Flex. We've continued to progress against our 2030 sustainability strategy and commitments, our
most ambitious to date. Our sustainability framework is centered on the world, our people and our approach to ethical business practices. Through our 2030
goals, we are committed to reducing our environmental impact, investing in our communities, advancing a safe, and respectful work environment for all,
partnering with our customers and suppliers to help mitigate value chain emissions, and driving ethical practices with strong transparency. In 2022, we
announced our commitment to reach net zero greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions by 2040, strengthening our climate action efforts.

Our strategy and global efforts, through our sustainability programs and multi-year objectives, are aligned with the principles set forth in the 2030
Sustainable Development Goals ("SDGs"). Several goals of note include cutting operational emissions in half, collaborating with customers and suppliers to
reduce value chain emissions, providing access to mental health and well-being services to all employees, and maintaining top quartile performance for
governance and transparency. Our framework is based upon the principles, policies and standards prescribed by the RBA, a worldwide association of
electronics companies committed to promoting an industry code of conduct to improve working and environmental, health and safety conditions, as well as
other relevant international standards (e.g., ISO 14001, United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights).

During calendar year 2024, we received several awards and accolades for our sustainability program and efforts including being named a World’s Best
Company by Times and Statista for leading with innovation and sustainability. In addition, we received recognition from our network of stakeholders, earning
an HP HOPE Supplier Pledge Award and an Ericsson Supplier Sustainability Award. Moreover, we were recently named one of the World’s Most Ethical
Companies by the Ethisphere Institute for a third consecutive year.

Through the Flex Foundation, we work with nonprofits, community leaders and governments to advance global calls to action spanning targeted UN
SDGs: #3 good health and well-being, #8 decent work and economic growth, #12 responsible consumption and production, and #13 climate action. The Flex
Foundation helps support environmental and social causes in the communities we serve as well as provides disaster relief through grants, corporate and
employee donations, and volunteerism. In calendar year 2024, the Flex Foundation partnered with several organizations, including American Red Cross, Planet
Water Foundation, and Give2Asia, among others.

Flex is committed to transparency in sustainability reporting. Since 2013, the Company has adhered to the Global Reporting Initiative framework and has
published an annual sustainability report. The Company also aligned its sustainability report to the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board framework. In
addition, the Company produced its first Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) report in 2022.

More detailed information can be found in the Flex annual sustainability report located at https://flex.com/company/our-sustainability. The information in
the sustainability report and on our sustainability webpage is not a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is not incorporated by reference.

ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS AND CLIMATE CHANGE

We are subject to a variety of extensive and changing federal, state, local and international environmental, health and safety, product safety and
stewardship, and producer responsibility laws and regulations, including those concerning, among other things, the health and safety of our employees, the
generation, use, storage, transportation, discharge and disposal of certain materials (including chemicals and hazardous materials) used in or derived from our
operations, the investigation and remediation of contaminated sites, and climate change and other sustainability-related matters. We have implemented
processes and procedures aimed to ensure that our operations comply with all applicable laws and regulations.

We do not believe that costs of compliance with these laws and regulations will have a material adverse effect on our capital expenditures, operating
results, or competitive position. In addition, we are responsible for cleanup of contamination at some of our current and former manufacturing facilities and at
some third-party sites. We engage environmental consulting firms to assist us in the evaluation of environmental liabilities associated with our ongoing
operations, historical disposal activities, and closed sites in order to establish appropriate accruals in our financial statements. We determine the amount of our
accruals for environmental matters by analyzing and estimating the probability of occurrence and the reasonable possibility of incurring costs in light of
information currently available.
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Compliance with laws and regulations, requires continuing management efforts by the Company. The imposition of more stringent standards or
requirements under these laws or regulations, the results of future testing and analysis undertaken by us at our operating facilities, or a determination that we
are potentially responsible for the release of hazardous substances at other sites could result in expenditures in excess of amounts currently estimated to be
required for such matters. Additionally, we could be required to alter our operations in order to comply with any new standards or requirements under these
laws or regulations. There can be no assurance that additional environmental matters will not arise in the future or that costs will not be incurred with respect to
sites as to which no issue is currently known.

Our business requires close collaboration with our customers and suppliers to mitigate risks of non-compliance with these laws and regulations. We have
developed rigorous compliance programs designed to meet the needs and specifications of our customers as well as applicable regulations. These programs
vary from collecting compliance or material data from our Flex controlled or managed suppliers to full laboratory testing. We include compliance requirements
in our standard supplier contracts. Non-compliance could result in significant costs and/or penalties.

Restrictions on Hazardous Substances ("RoHS") 2011/65/EU and other similar legislation ban or restrict the use of lead, mercury and certain other
specified substances in electronics products and Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment ("WEEE") 2012/19/EU directives requires European Union ("EU")
importers and/or producers to assume responsibility for the collection, recycling and management of waste electronic products and components. In the case of
WEEE, although the compliance responsibility rests primarily with the EU importers and/or producers rather than with electronic manufacturing services
("EMS") companies, original equipment manufacturers ("OEM") may turn to EMS companies for assistance in meeting their WEEE obligations. Flex
continues to monitor developments related to product environmental compliance and is working with our customers and other technical organizations to
anticipate and minimize impacts to our operations.

Refer to the discussion in "Risk Factors" for further details of the legal and regulatory initiatives related to environmental matters including climate
change that could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We own or license various United States and foreign patents relating to a variety of technologies. For certain of our proprietary processes, inventions, and
works of authorship, we rely on trade secret or copyright protection. We also maintain trademark rights (including registrations) for our corporate name and
several other trademarks and service marks that we use in our business in the United States and other countries throughout the world. We have implemented
appropriate policies and procedures (including both technological means and training programs for our employees) to identify and protect our intellectual
property, as well as that of our customers and suppliers. As of March 31, 2025, and 2024, the carrying value of our intellectual property was not material.

Although we believe that our intellectual property assets and licenses are sufficient for the operation of our business as we currently conduct it, from time
to time third parties assert patent infringement claims against us or our customers. In addition, we provide design and engineering services to our customers and
also design and make our own products. As a consequence of these activities, our customers sometimes require us to take responsibility for intellectual property
to a greater extent than in our manufacturing and assembly businesses. If and when third parties make assertions regarding the ownership or right to use
intellectual property, we could be required to either enter into licensing arrangements or to resolve the issue through litigation. Such license rights might not be
available to us on commercially acceptable terms, if at all, and any such litigation might not be resolved in our favor. Additionally, litigation could be lengthy
and costly and could materially harm our financial condition regardless of the outcome. We also could be required to incur substantial costs to redesign a
product or re-perform design and engineering services. See "Risk Factors - The success of certain of our activities depends on our ability to protect our
intellectual property rights; claims of infringement or misuse of intellectual property and/or breach of license agreement provisions against our customers or
us could harm our business."

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Our Internet address is https://www.flex.com. We make available, free of charge, through our Internet website the Company's annual reports on Form 10-
K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Information contained on or connected to our website is not incorporated by reference into, and does not form a part of, this
Annual Report on Form 10-K or any of our other filings with the SEC.

We were incorporated in the Republic of Singapore in May 1990. Our registered office is located at 2 Changi South Lane, Singapore 486123.

ITEM 1A.    RISK FACTORS
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Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects are subject to various risks and uncertainties, including those described below. You
should carefully consider the following risks and all of the other information contained in this report, including our consolidated financial statements and
related notes, before investing in any of our securities. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and
uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we currently believe are not material, may also become important factors that adversely affect our business. If any
of the following risks, or other risks and uncertainties that are not yet identified or that we currently think are immaterial, actually occur, our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the market price of our ordinary shares could
decline. We may amend, supplement or add to the risk factors described below from time to time in future reports filed with the SEC.

Summary of Risk Factors

The following is a summary of the principal risks and uncertainties that could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. You should read this summary together with the more detailed description of each risk factor contained below.

• Global economic conditions, including inflationary pressures, currency volatility, stagflation, slower economic growth or recession, high or rising
interest rates, trade conflicts, tariffs, geopolitical uncertainty and instability in financial markets have in the past adversely affected, and may in the
future adversely affect, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and access to capital markets.

• The recently announced U.S. tariffs, together with other countries’ potential retaliatory tariffs and import/export restrictions, may materially increase
our product input costs and negatively affect global economic conditions contracting customer demand. To the extent we are unsuccessful in passing
tariff costs to some customers, our results of operations and cash flows would be negatively impacted.

• We depend on industries that continually produce technologically advanced products with short product lifecycles and our business would be
adversely affected if our customers' products are not successful or if our customers lose market share.

• Our customers have in the past and may in the future cancel their orders, change production quantities or locations, or delay production, any of which
could harm our business; the short-term nature of our customers’ commitments and rapid changes in demand have in the past caused, and may in the
future cause, supply chain and other issues which could adversely affect our operating results.

• A significant percentage of our sales comes from a small number of customers and a decline in sales to any of our largest customers has in the past
adversely affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our business.

• Supply chain disruptions, logistical constraints, manufacturing interruptions or delays, or the failure to accurately forecast customer demand, have in
the past affected, and may in the future affect, our ability to meet customer demand, lead to higher costs, or result in excess or obsolete inventory.

• Our business has in the past been, and may in the future be, adversely affected by delays and increased costs resulting from issues that our common
carriers deal with in transporting our materials, our products, or both.

• Our industry is extremely competitive; if we are not able to continue to provide competitive products and services, we may lose business. In addition,
our customers may decide to manufacture their products internally, which could harm our business.

• We conduct operations in a number of countries and are subject to the risks inherent in international operations.

• Our components business is dependent on our ability to quickly launch world-class component products, and our investment in the development of our
component capabilities, together with start-up and integration costs, has in the past adversely affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our
margins and profitability.

• Our margins and profitability have in the past been, and may in the future be, adversely affected due to substantial investments, start-up and
production ramp costs in our design and engineering services.

• If we do not effectively manage changes in our operations, our business may be harmed; we have taken substantial restructuring charges in the past
and we may need to take material restructuring charges in the future.

• A breach of our IT or physical security systems, or violation of data privacy laws, may cause us to incur significant legal and financial exposure and
adversely affect our operations.

• We may encounter difficulties with acquisitions and divestitures, which could harm our business.
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• We are subject to risks relating to our dependence on our executive officers and other key employees and skilled personnel.

• We are subject to the risk of increased income taxes.

• We are subject to risks relating to litigation and regulatory investigations and proceedings, which may have a material adverse effect on our business.

• Exports and imports of certain of our products are subject to various export control, sanctions, and import regulations and may require authorization
from regulatory agencies of the U.S. or other countries.

• Our strategic relationships with major customers create risks.

• There are risks associated with the separation of Nextracker, which could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

• If the Nextracker spin-off fails to qualify for tax-free treatment, we, our subsidiaries and our former shareholders could incur significant tax liabilities.

• Our operating results may fluctuate significantly due to seasonal demand.

• Union disputes or other labor disruptions could adversely affect our operations and financial results.

• Unforeseen or catastrophic events could have a material adverse effect on our operations and financial results.

• The success of certain of our activities depends on our ability to protect our intellectual property rights; claims of infringement or misuse of
intellectual property and/or breach of license agreement provisions against our customers or us could harm our business.

• If our compliance policies are breached, we may incur significant legal and financial exposure.

• If our products or components contain defects, demand for our services may decline, our reputation may be damaged, and we may be exposed to
product liability and product warranty liability.

• We may not meet regulatory quality standards applicable to our manufacturing and quality processes for medical devices, which could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

• Changes in our credit rating may make it more expensive for us to raise additional capital or to borrow additional funds. We are also exposed to
interest rate fluctuations on our borrowings and investments.

• Challenges in managing working capital could significantly impact our cash flow, profit margins, and overall business performance.

• Our debt level may create limitations.

• Our exposure to financially troubled customers or suppliers has in the past adversely affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our financial
results.

• Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could increase our operating costs.

• Failure to comply with domestic or international employment and related laws could result in the payment of significant damages, which would
reduce our net income.

• Failure to meet sustainability, including environmental, social and governance, expectations or standards, or to achieve our sustainability goals, may
have an adverse impact on our business, impose additional costs on us, and expose us to additional risks.

• Climate change, and the legal and regulatory initiatives related to climate change, could adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Business and Operational Risks

Our customers have in the past and may in the future cancel their orders, change production quantities or locations, or delay production, any of which
could harm our business; the short-term nature of our customers’ commitments and rapid
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changes in demand have in the past caused, and may in the future cause, supply chain and other issues which could adversely affect our operating results.

Cancellations, reductions, or delays by a significant customer or by a group of customers have harmed, and may in the future harm, our results of
operations by reducing the volumes of products we manufacture and deliver for those customers, by causing a delay in the repayment of our expenditures for
inventory in preparation for customer orders and/or our possession of excess or obsolete inventory that we may not be able to sell to customers or third parties
which may result in an impairment loss for inventory, and by lowering our asset utilization and overhead absorption resulting in lower gross margins and
earnings.

As a provider of design and manufacturing services and components for electronics, we must provide increasingly rapid product turnaround times for our
customers. We generally do not obtain firm, long-term purchase commitments from our customers, and we often experience reduced lead times in customer
orders which may be less than the lead time we require to procure necessary components and materials.

Many factors outside of our control impact our customers and their ordering behavior, including recession in end markets, changing technology and
industry standards, commercial acceptance for products, product obsolescence, and loss of business. The short-term nature of our customers' commitments and
the rapid changes in demand for their products reduces our ability to accurately estimate the future requirements of our customers. This makes it difficult to
schedule production and maximize utilization of our manufacturing capacity. In that regard, we must make significant decisions, including determining the
levels of business that we will seek and accept, setting production schedules and locations, making component procurement commitments, and allocating
personnel and other resources based on our estimates of our customers' requirements. We cannot give assurance that present or future customers will not
significantly change, reduce, cancel or delay their orders.

On occasion, customers require rapid increases in production or require that manufacturing of their products be transitioned from one facility to another to
reduce costs or achieve other objectives. These demands may stress our resources, cause supply chain management issues, and reduce our margins. We may not
have sufficient capacity at any given time to meet our customers' demands, and transfers from one facility to another can result in inefficiencies and costs due
to excess capacity in one facility and corresponding capacity constraints at another. Many of our costs and operating expenses are relatively fixed, and thus
customer order fluctuations, deferrals, and transfers of demand from one facility to another, as described above, have had a material adverse effect on our
operating results in the past and we may experience such effects in the future.

A significant percentage of our sales come from a small number of customers and a decline in sales to any of our largest customers has in the past
adversely affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our business.

Sales to our ten largest customers represent a significant percentage of our net sales. Our ten largest customers accounted for approximately 44%, 37%
and 37% of net sales in fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively. No customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal year 2025, 2024 or
2023. Our principal customers have varied from year to year. These customers have in the past experienced, and may in the future experience, dramatic
declines in their market shares or competitive position, due to economic or other forces, that may cause them to reduce their purchases from us or, in some
cases, result in the termination of their relationship with us. Significant reductions in sales to any of our largest customers, or the loss of major customers, have
in the past harmed, and could in the future materially harm, our business. If we are not able to replace expired, canceled or reduced contracts with new business
in a timely manner, our revenues and profitability could be harmed. Additionally, mergers, acquisitions, consolidations or other significant transactions
involving our largest customers generally entail risks to our business. If a significant transaction involving any of our largest customers results in the loss of or
reduction in purchases by any of our largest customers, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
prospects.

Supply chain disruptions, logistical constraints, manufacturing interruptions or delays, or the failure to accurately forecast customer demand, have in the
past affected, and may in the future affect, our ability to meet customer demand, lead to higher costs, or result in excess or obsolete inventory.

From time to time, we have experienced shortages of some of the components, including electronic components, that we use. These shortages can result
from strong demand for those components or from problems experienced by suppliers, such as shortages of raw materials. In the past there have been industry
wide conditions, pandemics, natural disasters and global events that have caused material and component shortages. Most recently, we experienced shortages of
semiconductor components which impacted our business, including curtailed production or delays in production, and delays in making scheduled shipments to
customers. Inflationary pressures have increased in recent years and may continue to increase pricing of components. Our failure or inability to accurately
forecast demand and volatility in the availability of materials, equipment, components, and services, including rising prices due to inflation or scarcity of
availability, have in the past adversely impacted, and may in the future, adversely impact our business and results of operations.

13



Table of Contents

Our inability to make scheduled shipments has in the past caused, and may in the future cause us to experience a reduction in sales, increase in inventory
levels and costs, and could adversely affect relationships with existing and prospective customers. Component shortages have in the past and may in the future
also increase our cost of goods sold because we may be required to pay higher prices for components in short supply and redesign or reconfigure products to
accommodate substitute components. As a result, component shortages have in the past affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our operating results.
Our customers also may experience component shortages which may adversely affect customer demand for our products and services. Our end markets have in
the past been, and may in the future be, impacted by logistical constraints and increased freight and logistics costs around the world.

In addition, if a component shortage is threatened or anticipated, we may purchase such components early to avoid a delay or interruption in our
operations. Purchasing components early has in the past caused, and may in the future, cause us to incur additional inventory carrying costs and cause us to
experience inventory obsolescence, both of which may not be recoverable from our customers and adversely affect our gross profit margins and results of
operations.

Our supply chain has in the past been, and may in the future be, impacted by other events outside our control, including macro-economic events, tariffs
and trade restrictions, political crises, social unrest, terrorism, and conflicts (including the Russian invasion of Ukraine, the Israel-Hamas war, the attacks on
shipping vessels in the Red Sea and other geopolitical conflicts), public health emergencies, or natural or environmental occurrences in locations where we or
our customers and suppliers have manufacturing, research, engineering and other operations.

Our business has in the past been, and may in the future be, adversely affected by delays and increased costs resulting from issues that our common
carriers deal with in transporting our materials, our products, or both.

Given the complexity of our supply chain and our geographically dispersed operations, we depend on a variety of common carriers to transport our
materials from our suppliers to us, and to transport our products from us to our customers. Problems suffered by any of these common carriers, whether due to
geopolitical issues such as due to the Russian invasion of Ukraine and conflict in the Middle East, disruptions as a result of attacks on shipping vessels in the
Red Sea, a natural disaster, labor problems, increased energy prices, criminal activity or some other issue, have in the past resulted, and may in the future result
in shipping delays, increased costs, or other supply chain disruptions, and therefore have in the past had, and may in the future have, a material adverse effect
on our operations. The effects of climate change, including extreme weather events, long-term changes in temperature levels and water availability may
exacerbate these risks.

Our components business is dependent on our ability to quickly launch world-class component products, and our investment in the development of our
component capabilities, together with start-up and integration costs, has in the past adversely affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our margins
and profitability.

Our components business, which includes our data center power systems business, is part of our strategy to improve our competitive position and to grow
our future margins, profitability and shareholder returns by expanding our capabilities. The success of our components business is dependent on our ability to
design and introduce world-class components that have performance characteristics which are suitable for a broad market and that offer significant price and/or
performance advantages over competitive products.

To create these world class components offerings, we must continue to make substantial investments in the development of our components capabilities,
in resources such as research and development, the development, acquisition or licensing of appropriate intellectual property, test and tooling equipment,
facility expansions, and personnel requirements. We may not be able to achieve or maintain market acceptance for any of our components offerings in any of
our current or target markets. The success of our components business will also depend upon the level of market acceptance of our customers' end products,
which incorporate our components, and over which we have no control.

The addition of new customers in our components business has also introduced different demand cycles. For example, cloud-based service providers are
cyclically different from our traditional customers, creating changes to our historical revenue patterns and increasing the complexity of the management of our
working capital requirements.

Our margins and profitability have in the past been, and may in the future be, adversely affected due to substantial investments, start-up and production
ramp costs in our design and engineering services.

As part of our strategy to enhance our end-to-end service offerings, we continue to expand our design and engineering capabilities. Providing these
services can expose us to different or greater potential risks than those we face when providing our manufacturing services.

Although we enter into contracts with our design and engineering services customers, we often design and develop products for these customers prior to
receiving a purchase order or other firm commitment from them. We are required to make
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substantial investments in the resources necessary to design and develop these products, and no revenue may be generated from these efforts if our customers
do not approve the designs in a timely manner or at all. In addition, we may make investments in designing products and not be able to design viable
manufacturable products, in which cases we may not be able to recover our investments. Even if we are successful in designing manufacturable products and
our customers accept our designs, if our customers do not then purchase anticipated levels of products, we may not realize any profits. Our design and
engineering activities often require that we purchase inventory for initial production runs before we have a purchase commitment from a customer. Even after
we have a contract with a customer with respect to a product, these contracts sometimes allow the customer to delay or cancel deliveries and may not obligate
the customer to any particular volume of purchases. These contracts can generally be terminated on short notice. In addition, some of the products we design
and develop, including in the automotive and health solutions industries, must satisfy safety and regulatory standards and some must receive government
certifications. If we fail to obtain these approvals or certifications on a timely basis, we would be unable to sell these products, which would harm our sales,
profitability and reputation.

Our design and engineering services offerings require significant investments in research and development, technology licensing, test and tooling
equipment, patent applications, facility building and expansion, and recruitment. We may not be able to achieve a high enough level of sales for this business to
be profitable. The costs of investing in the resources necessary to expand our design and engineering capabilities, and in particular to support our design and
engineering services offerings, have historically adversely affected our profitability, and may continue to do so as we continue to make investments to grow
these capabilities.

In addition, we often agree to certain product price limitations and cost reduction targets in connection with these services. Inflationary and other
increases in the costs of the raw materials and labor required to produce the products have occurred and may recur from time to time. Also, the production
ramps for these programs are typically significant and negatively impact our margin in early stages as the manufacturing volumes are lower and result in
inefficiencies and unabsorbed manufacturing overhead costs. We may not be able to reduce costs, incorporate changes in costs into the selling prices of our
products, or increase operating efficiencies as we ramp production of our products, which would adversely affect our margins and our results of operations.

If we do not effectively manage changes in our operations, our business may be harmed; we have taken substantial restructuring charges in the past and
we may need to take material restructuring charges in the future.

The expansion of our business, as well as business contractions and other changes in our customers' requirements, have in the past required, and may in
the future require, that we adjust our business and cost structures by incurring restructuring charges. Restructuring activities involve reductions in our
workforce at some locations and closure of certain facilities. All of these changes have in the past placed, and may in the future place, considerable strain on
our financial and management control systems and resources, including decision support, accounting management, information systems and facilities. If we do
not properly manage or maintain adequate financial and management controls, including internal controls over financial reporting, reporting systems and
procedures to manage our employees, our business could be harmed.

In recent years, including fiscal years 2025, 2024, and 2023, we initiated targeted restructuring activities focused on improving operational efficiencies by
reducing excess workforce capacity, optimizing our portfolio, and optimizing our cost structure in lower growth areas. Restructuring charges are recorded
based upon employee termination dates, site closure and consolidation plans generally in conjunction with an overall corporate initiative to drive cost reduction
and realign the Company's global footprint.

We may be required to take additional charges in the future to align our operations and cost structures with global economic conditions, market demands,
cost competitiveness, and our geographic footprint as it relates to our customers' production requirements. We may consolidate or divest certain manufacturing
facilities or transfer certain of our operations to other geographies. If we are required to take additional restructuring charges in the future, our operating results,
financial condition, and cash flows could be adversely impacted. Additionally, there are other potential risks associated with our restructurings that could
adversely affect us, such as delays encountered with the finalization and implementation of the restructuring activities, work stoppages, and the failure to
achieve targeted cost savings.

A breach of our IT or physical security systems, or violation of data privacy laws, may cause us to incur significant legal and financial exposure and
adversely affect our operations.

We rely on our information systems, some of which are managed by third parties, to process, transmit and store electronic information (including
sensitive data such as confidential business information and personally identifiable information in each case relating to employees, customers, vendors,
consumers, and other business partners), and to manage or support a variety of critical business processes and activities including manufacturing, design and
engineering services, financial reporting, recordkeeping, compliance and internal controls, human and capital asset and inventory management, procurement,
invoicing,
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treasury activities, and electronic communications. Our ability to effectively manage our business depends on the security, reliability and adequacy of our
information systems. We may be adversely affected if our information systems break down, fail, or are no longer supported. In addition, we continue to invest
in and implement modifications and upgrades to our information systems, which may be complex and require significant management oversight, and subject us
to inherent costs and associated risks including disruption of operations and loss of information.

We regularly face attempts by sophisticated and malicious actors to gain unauthorized access to our information systems, including those using
techniques that change frequently or may be disguised or difficult to detect and remain dormant until a triggering event or that may continue undetected for an
extended period of time. They may attempt to gain access to our networks, data centers or cloud resources - including those managed by third parties - or those
of our customers, vendors or end users; steal proprietary information related to our business, products, employees, and customers; or interrupt our systems,
operations or services or those of our customers, vendors or others. We believe such attempts are increasing in number and in technical sophistication,
including through the use of adversarial artificial intelligence techniques, which, if we are subject to, could have material adverse effects. Due to increasing
global tensions and conflicts, including involving China, the ongoing Russia/Ukraine conflict, and the conflict in the Middle East, we and the third parties upon
which we rely may be vulnerable to a currently heightened risk of information technology breaches, computer malware, ransomware or other cyber attacks,
including attacks that could materially disrupt our systems and operations, supply chain and ability to provide our products and services.

In some instances, we, our customers, vendors, or the users of our products and services might be unaware of an incident or its magnitude and effects. We
have implemented and maintain security systems with the intent of protecting the physical security of our facilities and inventory and protecting our
information systems including our customers’ and vendors’ information. We seek to prevent, detect, investigate, contain and mitigate security-related threats
and unauthorized attempts and attacks against our information systems, networks, products, and services, and to prevent their recurrence where practicable
through changes to our internal processes and tools. There can be no assurance, however, that our security measures will be sufficient to prevent a material
breach or compromise in the future.

We are subject to, and at times have suffered from, breaches or attempted breaches of our security systems which have in the past and may in the future
result in unauthorized access to our facilities and/or unauthorized acquisition, use or theft of the assets, inventory or information we are trying to protect. If
unauthorized parties gain physical access to our facilities, operations, assets, inventory, or information or if they gain electronic access to our information
systems or if such facilities, operations, assets, inventory or information are used in an unauthorized manner, misdirected, or lost or stolen during transmission
or transport, any theft or misuse of such operations, assets, inventory or information could result in, among other things, unfavorable publicity, loss of
competitive advantage, governmental inquiry and oversight, difficulty in marketing and selling our products and services, increased security and compliance
costs, significant costs related to rebuilding internal systems, higher insurance premiums, allegations by our customers that we have not performed our
contractual obligations, litigation by affected parties including our customers and possible financial penalties, fines or obligations for damages related to the
theft or misuse of such assets, inventory or information, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our profitability and cash flows. Further, third
parties, such as cloud or hosted solution providers, could be a source of risk in the event of a failure of their own systems and infrastructure or could experience
their own privacy or security event which could create risks similar to those described above. Moreover, we may be required to invest significant additional
resources to comply with evolving cybersecurity regulations, including related to artificial intelligence, and to modify and enhance our information systems,
information security and controls, and to investigate and remediate any security vulnerabilities.

We are subject to laws and regulations in the U.S. and in other countries relating to privacy and the collection, use, transfer, storage and security of
personal data, including the European Union General Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR"), the UK GDPR, the EU ePrivacy Directive, Singapore’s Personal
Data Protection Act, China’s Personal Information Protection Law ("PIPL"), India's Digital Personal Data Protection Act, and other privacy and data security
laws throughout the Asia Pacific region and across the globe. In the U.S., many states including California, Colorado, Connecticut, Minnesota, New
Hampshire, Tennessee, Texas, Utah and Virginia have enacted data privacy laws. The California Consumer Privacy Act ("CCPA") became effective January 1,
2020 and was further amended by the California Privacy Rights Act ("CPRA"), which became effective on January 1, 2023. The CCPA and CPRA, among
other requirements, require covered companies to provide new rights and disclosures to California consumers, and allow such consumers abilities to opt-out of
certain sales of personal information and other activities, and creates a new regulatory enforcement body. These and potential additional regulations and
avenues for enforcement could result in, among other things, government inquiries, which could result in significant penalties. Additionally, new privacy and
data protection laws and regulations are being considered, under development or are pending at the U.S. Federal and state level and many international
jurisdictions.

These laws continue to develop and may have conflicting requirements or be inconsistent from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. This poses increasingly
complex compliance challenges, which have resulted, and will continue to result in, increased compliance costs, and have required, and may in the future
require, us to modify our data processing practices and policies and
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to incur substantial costs and expenses in an effort to comply. Any actual or perceived failures to comply with these laws or regulations, or related contractual
or other obligations, or any perceived privacy rights violation, whether by us, one of our third-party service providers or vendors or another third party, could
lead to investigations, claims, and proceedings by governmental entities and private parties, damages for contract breach, and other significant costs, penalties,
and other liabilities, as well as harm to our reputation and market position. The GDPR, the PIPL, U.S. state laws and other laws and self-regulatory codes may
affect our ability to reach current and prospective customers, to understand how our solutions and services are being used, to respond to customer requests
allowed under the laws, to transfer information among the Company and its international subsidiaries, and to implement our business strategy effectively.
These laws and regulations could similarly affect our customers.

We may encounter difficulties with acquisitions and divestitures, which could harm our business.

We have completed numerous acquisitions of businesses, including the recent acquisitions of Crown, JetCool and Anord Mardix, and we may acquire
additional businesses in the future. Any future acquisitions may require additional equity financing, which could be dilutive to our existing shareholders, or
additional debt financing, which could increase our leverage and potentially affect our credit ratings. Any downgrades in our credit ratings associated with an
acquisition could adversely affect our ability to borrow by resulting in more restrictive borrowing terms.

To integrate acquired businesses, we must implement our management information systems, operating systems and internal controls, and assimilate and
manage the personnel of the acquired operations. The difficulties of this integration may be further complicated by geographic distances. The integration of
acquired businesses may not be successful and could result in disruption to other parts of our business. In addition, the integration of acquired businesses may
require that we incur significant restructuring charges.

In addition, acquisitions involve numerous risks and challenges, including:

• diversion of management’s attention from the normal operation of our business;

• potential loss of key employees and customers of the acquired companies;

• difficulties managing and integrating operations in geographically dispersed locations;

• the potential for deficiencies in internal controls at acquired companies;

• increases in our expenses and working capital requirements, which reduce our return on invested capital;

• lack of experience operating in the geographic market or industry sector of the acquired business;

• cybersecurity and compliance related issues;

• initial dependence on unfamiliar supply chain or relatively small supply chain partners; and

• exposure to unanticipated liabilities of acquired companies.

In addition, divestitures involve significant risks, including without limitation, difficulty finding financially sufficient buyers or selling on acceptable
terms in a timely manner, and the agreed-upon terms could be renegotiated due to changes in business or market conditions. Divestitures could adversely affect
our profitability and, under certain circumstances, require us to record impairment charges or a loss as a result of the transaction. In addition, completing
divestitures requires expenses and management attention and could leave us with certain continuing liabilities.

These and other factors have harmed, and in the future could harm, our ability to achieve anticipated levels of profitability at acquired operations or
realize other anticipated benefits of an acquisition or divestiture, and could adversely affect our business and operating results.

We depend on our executive officers and other key employees and skilled personnel.

Our success depends to a large extent upon our ability to hire and retain a workforce with the skills necessary for our business to develop and manufacture
the products desired by our customers. We need highly skilled personnel in multiple areas including, among others, engineering, manufacturing, information
technology, cybersecurity, supply chain, business development, and management including our executive officers and other key employees. Generally, our
employees are not bound by employment or non-competition agreements, and we cannot assure you that we will retain our executive officers and other key
employees. We could be seriously harmed by the loss of any of our executive officers or other key employees. Future
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leadership transitions and management changes may cause uncertainty in, or a disruption to, our business, and may increase the likelihood of senior
management or other employee turnover. In addition, in connection with expanding our design and engineering services offerings, we must attract and retain
experienced design engineers. Our failure to recruit and retain experienced design engineers could limit the growth of our design and engineering services
offerings, which could adversely affect our business. There is substantial competition in our industry for skilled employees and we may incur higher labor,
recruiting and/or training costs in order to attract and retain employees with the requisite skills. We may not be successful in hiring or retaining such employees
which could adversely impact our business and results of operations. Additionally, hiring, training and retaining skilled employees may be adversely impacted
by global economic uncertainty and changes to workforce trends. From time to time, we face challenges that may impact employee retention, such as
workforce reductions and facility consolidations and closures, and some of our most experienced employees are retirement-eligible which may adversely
impact retention. To the extent that we lose experienced personnel through retirement or otherwise, it is critical for us to develop other employees, hire new
qualified employees and successfully manage the transfer of critical knowledge.

There are risks associated with the separation of Nextracker, which could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

On January 2, 2024, we completed the separation of the Nextracker business. We may not achieve all of the benefits expected to result from the
separation, or such benefits may be delayed, for a variety of reasons. If we fail to achieve all of the expected benefits , or if such benefits are delayed, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, claims, suits, or legal proceedings may arise in
connection with the separation of Nextracker and the agreements that were entered into in connection with or as part of the separation. If we receive an adverse
judgment in any such matter, we could be required to pay damages or cease certain practices or activities. Regardless of the merits of the claims, suits or other
legal proceedings may be both time-consuming and disruptive to our business. The defense and ultimate outcome of any claims, suits or other legal
proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our businesses, financial condition and results of operations.

In connection with the separation, Nextracker agreed to retain and indemnify us for certain liabilities and obligations. However, third parties could also
seek to hold us responsible for any of the liabilities that Nextracker has agreed to retain, and there can be no assurance that the indemnity will be sufficient to
insure us against the full amount of such liabilities, or that Nextracker’s ability to satisfy its indemnification obligation will not be impaired in the future. In
addition, Flex’s and/or Nextracker’s insurance coverage may not be available or sufficient to cover certain occurrences of indemnified liabilities, and in any
event insurers may deny coverage for liabilities associated with certain occurrences of indemnified liabilities. Moreover, even if we ultimately succeed in
recovering from Nextracker or such insurance providers any amounts for which we are held liable, we may be temporarily required to bear these losses. Each
of these risks could have a material adverse effect on our businesses, financial condition and results of operations. Further, the Nextracker LLC operating
agreement provides certain obligations of Nextracker and its affiliates with respect to specified tax distributions and other matters. We have an ongoing dispute
with Nextracker regarding one such tax distribution obligation, and we have otherwise relied and will continue to rely on Nextracker to satisfy its performance
and payment obligations in good faith under these agreements. If Nextracker is unable or unwilling to satisfy its obligations under these agreements, including
its indemnification obligations, we may incur losses or not realize expected benefits.

If the Nextracker spin-off fails to qualify for tax-free treatment, we, our subsidiaries and our former shareholders could incur significant tax liabilities.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement by and among us, Nextracker, Yuma, Inc. ("Yuma") and Yuma Acquisition Corp. ("Merger Sub") dated as of February
7, 2023 (the "Merger Agreement"), on January 2, 2024, we effectuated a distribution of the remaining interests that we owned in Nextracker to all our
shareholders through the following transactions (together, the "Transactions"): (i) a court-approved capital reduction carried out pursuant to Section 78G of the
Singapore Companies Act (the "Capital Reduction"), (ii) a distribution of all the shares of the common stock, par value $0.001, of Yuma (the "Yuma Common
Stock") by way of a distribution in specie to our shareholders (the "Distribution" and, together with any distribution in the series of internal distributions of the
shares of Yuma Common Stock from Flextronics International USA, Inc. ("FIUI") to us through a chain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, the "Distributions"),
(iii) the merger of Yuma Merger Sub with and into Yuma, with Yuma surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nextracker (the "Merger") and
pursuant to which each share of Yuma Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Merger was automatically converted into the right to receive a
number of shares of Class A common stock of Nextracker (the "Class A common stock") based on the Exchange Ratio (as defined in the Merger Agreement)
(with cash payments to holders of shares of Yuma Common Stock in lieu of any fractional shares of Class A common stock in accordance with the terms of the
Merger Agreement), and (iv) the merger of Yuma with and into a wholly-owned limited liability company subsidiary of Nextracker, with such limited liability
company surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nextracker, which was undertaken on January 2, 2024 shortly following the completion of the
Merger (together with the Merger, the "Mergers").
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We received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") regarding certain matters germane to the Distributions qualifying as tax-
free under Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). In addition to the private letter ruling, we received an opinion from
Deloitte Tax LLP to the effect that the Distributions will qualify as tax-free under Section 355 of the Code and the Mergers will qualify as a tax-free
reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code. The private letter ruling and opinion are based on certain facts and assumptions, and certain representations
and undertakings, from us and Nextracker establishing that certain conditions that are necessary to obtain tax-free treatment under the Code have been satisfied.
If any of the facts, representations, assumptions or undertakings with respect to the private letter ruling or the opinion is not correct or has been violated, we
may not be able to rely on the private letter ruling or opinion. The opinion represents Deloitte Tax LLP’s judgment and is not binding on the IRS or the courts,
and the IRS or the courts may not agree with the conclusions reached in the opinion, so there can be no certainty that the IRS will not challenge the conclusions
reflected in the opinion or that a court will not sustain such a challenge. In addition, the opinion was based on then-current law, and cannot be relied on if such
law changes with retroactive effect. If, notwithstanding the conclusions expressed in the private letter ruling and the opinion, the Distributions or the Mergers
were determined to be taxable, we, our subsidiaries and our former shareholders could incur significant tax liabilities. For example, if one or more of the
Distributions were determined to be taxable, we would generally recognize gain in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the Yuma common
stock distributed at the time of the Distributions over the tax basis in the shares distributed.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly due to seasonal demand.

We experience some seasonal trends from our diverse end-market exposure. For example, two of our end markets, the lifestyle market and the consumer
devices market, exhibit particular strength generally in the two quarters leading up to the end of the calendar year in connection with the holiday season. We
have historically experienced stronger revenues in our second and third fiscal quarters as compared to our other fiscal quarters, with our fourth fiscal quarter
being the weakest. Economic conditions or other factors, including the impact of seasonal trends, could lead to diminished orders which could harm our
business.

Union disputes or other labor disruptions could adversely affect our operations and financial results.

Certain of our employees are represented by labor unions or works councils. The unionization of significant employee populations could result in
increased labor costs or other terms that are less favorable to us, and increased risk of strikes and work stoppages. We may also be subject to general country
strikes or work stoppages unrelated to our business. A work stoppage or other limitations on production at our facilities, or strikes or work stoppages
experienced by our customers or suppliers, could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Unforeseen or catastrophic events could have a material adverse effect on our operations and financial results.

Our operations or systems could be disrupted by natural disasters, terrorist activity, public health issues, cybersecurity incidents, interruptions of service
from utilities,or transportation or telecommunications providers, political crises and geopolitical conflicts, physical attacks on our senior leadership and/or our
office locations, or other unforeseen or catastrophic events. Climate change may exacerbate the frequency and intensity of natural disasters and adverse weather
conditions. Such events could make it difficult or impossible to manufacture or deliver products to our customers, receive production materials from our
suppliers, or perform critical functions, which could adversely affect our revenue and require significant recovery time and expenditures to resume operations.
While we maintain business recovery plans that are intended to allow us to recover from natural disasters or other events that can be disruptive to our business,
some of our systems are not fully redundant and we cannot be sure that our plans will fully protect us from all such disruptions.

We maintain a program of insurance coverage for a variety of property, casualty, and other risks. We place our insurance coverage with multiple carriers
in numerous jurisdictions. However, one or more of our insurance providers may be unable or unwilling to pay a claim. The types and amounts of insurance we
obtain vary depending on availability, cost, and decisions with respect to risk retention. The policies have deductibles and exclusions that result in us retaining a
level of self-insurance. Losses not covered by insurance may be large, which could harm our results of operations and financial condition.

Industry Risks

We depend on industries that continually produce technologically advanced products with short product lifecycles and our business would be adversely
affected if our customers' products are not successful or if our customers lose market share.

We derive our revenue from customers in a number of end markets and factors affecting any of these industries in general or our customers in particular,
could adversely impact us. These factors include:

• rapid changes in technology, including as a result of artificial intelligence, evolving industry standards, and requirements for continuous improvement
in products and services that result in short product lifecycles;
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• demand for our customers' products may be seasonal;

• our customers may fail to successfully market their products, and our customers' products may fail to gain widespread commercial acceptance;

• our customers' products may have supply chain issues; and

• our customers may experience dramatic market share shifts in demand which may cause them to lose market share or exit businesses.

Our industry is extremely competitive; if we are not able to continue to provide competitive products and services, we may lose business. In addition, our
customers may decide to manufacture their products internally, which could harm our business.

We compete with a number of different companies, depending on the type of service we provide or the location of our operations. For example, we
compete with major global EMS providers, other smaller EMS companies that have a regional or product-specific focus and Original Design Manufacturers
("ODMs") with respect to some of the services that we provide. We also compete with our current and prospective customers, who evaluate our capabilities in
light of their own capabilities and cost structures. In the past, some of our customers moved a portion of their manufacturing from us in order to more fully
utilize their excess internal manufacturing capacity. Any of these developments could cause a decline in our sales, loss of market acceptance of our products or
services, decreases of our profits or loss of our market share. Our industry is extremely competitive, many of our competitors have achieved substantial market
share, and some may have lower cost structures or greater design, manufacturing, financial or other resources than we do. We face particular competition from
Asian-based competitors, including Taiwanese ODM suppliers who compete in a variety of our end markets and have a substantial share of global information
technology hardware production. If we are unable to provide comparable manufacturing services and improved products at lower cost than the other companies
in our market, our net sales could decline.

Our strategic relationships with major customers create risks.

In the past, we have completed numerous strategic transactions with customers. Under these arrangements, we generally acquire inventory, equipment
and other assets from the customers, and lease or acquire their manufacturing facilities, while simultaneously entering into multi-year manufacturing and
supply agreements for the production of their products. We may pursue these customer divestiture transactions in the future. These arrangements entered into
with divesting customers typically involve many risks, including the following:

• we may need to pay a purchase price to the divesting customers that exceeds the value we ultimately may realize from the future business of the
customer;

• the integration of the acquired assets and facilities into our business may be time-consuming and costly, including the incurrence of restructuring
charges;

• we, rather than the divesting customer, bear the risk of excess capacity at the facility;

• we may not achieve anticipated cost reductions and efficiencies at the facility;

• we may be unable to meet the expectations of the customer as to volume, product quality, timeliness and cost reductions;

• our supply agreements with the customers generally do not require any minimum volumes of purchase by the customers, and the actual volume of
purchases may be less than anticipated; and

• if demand for the customers’ products declines, the customer may reduce its volume of purchases, and we may not be able to sufficiently reduce the
expenses of operating the facility or use the facility to provide services to other customers.

As a result of these and other risks, we have been, and in the future may be, unable to achieve anticipated levels of profitability under these arrangements.
In addition, these strategic arrangements have not, and in the future may not, result in any material revenues or contribute positively to our earnings per share.

Financial Risks

We are subject to the risk of increased income taxes.

We are subject to taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Our future effective tax rates could be affected by changes in the mix of earnings in countries with
differing statutory rates and changes in tax laws or their interpretation including changes related to
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tax holidays or tax incentives. The international tax environment continues to change as a result of both coordinated efforts by governments and unilateral
measures designed by individual countries, both intended to tackle concerns over perceived international tax avoidance techniques, which could ultimately
have an adverse effect on the taxation of international businesses.

The Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development ("OECD") and participating countries continue to work toward the enactment of a global
minimum tax rate of 15%, among other provisions, as part of its Base Erosion and Profit Shifting Project. Many countries, including certain countries in which
we currently operate, have enacted or are in the process of enacting laws based on the OECD’s proposals. These rules and other tax laws and related regulations
that are revised, enacted and implemented, could increase tax complexity and uncertainty and adversely impact our effective tax rate and cash tax liability. The
foregoing and other changes to tax laws could have broader implications, including impacts to the economy, currency markets, inflation or competitive
dynamics, which are difficult to predict, and may positively or negatively impact the Company.

Our taxes could also increase if certain tax holidays or incentives are not renewed upon expiration, are retracted, which could occur if we are unable to
satisfy the conditions on which such incentives are based, or if tax rates applicable to us in such jurisdictions are otherwise increased. Our continued ability to
qualify for specific tax holiday extensions will depend on, among other things, our anticipated investment and expansion in these countries and the manner in
which the local governments interpret the requirements for modifications, extensions or new incentives. Further, the global minimum tax is expected to reduce
the benefits achieved from tax incentives.

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries are regularly subject to tax return audits and examinations by various taxing jurisdictions around the world.
For example, one of the Company’s Brazilian subsidiaries has received assessments for certain sales and import taxes which the Company is opposing. In
determining the adequacy of our provision for income taxes, we regularly assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from tax examinations. While it
is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of the resolution of a tax examination, we believe that our reserves for uncertain tax benefits reflect
the outcome of tax positions that are more likely than not to occur. However, we cannot assure you that the final determination of any tax examinations will not
be materially different than that which is reflected in our income tax provisions and accruals. Should additional taxes be assessed as a result of a current or
future examination, there could be a material adverse effect on our tax provision, operating results, financial position and cash flows in the period or periods for
which that determination is made.

Changes in our credit rating may make it more expensive for us to raise additional capital or to borrow additional funds. We are also exposed to interest
rate fluctuations on our borrowings and investments.

Our credit is rated by credit rating agencies. Our 4.750% Notes due June 2025, our 3.750% Notes due 2026, our 6.000% Notes due 2028, our 4.875%
Notes due 2029, our 4.875% Notes due 2030, and our 5.250% Notes due 2032 are currently rated BBB- by Standard and Poor's ("S&P") which is considered to
be "investment grade" by S&P, rated Baa3 by Moody’s which is considered to be "investment grade" by Moody's, and rated BBB- by Fitch which is considered
to be "investment grade" by Fitch. Any decline in our credit rating may make it more expensive for us to raise additional capital in the future on terms that are
acceptable to us, if at all, negatively impact the price of our ordinary shares, increase our interest payments under some of our existing debt agreements, and
have other negative implications on our business, many of which are beyond our control. In addition, the interest rate payable on some of our credit facilities is
subject to adjustment from time to time if our credit ratings change. Thus, any potential future negative change in our credit rating may increase the interest rate
payable on these credit facilities.

In addition, we are exposed to interest rate risk under our variable rate, bilateral facilities, revolving credit facility and term loans that we may enter into
from time to time for indebtedness we have incurred or may incur under such facilities to the extent they are used. The interest rates on our borrowings under
our revolving credit facility may be based on either (i) the Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("Term SOFR") or (ii) the base rate (the greatest of the
agent's prime rate, the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, and the Term SOFR plus 1.00%) plus an applicable margin, in each case depending on our credit rating,
and other borrowings also may be based on Term SOFR. Refer to the discussion in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, "Bank Borrowings and
Long-Term Debt" for further details of our debt obligations. We are also exposed to interest rate risk on our invested cash balances and our factoring activities.

Challenges in managing working capital could significantly impact our cash flow, profit margins, and overall business performance.

Our operations are working capital intensive and our inventories, accounts receivable, and accounts payable are significant components of our net asset
base. Our ability to manage our working capital as well as efficiently manage our receivables and payables is important to the successful operation of our
business and resulting cash flow, including meeting our funding needs.
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If we do not manage our working capital adequately, our business, operating results, and financial condition may be materially adversely affected. Numerous
factors impact cash flow in a given financial period, which include:

• failing to adequately manage our materials purchasing and payment policies;

• fluctuations in the level of revenues from our operating activities;

• fluctuations in collections of receivables;

• timing and size of payables;

• timing and size of capital expenditures;

• the repayment schedules of our debt service obligations; and

• the ability to optimize our terms and conditions with suppliers.

Our debt level may create limitations.

As of March 31, 2025, our total debt was approximately $3.7 billion. This level of indebtedness could limit our flexibility as a result of debt service
requirements and restrictive covenants, and may limit our ability to access additional capital or execute our business strategy.

The market price of our ordinary shares is volatile.

The stock market in recent years has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market prices of companies, including
technology companies. These fluctuations have often been unrelated to or disproportionately impacted by the operating performance of these companies. The
market for our ordinary shares has been and may in the future be subject to similar volatility. Factors such as fluctuations in our operating results,
announcements of technological innovations or events affecting other companies in the electronics industry, currency fluctuations, general market fluctuations,
and macro-economic conditions may cause the market price of our ordinary shares to decline. Stock price fluctuations could impact the value of our equity
compensation, which could affect our ability to recruit and retain employees.

Our exposure to financially troubled customers or suppliers has in the past adversely affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our financial results.

We provide manufacturing services to companies and industries that have in the past, and may in the future, experience financial difficulty. When our
customers experience financial difficulty, we have difficulty recovering amounts owed to us by these customers, or demand for our products from these
customers sometimes declines. When one or more of our customers becomes insolvent or otherwise is unable to pay for the services provided by us on a timely
basis, or at all, our operating results and financial condition are adversely affected. Such adverse effects have in the past included and could in the future
include one or more of the following: an increase in our provision for doubtful accounts, a charge for inventory write-offs, a reduction in revenue, and an
increase in our working capital requirements due to higher inventory levels and increases in days our accounts receivables are outstanding. Additionally, if our
suppliers experience financial difficulty, we could have difficulty sourcing supplies necessary to fulfill production requirements and meet scheduled shipments.

We are subject to risks associated with investments.

We invest in private funds and companies for strategic reasons and may not realize a return on our investments. We make investments in private funds
and companies to further our strategic objectives, support key business initiatives, and develop business relationships with related portfolio companies. Many
of the instruments in which we invest are non-marketable at the time of our initial investment. If any of the funds or companies in which we invest fail, we
could lose all or part of our investment. From time-to-time we have identified observable price changes, or impairments in investments, and we have written
down investments' fair values and recognized a loss.

Our goodwill and identifiable intangible assets could become impaired, which could reduce the value of our assets and reduce our net income in the year
in which the write-off occurs.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired. We also ascribe value to certain identifiable
intangible assets, which consist primarily of customer relationships, developed technology and trade names, among others, as a result of acquisitions. We have
in the past incurred and may in the future incur impairment charges on goodwill or identifiable intangible assets if we determine that the fair values of goodwill
or identifiable intangible assets are less than their current carrying values. We evaluate, on a regular basis, whether events or circumstances have occurred that
indicate all, or a portion, of the carrying amount of goodwill may no longer be recoverable, in which case an impairment charge
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to earnings would become necessary. If the financial performance of our businesses were to decline significantly, we could incur a material non-cash charge in
our statement of operations for the impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets. Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and "Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates" in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" for further discussion of the
impairment testing of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets.

A decline in general economic conditions or global equity valuations could impact the judgments and assumptions about the fair value of our businesses
and we could be required to record impairment charges on our goodwill or other identifiable intangible assets in the future, which could impact our
consolidated balance sheet, as well as our consolidated statement of operations. If we are required to recognize an impairment charge in the future, the charge
would not impact our consolidated cash flows, liquidity, capital resources, and covenants under our existing credit facilities, asset securitization program, and
other outstanding borrowings.

Changes in financial accounting standards or policies have affected, and in the future may affect, our reported financial condition or results of operations.

We prepare our financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. These principles are subject to interpretation by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB"), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA"), the SEC and various bodies formed to interpret and create accounting
policies. Changes to accounting rules or challenges to our interpretation or application of the rules by regulators may have a material adverse effect on our
reported financial results or on the way we conduct business. Refer to "Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements" within note 2 of Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.

International Risks

Global economic conditions, including inflationary pressures, currency volatility, stagflation, slower economic growth or recession, high or rising interest
rates, trade conflicts, tariffs, geopolitical uncertainty and instability in financial markets have in the past adversely affected, and may in the future
adversely affect, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and access to capital markets.

Our operations and the execution of our business plans and strategies are subject to the effects of global economic trends, geopolitical risks and demand
or supply shocks from events that could include political crises and conflict (including the Russian invasion of Ukraine, the Israel-Hamas war, the attacks on
shipping vessels in the Red Sea), war, a major terrorist attack, natural disasters or actual or threatened public health emergencies. They are also affected by
local and regional economic environments, supply chain constraints and policies in the U.S. and other markets that we serve, including interest rates, monetary
policy, inflation, stagflation, slower economic growth, recession, commodity prices, currency volatility, currency controls or other limitations on the ability to
expatriate cash, sovereign debt levels and actual or anticipated defaults on sovereign debt. For example, the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine and
the related sanctions and other measures imposed by the European Union, the U.S. and other countries and organizations in response have led, and may
continue to lead, to disruption and instability in global markets, supply chains and industries that could negatively impact our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Additionally, changes in local economic conditions or outlooks, such as lower rates of investment or economic growth in China, Europe
or other key markets, affect the demand for or profitability of our products and services outside the U.S., and the impact on the Company could be significant
given the extent of our activities outside the United States. We also do business in many emerging market jurisdictions where economic, political and legal
risks are heightened. These factors have in the past adversely affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our business.

Political changes and trends such as populism, protectionism, economic nationalism and sentiment toward multinational companies and resulting tariffs,
export controls or other trade barriers, or changes to tax or other laws and policies, have been and are expected to continue to be disruptive and potentially
costly to our business, and these can interfere with our global operating model, supply chain, production costs, customer relationships, customer demand and
competitive position. Such measures can be imposed suddenly and unpredictably. For example, the current U.S. administration has recently imposed new tariffs
on goods from China and other countries. Further escalation of specific trade tensions, including as a result of the imposition of new tariffs (including
retaliatory tariffs), tariff increases or other trade restrictions between the U.S. and its major trading partners, intensified decoupling between the U.S. (as well as
other major economies) and China, or in global trade conflict more broadly could materially increase our product input costs, negatively affect global economic
conditions contracting customer demand, or could be harmful to our business or that of our customers, and related decreases in confidence or investment
activity in the global markets would adversely affect our business performance. As a contract manufacturer, we expect to recover the costs of tariffs by passing
tariff costs to our customers which would increase net sales, decrease operating income margins, and negatively affect operating cash flow timing as we
recover paid tariffs from our customers. To the extent we are unsuccessful in passing tariff costs to some customers, our results of operations and cash flows
would be negatively impacted. The actual impact of new tariffs on our business is subject to a number of factors including the restrictions on trade,
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the effective date and duration of such tariffs, countries included in the scope of tariffs, changes to amounts of tariffs, and potential retaliatory tariffs imposed
by other countries.

Inflationary pressures, such as what the market continues to experience, could affect our profitability and cash flows, due to higher wages, higher
operating costs, higher financing costs, and/or higher supplier prices. Inflation may also adversely affect foreign exchange rates. We may be unable to pass
along such higher costs to our customers. In addition, inflation may adversely affect customers’ financing costs, cash flows, and profitability, which could
adversely impact their operations and our ability to collect receivables. High or rising interest rates could have a dampening effect on overall economic activity
and/or the financial condition of our customers, either or both of which could negatively affect customer demand for our manufacturing services and our
customers’ ability to repay obligations to us.

These conditions may result in reduced consumer and business confidence and spending in many countries, a tightening in the credit markets, a reduced
level of liquidity in many financial markets, high volatility in credit, fixed income and equity markets, currency exchange rate fluctuations, and global
economic uncertainty. In addition, longer term disruptions in the capital and credit markets could adversely affect our access to liquidity needed for our
business. If financial institutions that have extended credit commitments to us are adversely affected by the conditions of the U.S. and international capital
markets, they may become unable to fund borrowings under their credit commitments to us, which could have an adverse impact on our financial condition and
our ability to borrow additional funds, if needed, for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, research and development and other corporate
purposes. These conditions could also adversely impact our customers and suppliers, which in turn could adversely affect us.

We have facilities across the globe including in Israel and Ukraine. If these facilities were to be damaged, destroyed or otherwise unable to operate,
whether due to war, acts of hostility, or terrorist acts, such an event could jeopardize our ability to develop, manufacture and deliver certain products and
adversely affect our operations and results of operations. Our operations have been, and could continue to be, disrupted by the absence of employees called to
active duty to perform military service. The Russia-Ukraine conflict, the Israel-Hamas war, the attacks on shipping vessels in the Red Sea, and other hostilities
or armed conflicts, or the interruption or curtailment of trade or transport between the countries where our facilities are located and their respective trading
partners, have in the past and could in the future adversely affect our operations and results of operations.

We conduct operations in a number of countries and are subject to the risks inherent in international operations.

The geographic distances between the Americas, Asia and Europe create a number of logistical and communications challenges for us. These challenges
include managing operations across multiple time zones, directing the manufacture and delivery of products across long distances, coordinating procurement of
components and raw materials and their delivery to multiple locations, and coordinating the activities and decisions of the core management team, which is
based in a number of different countries.

Facilities in several different locations may be involved at different stages of the production process of a single product, leading to additional logistical
difficulties.

Because our manufacturing operations are located in a number of countries throughout the Americas, Asia and Europe, we are subject to risks of changes
in economic, social and political conditions in those countries, including:

• fluctuations in the value of local currencies;

• labor unrest, including labor strikes, difficulties in staffing and geographic labor shortages;

• longer payment cycles;

• cultural differences;

• increases in duties, tariffs, and taxation levied on our products including anti-dumping and countervailing duties;

• trade restrictions including limitations on imports or exports of components or assembled products, unilaterally or bilaterally, as well as;

• trade sanctions and related regulatory enforcement actions and other proceedings;

• potential trade wars;

• scrutiny by the media and other third parties of labor practices within our industry which may result in allegations of violations, more stringent and
burdensome labor laws and regulations and inconsistency in the enforcement and interpretation of such laws and regulations, higher labor costs,
and/or loss of revenues;
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• inflationary pressures, such as those the market has recently been experiencing, which may increase costs for materials, supplies, and services;

• imposition of restrictions on currency conversion or the transfer of funds;

• environmental protection laws and regulations, including those related to climate change;

• expropriation of private enterprises;

• ineffective legal protection of our intellectual property rights in certain countries;

• natural disasters;

• exposure to infectious disease, epidemics and pandemics on our business operations in geographic locations impacted by the outbreak and on the
business operations of our customers and suppliers;

• inability of international customers and suppliers to obtain financing resulting from tightening of credit in international financial markets;

• global supply chain disruptions, including disruptions in international commerce as a result of attacks on shipping vessels in the Red Sea, which has in
the past slowed, and may in the future slow the ability of our facilities to import necessary materials and export our products and adversely affect our
business;

• political or social unrest; and

• a potential reversal of current favorable policies encouraging foreign investment or foreign trade by our host countries.

The attractiveness of our services to customers and our ability to conduct business with certain customers can be affected by changes in U.S. and other
countries' policies, including regarding trade. We have significant operations located in China, which have been in the past, and could in the future be,
adversely affected by evolving laws, regulations and policies, including with regard to import and export tariffs and restrictions, and information security and
privacy, as well as changes in the political and geopolitical environment involving China. U.S.-China bilateral trade relations remain uncertain. The U.S.’s
various trade actions, including imposing tariffs on certain goods imported from China or deemed to be of Chinese origin, as well as the potential for new
tariffs, trade embargoes or sanctions by the U.S., and countermeasures imposed by China in response, have, in the past adversely affected, and could in the
future, depending on their duration and implementation as well as our ability to mitigate their impact, adversely affect our business, including in the form of
increased cost of goods sold, decreased margins, increased pricing for customers, and reduced sales. Moreover, we could be subject to reputational harm if any
of our customers, former customers or vendors were subject to U.S. sanctions or if our customers, former customers or vendors did business with sanctioned
countries. Furthermore, geopolitical changes in China-Taiwan relations could disrupt the operations of several companies in Taiwan that are critical to the
global supply of semiconductors and other electronic components on which many of our customers depend.

In addition, some countries in which we operate, such as Brazil, Hungary, India, Malaysia, Mexico and Poland, have experienced periods of slow or
negative growth, high inflation, significant currency devaluations or limited availability of foreign exchange. Furthermore, in countries such as the U.S., Brazil,
China, India and Mexico, governmental authorities exercise significant influence over many aspects of the economy, and their actions could have a significant
effect on us.

We could be seriously harmed by inadequate infrastructure, including lack of adequate power and water supplies, transportation, raw materials and parts
in countries in which we operate. In addition, we may encounter labor disruptions, including labor strikes or claims, and rising labor costs, including the
introduction or expansion of certain social programs, in particular within the lower-cost regions in which we operate due to, among other things, demographic
changes and economic development in those regions. Any increase in labor costs that we are unable to recover in our pricing to our customers could adversely
impact our operating results.

Operations in foreign countries also present risks associated with currency exchange and convertibility, inflation and repatriation of earnings. Inflation
may impact the Company’s profits and cash flows as well as adversely affect foreign exchange rates. In some countries, economic and monetary conditions and
other factors could affect our ability to convert our cash distributions to U.S. dollars or other freely convertible currencies, or to move funds from our accounts
in these countries. Furthermore, the central bank of any of these countries may have the authority to suspend, restrict or otherwise impose conditions on foreign
exchange transactions or to approve distributions to foreign investors.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could increase our operating costs.
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We have manufacturing operations and industrial parks that are located in various part of the world, including Asia, Eastern Europe, Mexico and Brazil. A
portion of our purchases and our sale transactions are denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar. As a result, we are exposed to fluctuations
in these currencies impacting our fixed cost overhead or our supply base relative to the currencies in which we conduct transactions.

Currency exchange rates fluctuate on a daily basis as a result of a number of factors, including changes in a country's political and economic policies. The
primary impact of currency exchange fluctuations is on the cash, receivables, payables and expenses of our operating entities. As part of our currency hedging
strategy, we use financial instruments such as forward exchange, swap contracts, and options to hedge our foreign currency exposure in order to reduce the
short-term impact of foreign currency rate fluctuations on our operating results. If our hedging activities are not successful, if counterparties to these hedging
activities default on their obligations to us, or if we change or reduce these hedging activities in the future, we may experience significant unexpected
fluctuations in our operating results as a result of changes in exchange rates.

We are also exposed to risks related to the valuation of the Mexican and Chinese currencies relative to the U.S. dollar. The Mexican currency is the peso
("MXN") and the Chinese currency is the renminbi ("RMB"). A significant increase in the value of the MXN or RMB could adversely affect our financial
results and cash flows by increasing both our manufacturing costs and the costs of our local supply base. Volatility in the functional and non-functional
currencies of our entities and the United States dollar could seriously harm our business, operating results and financial condition.

Legal and Regulatory Risks

We are subject to risks relating to litigation and regulatory investigations and proceedings, which may have a material adverse effect on our business.

From time to time, we are involved in various claims, suits, investigations and legal or governmental proceedings. Legal claims or regulatory matters may
arise in the future and could involve matters relating to commercial disputes, government regulations and compliance, intellectual property, antitrust, tax,
employment or shareholder issues, product liability claims and other issues on a global basis. If we receive an adverse judgment in any such matter, we could
be required to pay substantial damages, which could be in excess of amounts accrued, if any, and cease certain practices or activities. Regardless of the merits
of the claims, litigation and other proceedings may be time-consuming, result in significant expense and disrupt our business. The defense and ultimate
outcome of any lawsuits or other legal proceedings may result in higher expenses and a decrease in operating margin, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. Any existing or future lawsuits or other proceedings could also divert the attention and
resources of our management and other key employees, as well as harm our reputation, business, financial condition or results of operations.

Exports and imports of certain of our products are subject to various export control, sanctions, and import regulations and may require authorization from
regulatory agencies of the U.S. or other countries.

Due to the global nature of our business, we are subject to a complex system of import- and export-related laws and regulations, including a range of
regulations in the United States and other countries. Non-compliance with these laws and regulations by us, our customers, or our suppliers can result in a wide
range of penalties including the denial of export privileges, fines, criminal penalties, and the seizure of inventories. Moreover, any changes in export control,
sanctions, or import regulations may further restrict the export or import of our products or services. Our ability to obtain required licenses and authorizations
on a timely basis, or at all, is subject to risks and uncertainties, including changing laws, regulations, or foreign policies and geopolitical factors. If we are not
successful in obtaining or maintaining the necessary licenses or authorizations in a timely manner, our sales relating to those approvals may be prevented or
delayed, and revenue and profit previously recognized may be reversed. Any restrictions on the export or import of our products could have a material adverse
effect on our competitive position, results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity.

The success of certain of our activities depends on our ability to protect our intellectual property rights; claims of infringement or misuse of intellectual
property and/or breach of license agreement provisions against our customers or us could harm our business.

We create and retain certain intellectual property rights to some of the technologies that we develop related to our engineering, design, and manufacturing
services and our products. The measures we have taken to prevent unauthorized use of our technology may not be successful. If we are unable to protect our
intellectual property rights, this could reduce or eliminate the competitive advantages of our proprietary technology, which would harm our business.

Our engineering, design and manufacturing services and our products involve the creation and use of intellectual property rights, which subject us to the
risk of claims of infringement or misuse of intellectual property from third parties and/or breach of our agreements with third parties, as well as claims arising
from the allocation of intellectual property risk among us and our customers. From time to time, we enter into intellectual property licenses (e.g., patent and
software licenses) with third parties
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which obligate us to report covered behavior to the licensor and pay license fees to the licensor for certain activities or products, or that enable our use of third
party technologies. We may also decline to enter into licenses for intellectual property that we do not think are useful for or used in our operations, or for which
our customers or suppliers have licenses or have assumed responsibility.

Given the diverse and varied nature of our business and the location of our business around the world, certain activities we perform, such as providing
assembly services in China and India, may fall outside the scope of those licenses or may not be subject to the applicable intellectual property rights. Our
licensors may disagree and claim royalties are owed for such activities. In addition, the basis (e.g., base price) for any royalty amounts owed are audited by
licensors and may be challenged. Our customers often require us to indemnify them against the risk of intellectual property-related claims and licensors may
claim that activities we perform are covered by licenses to which we are a party.

If any claims of infringement or misuse of intellectual property from third parties and/or breach of our agreements with third parties, as well as claims
arising from the allocation of intellectual property risk among us and our customers, are brought against us or our customers, whether or not these have merit,
we could be required to expend significant resources in defense of such claims. In the event of such a claim, we or our customers may be required to spend a
significant amount of money to develop alternatives or obtain licenses or to resolve the issue through litigation. We or our customers may not be successful in
developing such alternatives or obtaining such licenses on reasonable terms or at all, and any such litigation might not be resolved in our or our customers'
favor, in which cases we may be required to curtail certain of our services and offerings. Additionally, litigation could be lengthy and costly, and could
materially harm our financial condition regardless of outcome.

We also face certain heightened risks to our intellectual property rights due to our extensive operations in foreign jurisdictions, including the risk of theft
or misuse of our intellectual property rights in certain foreign jurisdictions. The laws of certain countries in which we operate may not protect intellectual
property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States, and the mechanisms to enforce intellectual property rights may be inadequate to protect our
rights, which could harm our business.

If our compliance policies are breached, we may incur significant legal and financial exposure.

We have implemented local and global compliance policies to ensure compliance with our legal obligations across our operations. A significant legal risk
resulting from our international operations is compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or similar local laws of the countries in which we do
business, including the UK Anti-Bribery Act, which prohibits covered companies from making payments to foreign government officials to assist in obtaining
or retaining business. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics prohibits corrupt payments on a global basis and precludes us from offering or giving anything
of value to a government official for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business, to win a business advantage or to improperly influence a decision regarding
Flex. Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that all of our employees and agents will refrain from taking actions in violation of this and our related anti-
corruption policies and procedures. Any such violation could result in significant fines, criminal sanctions against us or our employees, prohibitions on the
conduct of our business, or have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.

If our products or components contain defects, demand for our services may decline, our reputation may be damaged, and we may be exposed to product
liability and product warranty liability.

Our customers’ products and the manufacturing processes and design and engineering services that we use to produce them are often highly complex.
Some of the products we design and manufacture, including in the automotive and health solutions industries, must satisfy strict safety, quality and regulatory
standards. Defects in the products we manufacture or design, whether caused by a design, engineering, manufacturing or component failure or error, or
deficiencies in our manufacturing processes, have occurred from time to time and, have in the past resulted, and may in the future result in delayed shipments
to customers, reduced or canceled customer orders, or product or component failures. If these defects or deficiencies are significant, our business reputation
could be damaged.

The failure of the products that we manufacture or of our manufacturing processes or facilities may subject us to regulatory enforcement, fines or
penalties and, in some cases, require us to shut down, temporarily halt operations or incur considerable expense to correct a manufacturing process or facility.

In addition, we are from time to time exposed to product liability or product warranty claims, which may include liability for personal injury or property
damage, and liability to pay for the recall, repair or replacement of a product or component, in addition to significant spend to resolve the claims. Even if our
customers are responsible for the defects or defective specifications, they may refuse, or may not have the resources, to satisfy claims for costs or liabilities
arising from these defects. While such claims are typically insured, this could expose us to additional liability claims. Any of these actions could increase our
expenses, including increased insurance premiums, reduce our revenue or damage our reputation.
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In addition, product liability and product recall insurance coverages are expensive and may not be available for some or all of our services offerings on
acceptable terms, in sufficient amounts, or at all. A successful product liability or product warranty claim in excess of our insurance coverage or any material
claim for which insurance coverage is denied, limited or is not available could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

We may not meet regulatory quality standards applicable to our manufacturing and quality processes for medical devices, which could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

As a service provider engaged in the business of designing and manufacturing medical devices, we have compliance requirements in addition to those
relating to other industries we serve within our business. We are required to register with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") and are subject to
periodic inspection by the FDA for compliance with the FDA's Quality System Regulation ("QSR"), which requires manufacturers of medical devices to
implement and adhere to design and process manufacturing controls, quality control, labeling, handling and documentation procedures. Compliance with
applicable regulatory requirements is subject to continual review and is rigorously monitored through periodic inspections and product field monitoring by the
FDA. If any FDA inspection reveals noncompliance with QSR or other applicable FDA regulations, and we do not address the FDA's concerns to its
satisfaction, the FDA may take action against us, including issuing a letter of inspection observations or a warning letter, imposing fines, bringing an action
against the Company and its officers, requiring a recall of the products we manufactured, refusing requests for clearance or approval of new products or
withdrawing clearance or approval previously granted, issuing an import detention on products entering the U.S. from an offshore facility, or temporarily
halting operations at or shutting down a manufacturing facility. If any of these actions were to occur, it would harm our reputation and cause our business to
suffer.

Beyond the FDA in the U.S., our medical devices business is also subject to applicable state and other countries’ regulatory requirements. In the EU, we
are required to maintain certain standardized certifications and must undergo periodic inspections to obtain and maintain these certifications. Continued
noncompliance with the EU regulations could stop the flow of products into the EU from us or from our customers. In China, the National Medical Products
Administration controls and regulates the manufacture and commerce of healthcare products. We must comply with the regulatory laws applicable to medical
device manufacturers, or our ability to manufacture products in China could be impacted. In Japan, the Pharmaceutical Affairs Laws regulate the manufacture
and commerce of healthcare products. These regulations also require that subcontractors manufacturing products intended for sale in Japan register with
authorities and submit to regulatory audits. Other countries where we operate, including elsewhere in Asia and in Latin America, have similar laws regarding
the regulation of medical device manufacturing. In the event of any noncompliance with these requirements, interruption of our operations and/or ability to sell
into these markets could occur, which in turn could cause our reputation and business to suffer.

Failure to comply with domestic or international employment and related laws could result in the payment of significant damages, which would reduce our
net income.

We are subject to a variety of domestic and foreign employment laws, including those related to safety, wages and overtime, discrimination,
whistleblowing, classification of employees and independent contractors, and severance payments. Enforcement activity relating to these laws, particularly
outside of the United States, can increase as a result of increased media attention due to violations by other companies, changes in law, and political and other
factors. Any violations of these laws could lead to the assessment of fines against us by federal, state or foreign regulatory authorities or damages payable to
employees, which fines could be substantial and which would reduce our net income.

Failure to meet sustainability, including environmental, social and governance expectations or standards, or to achieve our sustainability goals, may have
an adverse impact on our business, impose additional costs on us, and expose us to additional risks.

Many governments, regulators, investors, customers, employees, and other stakeholders remain focused on sustainability practices and matters, including
climate change and greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions, environmental stewardship, responsible sourcing, social responsibility, human capital management,
labor practices and workplace conduct, the usage of artificial intelligence, data privacy and human rights, with some expressing opposition to certain of these
practices and matters. This attention has resulted in a variety of required and voluntary reporting regimes that are not harmonized and continue to change,
including the EU’s Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive ("CSRD") and the California Climate Corporate Data Accountability Act and Climate-Related
Financial Risk Act, among other similar laws. A number of our customers have adopted, or may adopt, procurement policies that include sustainability
provisions that their suppliers should comply with, or they may seek to include such provisions in their procurement terms and conditions. Moreover, a number
of investors have adopted, or may adopt, sustainability policies with which they expect their portfolio companies to comply.

We have established and publicly announced our sustainability strategy and certain goals, commitments, and targets, which we may change or refine in
the future. These statements reflect our current initiatives, plans and aspirations, and are not
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guarantees that we will be able to achieve them. Evolving stakeholder expectations, and our ability to successfully execute these initiatives and accurately
report our progress and accomplish our goals present numerous operational, financial, legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks and uncertainties, many of
which are outside our control, and all of which could have a material adverse impact on our business. Standards for tracking and reporting sustainability
matters continue to evolve and are subject to change, which could result in significant revisions to our current goals, reported progress in achieving such goals
or our ability to achieve such goals in the future. Additionally, the implementation of and reporting on these initiatives impose additional costs on us and a
diversion of resources. Our processes and controls may not comply with evolving standards for identifying, measuring and reporting sustainability metrics. If
our sustainability initiatives fail to satisfy investors, current or potential customers, and our other stakeholders, our reputation, our ability to manufacture and
sell products and services, our ability to attract or retain employees, and our attractiveness as an investment, business partner or acquirer could be negatively
impacted. Similarly, our failure or perceived failure to pursue or fulfill our goals, targets and objectives, adhere to our public statements, or satisfy various
reporting laws, regulations or standards within the timelines we announce or otherwise as may be required, or at all, could also have similar negative impacts
and expose us to government enforcement actions and private litigation. In addition, in recent years "anti-ESG" and "anti-DEI" sentiment has gained
momentum across the U.S., with several states, Congress and the Executive Branch having proposed or enacted "anti-ESG" and "anti-DEI" policies,
legislation, executive orders or initiatives or issued related legal opinions, which could result in additional compliance obligations, private litigation, becoming
the subject of investigations and enforcement actions, or reputational harm.

Climate change, and the legal and regulatory initiatives related to climate change, could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

There continues to be concern that a gradual increase in global average temperatures due to increased concentration of carbon dioxide and other GHGs in
the atmosphere will cause significant changes in weather patterns around the globe and an increase in the frequency and severity of natural disasters. Changes
in weather patterns and an increased frequency, intensity and duration of extreme weather conditions, such as hurricanes, earthquakes, wildfires, water or other
natural resource shortages, droughts, or flooding, could, among other things, pose physical risks to and could impair our production capabilities, disrupt our
supply chain and infrastructure, and impact our customers and their demand for our products and services. The geographic locations of our manufacturing
facilities could intensify the negative impacts resulting from any of these issues. As a result, the effects of climate change could have a long-term adverse
impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In many of the countries in which we operate, governmental bodies continue to enact
legislation and regulations in response to the potential impacts of climate change. For example, some have enacted or are contemplating legislation and
regulations that may impact how we conduct and/or report on our business by requiring the disclosure and tracking of certain GHG emissions, such as EU’s
CSRD, EU Taxonomy, and the EU Corporate Sustainability Due Diligence Directive ("CSDDD") and California’s Climate Corporate Data Accountability Act
and Climate-Related Financial Risk Act. These laws and regulations have, and will continue to have, the potential to impact our operations directly or indirectly
as a result of required compliance by us and our suppliers. In addition, we have committed to reducing our GHG emissions as part of our long-term
sustainability strategy and we may take additional voluntary steps to mitigate our impact on climate change. As a result, we may experience increases in energy,
production, transportation and raw material costs, capital expenditures and insurance premiums and deductibles. Inconsistency of legislation and regulations
among jurisdictions may also affect the costs of compliance with such laws and regulations. Any assessment of the potential impact of future climate change
legislation, regulations or industry standards, as well as any international treaties and accords, is uncertain given the scope of potential regulatory change in the
countries in which we operate. Given the political significance and uncertainty around the impact of climate change and how it should be addressed, we cannot
predict how legislation and regulation will affect our financial condition, operating performance and ability to compete. Furthermore, even without such
regulation, increased awareness and any adverse publicity in the global marketplace about potential impacts on climate change by us or other companies in our
industry could harm our reputation. Any of the foregoing could result in a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our failure to comply with environmental, health and safety, product stewardship and producer responsibility laws or regulations could adversely affect
our business.

We are subject to extensive and changing federal, state, local and international environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, concerning, among
other things, the health and safety of our employees, and the generation, use, storage, transportation, discharge and disposal of certain materials (including
chemicals and hazardous substances) used in or derived from our manufacturing processes. We are also subject to laws and regulations governing the
recyclability of products, the materials that may be included in products, and our obligations to dispose of these products after end users have finished with
them. Such environmental legislation includes the EU Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directive, China’s regulation on Management Methods for
Controlling Pollution Caused by Electronic Information Products and the EU carbon border adjustment mechanism, among others. Additionally, we may be
exposed to liability to our customers relating to the materials that may be included in the components that we procure for our customers’ products. Any
violation or alleged violation by us of
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these laws or regulations could result in our customers refusing to purchase our products and subject us to significant costs, fines or other penalties, the
suspension of production, or prohibitions on sales of products we manufacture. In addition, such regulations could restrict our ability to expand our facilities or
could require us to acquire costly equipment, or to incur other significant expenses, including expenses associated with the recall of any non-compliant product
or with changes in our operational, procurement and inventory management activities.

In addition, we are responsible for the cleanup of contamination at some of our current and former manufacturing facilities and at some third party sites.
If more stringent compliance or cleanup standards under environmental laws or regulations are imposed, or the results of future testing and analyses at our
current or former operating facilities indicate that we are responsible for the release of hazardous substances into the air, ground and/or water, we may be
subject to additional liability. Additional environmental matters may arise in the future at sites where no problem is currently known or at sites that we may
acquire in the future. Some environmental laws impose liability without fault, leading companies to be responsible for investigating, removing, or remediating
possible hazardous substances released at properties it owns or operates, regardless of when such substances were released.

Our business could be impacted as a result of actions by activist shareholders or others.

We may be subject, from time to time, to legal and business challenges due to actions instituted by activist shareholders or others. Responding to such
actions could be costly and time-consuming, may not align with our business strategies and could divert the attention of our Board of Directors and senior
management from the pursuit of our business strategies. Perceived uncertainties as to our future direction as a result of shareholder activism may lead to the
perception of a change in the direction of the business or other instability and may make it more difficult to attract and retain qualified personnel and business
partners and may affect our relationships with vendors, customers and other third parties.

ITEM 1B.    UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 1C.    CYBERSECURITY

Risk Management and Strategy

Our cybersecurity risk management program is intended to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our critical information technology
("IT") systems and information. Our program is integrated into, and among the risks evaluated and considered by, our broader enterprise risk management
program, which is designed to identify, assess, prioritize and mitigate risks across the organization to enhance our resilience and support the achievement of our
strategic objectives. We designed and assess our cybersecurity risk management program based on multiple cybersecurity frameworks, such as the National
Institute of Standards and Technology Cybersecurity Framework, as well as information security standards issued by the International Organization for
Standardization, including ISO 27001, which we use as a guide to help us identify, assess, and manage cybersecurity risks relevant to our business. Our global
information security management program is ISO 27001:2022 certified.

Our cybersecurity risk management program is led by our Chief Information Security Officer ("CISO"), who manages our security team principally
responsible for managing our cybersecurity risk assessment processes, our security controls, and our detection and response to cybersecurity incidents. Our
program includes protocols for preventing, detecting and responding to cybersecurity incidents, and cross-functional coordination and governance of business
continuity and disaster recovery plans. Components of our program include:

• risk assessments designed to help identify cybersecurity threats to our critical IT systems, information, and our broader enterprise IT environment;

• the periodic engagement of independent security firms and other third-party experts, where appropriate, to assess, test, and certify components of our
cybersecurity program, and to otherwise assist with aspects of our cybersecurity processes and controls;

• annual cybersecurity awareness training for our employees;

• regular assessments of the design and operational effectiveness of the program’s key processes and controls by our internal audit team as well as
external consultants; and

• a risk management process for third-party service providers and vendors that includes due diligence in the selection process and periodic monitoring
regarding adherence to applicable cybersecurity standards.
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We also have a cybersecurity incident response plan to assess and manage cybersecurity incidents, which includes escalation procedures based on the
nature and severity of the incident including, where appropriate, escalation to the Audit Committee and the Board. We periodically (at least annually) perform
tabletop exercises to test our incident response procedures, identify gaps and improvement opportunities and exercise team preparedness.

As part of our overall risk mitigation strategy, we maintain insurance coverage that is intended to address certain aspects of cybersecurity risks; however,
such insurance may not be sufficient in type or amount to cover us against claims related to cybersecurity breaches, cyberattacks and other related breaches.

As of the date of this report, we do not believe that any risks from cybersecurity threats, including as a result of any previous cybersecurity incidents,
have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our Company, including our business strategy, results of operations or financial condition.
Despite our security measures, however, there can be no assurance that we, or third parties with which we interact, will not experience a cybersecurity incident
in the future that will materially affect us. For more information on our cybersecurity related risks, see Item IA,, "Risk Factors - "A breach of our IT or physical
security systems, or violation of data privacy laws, may cause us to incur significant legal and financial exposure and adversely affect our operations."

Governance

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has primary responsibility for overseeing our cybersecurity risks and other information technology risks,
including our plans to mitigate cybersecurity risks and to respond to data breaches.

The Audit Committee receives regular reports (at least quarterly) from our CISO on cybersecurity matters. These reports include a range of topics,
including our cybersecurity risk profile, the current cybersecurity and emerging threat landscape, the status of ongoing cybersecurity initiatives, incident
reports, and the results of internal and external assessments of our information systems. The Audit Committee also annually reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of our information and technology security policies and the internal controls regarding information and technology security and cybersecurity,
and periodically receives updates from our internal audit function on the results of our cybersecurity audits and related mitigation activities. The Chair of the
Audit Committee reports to the full Board on these discussions as appropriate.

The full Board also receives briefings from our CISO on cybersecurity matters annually. In addition, Board members periodically receive presentations
on cybersecurity matters from external experts as part of the Board’s continuing education and overall risk oversight.

At the management level, our CISO leads our enterprise-wide cybersecurity program, and is responsible for assessing and managing our material risks
from cybersecurity threats. In performing his role, our CISO is informed about and monitors the prevention, detection, mitigation, and remediation of
cybersecurity risks and incidents through the management of, and participation in, the cybersecurity risk management and strategy processes described above,
including the operation of our incident response plan. Our CISO reports to our Interim Chief Information Officer who, in turn, reports to our Chief Operating
Officer and member of our executive leadership team.

Our CISO is an experienced cybersecurity executive with more than 20 years of experience building and leading cybersecurity, risk management, and
information technology teams. Our CISO holds industry-recognized cybersecurity certifications, including having held Certified Information Systems Security
Professional (CISSP) certification.

ITEM 2.    PROPERTIES

We own or lease facilities located primarily in the geographies listed below. Our facilities consist of a global network of industrial parks, regional
manufacturing operations, and design, engineering and product introduction centers. The majority of the square footage is active manufacturing space used by
the FRS and FAS operating segments, as both use these properties. Our facilities are well maintained and suitable for the operations conducted. The productive
capacity of our plants is adequate for current needs.

As of March 31, 2025, the square footage of our facilities by region is as follows:

Approximate Square Footage
(In millions)

Asia 19.2 
Americas 18.0 
Europe 11.3 
Total (1) 48.5 

(1) Consists of 22.7 million square feet in facilities that we own with the remaining 25.8 million square feet in leased facilities.
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ITEM 3.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For a description of our material legal proceedings, see note 14 "Commitments and Contingencies" to the consolidated financial statements included
under Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4.    MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART II

ITEM 5.    MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

MARKET AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Our ordinary shares are quoted on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "FLEX."

As of May 15, 2025, there were 2,736 holders of record of our ordinary shares. This does not include persons whose stock is in nominee or "street name"
accounts through brokers.

DIVIDENDS

Since inception, we have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our ordinary shares. We currently do not have plans to pay any cash dividends in
fiscal year 2026.

CERTAIN TAXATION CONSIDERATIONS UNDER SINGAPORE LAW

Dividends.    Singapore does not impose a withholding tax on dividends. All dividends on our ordinary shares are not taxable in Singapore to
shareholders, provided that any dividends are paid to shareholders outside of Singapore for this purpose and such dividends are not received or deemed to be
received in Singapore by shareholders and are not derived by shareholders pursuant to any trade or business carried on in Singapore. Certain tax exemptions
are available for foreign-sourced dividends received by Singapore tax residents, subject to conditions. Since inception, we have not declared nor paid any cash
dividends on our ordinary shares, and we currently do not have plans to pay any cash dividends.

Gains on Disposal.    Under current Singapore tax law there is no tax on capital gains, and thus any profits from the disposal of shares are not taxable in
Singapore unless the gains arising from the disposal of shares are income in nature and subject to tax, especially if they arise from activities which the Inland
Revenue Authority of Singapore regards as the carrying on of a trade or business in Singapore (in which case, the profits on the sale would be taxable as trade
or business profits rather than capital gains).

Shareholders who apply, or who are required to apply, the Singapore Financial Reporting Standard ("FRS") 39, FRS 109 or Singapore Financial
Reporting Standard (International) 9 ("SFRS(I) 9") (as the case may be) for the purposes of Singapore income tax may be required to recognize gains or losses
(not being gains or losses in the nature of capital) in accordance with the provisions of FRS 39, FRS 109 or SFRS(I) 9 (as the case may be) (as modified by the
applicable provisions of Singapore income tax law) even though no sale or disposal of shares is made.

Stamp Duty.    There is no stamp duty payable for holding shares, and no duty is payable on the issue of new shares. Singapore stamp duty is payable on
a transfer of existing shares if there is an instrument of transfer executed in Singapore or if there is an instrument of transfer executed outside Singapore that is
received in Singapore. In such situations, stamp duty is payable on the instrument of transfer of such shares at the rate of 0.2% of the consideration for, or
market value of, such shares, whichever is higher. The stamp duty is borne by the purchaser unless there is an agreement to the contrary. If the instrument of
transfer is executed outside of Singapore, the stamp duty must be paid only if the instrument of transfer is received in Singapore.

Estate Taxation.    Singapore estate duty was abolished for deaths occurring on or after February 15, 2008.

Tax Treaties Regarding Withholding.    There is no reciprocal income tax treaty between the U.S. and Singapore regarding withholding taxes on
dividends and capital gains.

STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following stock price performance graph and accompanying information is not deemed to be "soliciting material" or to be "filed" with the SEC or
subject to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, regardless of any general
incorporation language in any such filing.

The graph below compares the cumulative total shareholder return on our ordinary shares, the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index and a peer group
comprised of Benchmark Electronics, Inc., Celestica Inc., Jabil Inc., and Sanmina Corporation.

33



Table of Contents

The graph below assumes that $100 was invested in our ordinary shares, in the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index and in the peer group described above
on March 31, 2020 and reflects the annual return through March 31, 2025, assuming dividend reinvestment.

The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not indicative of, or intended to forecast, the possible future performances of our
ordinary shares.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Flex, the S&P 500 Index, and Peer Group

3/20 3/21 3/22 3/23 3/24 3/25

Flex Ltd. 100.00  218.63  221.49  274.75  453.19  524.00 
S&P 500 Index 100.00  156.35  180.81  166.84  216.69  234.57 
Peer Group 100.00  192.69  218.23  301.15  477.10  575.34 

Prepared by Zacks Investment Research, Inc. Used with permission. All rights reserved. Copyright 1980-2025.

Index Data: Copyright Standard and Poor's, Inc. Used with permission. All rights reserved.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information regarding purchases of our ordinary shares made by us for the period from January 1, 2025 through March 31,
2025.

Period (2)

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased (1)
Average Price
Paid per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs

Approximate Dollar Value
of Shares that May Yet

Be Purchased Under the
Plans or Programs

January 1 - February 1, 2025 1,681,545  $ 41.42  1,681,545  $ 1,264,759,150 
February 2 - March 1, 2025 1,866,481  $ 40.80  1,866,481  $ 1,188,610,528 
March 2 - March 31, 2025 4,415,833  $ 34.92  4,415,833  $ 1,034,403,120 
Total 7,963,859    7,963,859   

(1)    During the period from January 1, 2025 through March 31, 2025, all purchases were made pursuant to the program discussed below in open market transactions. All
purchases were made in accordance with Rule 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

(2)    On August 8, 2024, our Board of Directors authorized repurchases of our outstanding ordinary shares for up to $1.7 billion. This is in accordance with the share
purchase mandate whereby our shareholders approved a repurchase limit of 20% of our issued ordinary shares outstanding at the Annual General Meeting held on the
same date as the Board authorization. As of March 31, 2025, shares in the aggregate amount of $1.0 billion were available to be repurchased under the current plan.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

None.
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ITEM 6.    [RESERVED]

ITEM 7.    MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." In addition to historical consolidated financial information,
the following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. Our actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated by these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors. We discuss factors that we believe could cause or contribute
to these differences below and elsewhere in this report, including those set forth under Item 1A,"Risk Factors." Refer to Item 7. "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, for the
results of operations discussion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, compared to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023.

OVERVIEW

We are the advanced, end-to-end manufacturing partner of choice that helps a diverse customer base design, build, deliver and manage innovative
products that improve the world. Through the collective strength of a global workforce across approximately 30 countries with responsible, sustainable
operations, we deliver technology innovation, supply chain, and manufacturing solutions to diverse industries and end markets. Our full suite of specialized
capabilities includes design and engineering, supply chain, manufacturing, post-production and post-sale services, and proprietary products. We partner with
customers across a diverse set of industries including data center, communications, enterprise, consumer, automotive, industrial, healthcare, industrial and
power. As of March 31, 2025, we report our financial performance based on two operating and reportable segments as follows:

• Flex Agility Solutions ("FAS"), which is comprised of the following end markets:

◦ Communications, Enterprise and Cloud ("CEC"), including data center, edge, and communications infrastructure
◦ Lifestyle, including appliances, floorcare, smart living, HVAC, and power tools
◦ Consumer Devices, including mobile and high velocity consumer devices.

• Flex Reliability Solutions ("FRS"), which is comprised of the following end markets:

◦ Industrial, including industrial devices, capital equipment, renewables, critical power, and embedded power.
◦ Automotive, including compute platforms, power electronics, motion, and interface
◦ Health Solutions, including medical devices, medical equipment, and drug delivery

In fiscal year 2025, we formally introduced the next phase in our strategic evolution, its EMS + Products + Services approach. This hybrid model is
focused on strengthening our core manufacturing and supply chain capabilities while expanding our portfolio of proprietary products and value-added services
to maximize value creation for customers. To advance this approach, we completed several strategic acquisitions in fiscal year 2025 that enhance our
differentiated portfolio to address critical data center customer challenges around power, heat and scale. These included the acquisitions of JetCool to expand
direct-to-chip liquid cooling capabilities and Crown to increase critical power capabilities while adding opportunities in grid modernization.

Our strategy is to provide customers with a full range of cost competitive, vertically-integrated global supply chain solutions through which we can
design, build, ship and service a complete packaged product for our customers. This enables our customers to leverage our supply chain solutions to meet their
product requirements throughout the entire product lifecycle.

In today’s business landscape, we are witnessing greater product diversification by many companies, primarily in the technology sector, along with
increased product complexity. These companies now require unique and customized manufacturing and supply chain solutions that meet their evolving
requirements.

We use a portfolio approach to manage our extensive service offerings. As our customers change the way they go to market, we have the capability to
reorganize and rebalance our business portfolio in order to align with our customers' needs and requirements in an effort to optimize operating results. The
objective of our business model is to allow us to be flexible and redeploy and reposition our assets and resources as necessary to meet specific customers'
supply chain solution needs across all the markets we serve and earn a return on our invested capital above the weighted average cost of that capital.

36



Table of Contents

We believe that our strategy is positioning us to take advantage of the long-term, future growth prospects for outsourcing of advanced manufacturing
capabilities, design and engineering services and after-market services.

We are continuously evaluating our capital structure in response to the current environment and expect that our current financial condition, including our
liquidity sources are adequate to fund future commitments. See additional discussion in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section below.

Nextracker Spin-off

On February 13, 2023, our former subsidiary, Nextracker completed an initial public offering (the "IPO") of its Class A common stock and on July 3,
2023 completed a follow-on offering to the IPO. Prior to the IPO, we maintained an 82.6% indirect ownership in Nextracker and consolidated Nextracker.
Subsequent to the IPO and follow-on offering, we retained a 51.5% indirect ownership in Nextracker and continued to consolidate Nextracker and report
Nextracker as an operating segment.

On January 2, 2024, we completed the previously announced Nextracker spin-off to Flex shareholders on a pro-rata basis based on the number ordinary
shares of Flex held by each shareholder of Flex (the "Distribution") as of December 29, 2023, which was the record date of the Distribution, pursuant to the
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 7, 2023. Under the terms of the spin-off, Flex shareholders received approximately 0.17 shares of
Nextracker Class A common stock for each Flex ordinary share held as of the record date of the Distribution. Flex shareholders received cash in lieu of any
fractional shares.

As a result of the completion of the spin-off, Nextracker became a fully independent public company, we no longer directly or indirectly hold any shares
of Nextracker common stock or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Nextracker common stock and subsequent to the third quarter
ended December 31, 2023 we no longer consolidate Nextracker into our financial results. Flex ordinary shares continue to trade on Nasdaq under the ticker
symbol "FLEX" and shares of Nextracker Class A common stock continue to trade on Nasdaq under the ticker symbol "NXT".

The historical financial results and financial position of Nextracker are presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations
for all periods (through the date of the Nextracker spin-off) presented. The historical statements of comprehensive income and cash flows and the balances
related to stockholders’ equity have not been revised to reflect the effect of the spin-off. See note 7 "Discontinued Operations" to the consolidated financial
statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further information. Unless otherwise indicated, any reference to income statement
items in this "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" refers to results from continuing operations.

Update on Component Shortages and Logistical Constraints on our Business

Component shortages experienced in the recent past have largely subsided, however logistical constraints persist which have increased freight costs. We
continue to monitor potential supply chain disruptions, as a result of emerging and evolving geopolitical tensions and tariff implementations. Refer to "Risk
Factors - Supply chain disruptions, logistical constraints, manufacturing interruptions or delays, or the failure to accurately forecast customer demand, have in
the past affected, and may in the future affect, our ability to meet customer demand, lead to higher costs, or result in excess or obsolete inventory" and "-
Global economic conditions, including inflationary pressures, currency volatility, stagflation, slower economic growth or recession, high or rising interest
rates, trade conflicts, tariffs, geopolitical uncertainty and instability in financial markets have in the past adversely affected, and may in the future adversely
affect, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and access to capital markets."

Russian Invasion of Ukraine and Israel-Hamas War

We continue to monitor and respond to the conflict in Ukraine and the associated sanctions and other restrictions. We also are monitoring and responding
to the Israel-Hamas war. As of the date of this report, there is no material impact to our business operations and financial performance in Ukraine and Israel.
The full impact of the conflicts on our business operations and financial performance remains uncertain and will depend on future developments, including the
severity and duration of the conflicts and their impact on regional and global economic conditions. We will continue to monitor the conflicts and assess the
related restrictions and other effects and pursue prudent decisions for our team members, customers, and business.

Tariffs

The U.S. tariffs initially announced in April 2025, which continue to evolve, and other countries' potential retaliatory tariffs and import/export restrictions
may materially increase our product input costs and negatively affect global economic conditions contracting customer demand. As a contract manufacturer, we
expect to recover the cost of tariffs by passing tariff
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costs to our customers which would increase net sales, decrease operating income margins, and negatively affect operating cash flow timing as we recover paid
tariffs from our customers. To the extent we are unsuccessful in passing tariff costs to our customers, our results of operations and cash flows would be
negatively impacted. We will continue to monitor changes in global trade policy and employ measures to mitigate the impact of tariffs and leverage competitive
opportunities. However, despite these efforts, the Company may not be able to fully mitigate the impact of changes in trade policies or an economic downturn.
See Risk Factors - "Global economic conditions, including inflationary pressures, currency volatility, stagflation, slower economic growth or recession, high or
rising interest rates, trade conflicts, tariffs, geopolitical uncertainty and instability in financial markets have in the past adversely affected, and may in the
future adversely affect, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and access to capital markets."

Business Overview

We are one of the world's largest providers of global supply chain solutions, with revenues from continuing operations of $25.8 billion in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2025. We have established an extensive network of manufacturing facilities in the world's major markets (Asia, the Americas, and Europe) to
serve the outsourcing needs of both multinational and regional customers. We design, build, ship, and service products for our customers through a network of
approximately 100 facilities in approximately 30 countries across four continents. As of March 31, 2025, our total manufacturing capacity was approximately
27 million square feet. The following tables set forth the relative percentages and dollar amounts of net sales by region and by country, and net property and
equipment, by country, based on the location of our manufacturing sites (amounts may not sum due to rounding):

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024

  (In millions)
Net sales by region:

Americas $ 12,656  49 % $ 12,232  46 %
Asia 7,701  30 % 8,540  32 %
Europe 5,456  21 % 5,643  22 %

$ 25,813  $ 26,415 

Net sales by country:

Mexico $ 6,854  27 % $ 6,935  26 %
China 4,319  17 % 5,117  19 %
U.S. 4,162  16 % 3,598  14 %
Malaysia 2,379  9 % 2,122  8 %
Brazil 1,552  6 % 1,529  6 %
Hungary 1,316  5 % 1,368  5 %
Other 5,231  20 % 5,746  22 %

$ 25,813  $ 26,415   

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(In millions)
Property and equipment, net:

Mexico $ 815  35 % $ 793  35 %
U.S. 376  16 % 334  15 %
China 293  13 % 307  14 %
Malaysia 163  7 % 142  6 %
Hungary 140  6 % 124  5 %
Brazil 83  4 % 88  4 %
Other 460  19 % 481  21 %

$ 2,330  $ 2,269 
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We believe that the combination of our extensive open innovation platform solutions, design and engineering services, advanced supply chain
management solutions and services, significant scale and global presence, and manufacturing campuses, including many in low-cost geographic areas provide
us with a competitive advantage and strong differentiation in the market for designing, manufacturing and servicing products for leading multinational and
regional customers. Specifically, we offer our customers the ability to simplify their global product development, manufacturing process, and after-sales
services, and enable them to meaningfully accelerate their time to market and cost savings.

Our operating results are affected by a number of factors, including the following:

• global economic conditions, including inflationary pressures, currency volatility, stagflation, slower economic growth or recession, high or
rising interest rates, trade conflicts, tariffs, geopolitical uncertainty and instability in financial markets;

• the mix of the manufacturing services we are providing, the number, size, and complexity of new manufacturing programs, the degree to
which we utilize our manufacturing capacity, seasonal demand, and other factors;

• the effects on our business when our customers are not successful in marketing their products, or when their products do not gain widespread
commercial acceptance;

• our ability to achieve commercially viable production yields and to manufacture components in commercial quantities to the performance
specifications demanded by our customers;

• the effects on our business due to certain customers' products having short product lifecycles, our customers' ability to cancel or delay orders
or change production quantities or locations, the short-term nature of our customers' commitments and rapid changes in demand;

• the effects that current credit and market conditions could have on the liquidity and financial condition of our customers and suppliers,
including any impact on their ability to meet their contractual obligations;

• the impacts on our business due to supply chain issues, including component shortages, disruptions in transportation or other supply chain
related constraints including disruptions in international commerce as a result of attacks on shipping vessels in the Red Sea;

• integration of acquired businesses and facilities;

• increased labor costs due to adverse labor conditions in the markets we operate;

• changes in tax legislation;

• changes in trade regulations and treaties; and

• exposure to infectious disease, epidemics and pandemics on our business operations in geographic locations impacted by an outbreak and on
the business operations of our customers and suppliers.

We also are subject to other risks as outlined in Item 1A, "Risk Factors".

Net sales for fiscal year 2025 decreased approximately 2%, or $0.6 billion, to $25.8 billion from the prior year. Net sales for our FAS segment increased
$0.2 billion, or 1%, from the prior year, primarily driven by a 1% increase in our CEC business, as strength in cloud outweighed softer demand in non-cloud. In
addition, our CEC business benefited from an approximate $1 billion increase in customer buy-sell activity, which increases gross profit, but is accounted for as
a reduction of the transaction price, and therefore, excluded from net sales. In customer buy-sell activities, the Company procures components from a customer
to use in manufacturing and/or to provide services such as assembly, transformation, and integration. Later, it sells the finished product back to that customer or
its end customers. The results of the FAS segment also reflected a 15% increase in our Consumer Devices business from stronger demand, offset by a 4%
decrease in our Lifestyle business due to softer demand. Net sales for our FRS segment decreased $0.8 billion, or 6%, from the prior year, primarily driven by a
decrease in net sales of 10% in our Industrial business which was driven by weaker demand in renewables, clean energy and industrial devices partially offset
by strong growth and the Crown acquisition in critical power offerings, a 3% decrease in our Automotive business and a 3% decrease in our Health Solutions
business, both due to lower customer demand. Our fiscal year
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2025 gross profit totaled $2.2 billion, representing an increase of $0.3 billion, or 16%, from the prior year. The increase was primarily driven by an increase in
gross profit margin due to improved product mix, operational efficiencies and lower restructuring charges. Our net income from continuing operations totaled
$0.8 billion, representing a decrease of $34 million, or 4%, compared to fiscal year 2024, due to the factors explained above net of a $0.2 billion provision for
income taxes in fiscal 2025 versus a $0.2 billion income tax benefit in fiscal 2024 primarily attributed to the release of a U.S. deferred tax asset valuation
allowance occurring during fiscal year 2024, and not reoccurring in fiscal year 2025.

Cash provided by operating activities increased by approximately $0.2 billion in fiscal 2025 as compared with fiscal 2024, as a result of higher
profitability (after consideration of non-cash deferred income taxes) and favorable working capital movements. Refer to "Liquidity and Capital Resources"
section for further details of changes in net working capital.

We believe adjusted free cash flow is an important liquidity metric because it measures, during a given period, the amount of cash generated that is
available to repay debt obligations, make investments, fund acquisitions, repurchase company shares and for certain other activities. Our adjusted free cash
flow is defined as cash from operations, less net purchases of property and equipment to present adjusted cash flows on a consistent basis for investor
transparency. Our adjusted free cash flow was $1.1 billion and $0.8 billion for fiscal years 2025 and 2024, respectively. Refer to the Liquidity and Capital
Resources section for the adjusted free cash flows reconciliation to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure of cash flows from operations. Cash
used in investing activities increased by approximately $0.3 billion to a cash outflow of $0.8 billion for fiscal year 2025, compared with a cash outflow of $0.5
billion for fiscal year 2024, primarily due to an increase of approximately $0.4 billion in cash paid for acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired in fiscal
year 2025. Cash used in financing activities decreased by approximately $0.8 billion to a cash outflow of $0.8 billion for fiscal year 2025, primarily driven by
an approximately $0.5 billion increase in cash received from bank borrowings and long-term debt, along with a $0.4 billion decrease in repayments of bank
borrowings and long-term debt in fiscal year 2025 compared to fiscal year 2024.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP" or
"GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Due to global economic
conditions, including the impact of ongoing trade conflicts and tariffs, and geopolitical conflicts (including the Russian invasion of Ukraine and the Israel-
Hamas war), there has been and we expect there will continue to be uncertainty and disruption in the global economy and financial markets. We have made
estimates and assumptions taking into consideration certain possible impacts due to the foregoing factors. These estimates may change, as new events occur,
and additional information is obtained. Actual results may differ from previously estimated amounts, and such differences may be material to the consolidated
financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions are reflected in the period they occur.

We believe the following critical accounting estimates affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements. For further discussion of our significant accounting policies, refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data."

Revenue Recognition

In determining the appropriate amount of revenue to recognize, we apply the following steps: (i) identify the contracts with the customers; (ii) identify
performance obligations in the contracts; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations per the
contracts; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) we satisfy a performance obligation. Further, we assess whether control of the product or services promised
under the contract is transferred to the customer at a point in time (PIT) or over time (OT). We are first required to evaluate whether our contracts meet the
criteria for OT recognition. We have determined that for a portion of our contracts, we are manufacturing products for which there is no alternative use (due to
the unique nature of the customer-specific product and intellectual property restrictions) and we have an enforceable right to payment including a reasonable
profit for work-in-progress inventory with respect to these contracts. For certain other contracts, the Company’s performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Company performs under the contract. As a result, revenue is recognized under these contracts OT based on the cost-to-cost
method as it best depicts the transfer of control to the customer based on the ratio of costs incurred to date as compared to the total estimated costs at
completion of the performance obligation. For all other contracts that do not meet these criteria, we recognize revenue when we have transferred control of the
related manufactured products which generally occurs upon delivery and passage of title to the customer. Service contract revenue is recognized on an overtime
basis using the output method. Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further
details.

Customer Contracts and Related Obligations

Certain of our customer agreements include potential price adjustments which may result in variable consideration. These price adjustments include, but
are not limited to, sharing of cost savings, committed price reductions, material margins earned
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over the period that are contractually required to be paid to the customers, rebates, refunds tied to performance metrics such as on-time delivery, and other
periodic pricing resets that may be refundable to customers. We estimate the variable consideration related to these price adjustments as part of the total
transaction price and recognize revenue in accordance with the pattern applicable to the performance obligation, subject to a constraint. We constrain the
amount of revenues recognized for these contractual provisions based on our best estimate of the amount which will not result in a significant reversal of
revenue in a future period. We determine the amounts to be recognized based on the amount of potential refunds required by the contract, historical experience
and other surrounding facts and circumstances. Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data" for further details.

Inventory Valuation

Our inventories are stated at the lower of cost (on a first-in, first-out basis) or net realizable value. Our industry is characterized by rapid technological
change, short-term customer commitments and rapid changes in demand. We purchase our inventory based on forecasted demand and anticipated component
shortages, and we estimate write downs for excess and obsolete inventory based on our regular reviews of inventory quantities on hand, and the latest forecasts
of product demand and production requirements from our customers. If actual market conditions or our customers' product demands are less favorable than
those projected, additional write downs may be required. In addition, unanticipated changes in the liquidity or financial position of our customers and/or
changes in economic conditions may require additional write downs for inventories due to our customers' inability to fulfill their contractual obligations with
regards to inventory procured to fulfill customer demand.

Carrying Value of Long-Lived Assets

We review property and equipment and acquired amortizable intangible assets for impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the
asset group exceeds its fair value. Recoverability of property and equipment and acquired amortizable intangible assets are measured by comparing their
carrying amount to the projected cash flows the assets are expected to generate. If such asset groups are determined to be impaired, the impairment loss
recognized, if any, is the amount by which the carrying amount of the property and equipment and acquired amortizable intangible assets exceeds fair value.
Our judgments regarding projected cash flows for an extended period of time and the fair value of assets may be impacted by changes in market conditions, the
general business environment and other factors including geopolitical conflicts (including the Russian invasion of Ukraine and the Israel-Hamas war), which
remain highly uncertain and unpredictable. To the extent our estimates relating to cash flows and fair value of assets change adversely we may have to
recognize material impairment charges in the future.

Business Combinations

In business combinations, the fair value of the net assets acquired and the results of the acquired businesses are included in the Company's consolidated
financial statements from the acquisition dates forward. The Company is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and results of operations during the reporting period. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things, the fair value of acquired net
operating assets, property and equipment, intangible assets and related deferred tax balances, useful lives of plant and equipment and amortizable lives for
acquired intangible assets. Any excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the identified assets and liabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill
and if the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the purchase consideration a gain on bargain purchase is recognized.

The Company estimates the preliminary fair value of acquired assets and liabilities as of the date of acquisition based on information available at that
time. Contingent consideration is recorded at fair value as of the date of the acquisition with subsequent adjustments recorded in earnings. The valuation of
acquired assets and liabilities is subject to further management review and may change between the preliminary allocation and end of the one-year purchase
price allocation period. Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further detail on
our acquisitions.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill may
not be recoverable. Recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting unit level by comparing the reporting unit's carrying amount, including goodwill, to
the fair value of the reporting unit, which is measured based upon, among other factors, market multiples for comparable companies as well as a discounted
cash flow analysis. These approaches use significant unobservable inputs, or Level 3 inputs, as defined by the fair value hierarchy and require us to make
various judgmental assumptions about sales, operating margins, growth rates and discount rates which consider our budgets, business plans and economic
projections, and are believed to reflect market participant views. Some of the inherent estimates and assumptions used in determining fair value of the reporting
units are outside the control of management, including interest
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rates, cost of capital, tax rates, market EBITDA comparables and credit ratings. While we believe we have made reasonable estimates and assumptions to
calculate the fair value of the reporting units, it is possible a material change could occur. If our actual results are not consistent with our estimates and
assumptions used to calculate fair value, it could result in material impairments of our goodwill. Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in
Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further detail on our goodwill.

Income Taxes

Our deferred income tax assets represent temporary differences between the carrying amount and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities, which will
result in deductible amounts in future years, including net operating loss carry forwards. Based on estimates, the carrying value of our net deferred tax assets
assumes that it is more likely than not that we will be able to generate sufficient future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions to realize these deferred
income tax assets. Our judgments regarding future profitability may change due to future market conditions, changes in U.S. or international tax laws and other
factors. If these estimates and related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to increase or decrease our valuation allowance against deferred tax
assets previously recognized, resulting in additional or lesser income tax expense.

We are regularly subject to tax return audits and examinations by various taxing jurisdictions around the world, and there can be no assurance that the
final determination of any tax examinations will not be materially different than that which is reflected in our income tax provisions and accruals. Should
additional taxes be assessed as a result of a current or future examination, there could be a material adverse effect on our tax position, operating results,
financial position and cash flows. Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for
further discussion of our tax position.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain statements of operations data expressed as a percentage of net sales (amounts may not
sum due to rounding). The financial information and the discussion below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto included in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".

The data below, and discussion that follows, represents our results from operations, and relative percentages.

 
Fiscal Year Ended

March 31,
  2025 2024

Net sales 100.0 % 100.0 %
Cost of sales 91.4  92.4 
Restructuring charges 0.2  0.5 

Gross profit 8.4  7.1 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3.5  3.5 
Intangible amortization 0.3  0.3 
Restructuring charges 0.1  0.1 

Operating income 4.5  3.2 
Interest expense 0.8  0.8 
Interest income 0.2  0.2 
Other charges (income), net (0.1) 0.2 
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates —  0.1 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 4.0  2.5 
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 0.8  (0.8)

Net income from continuing operations 3.2  3.3 
   Net income from discontinued operations, net of tax —  1.4 

Net income 3.2  4.7 
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest and redeemable noncontrolling interest —  0.9 
Net income attributable to Flex Ltd. 3.2 % 3.8 %

Net sales
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The following table sets forth our net sales by segment, and their relative percentages:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024

Net sales: (In millions)

Flex Agility Solutions $ 14,074  55 % $ 13,923  53 %
Flex Reliability Solutions 11,739  45 % 12,492  47 %

$ 25,813  $ 26,415 

Net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 totaled $25.8 billion, representing a decrease of approximately $0.6 billion, or 2%, from $26.4 billion
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. Net sales for our FAS segment increased $0.2 billion, or 1%, from fiscal year 2024, mainly due to a 1% increase in
our CEC business as strength in cloud outweighed softer demand in non-cloud. In addition, the CEC business benefited from an approximate $1 billion
increase in customer buy-sell activity, which increases gross profit, but is accounted for as a reduction of the transaction price, and therefore, excluded from net
sales. The results of the FAS segment also reflected a 15% increase in our Consumer Devices business from stronger demand, offset by a 4% decrease in our
Lifestyle business due to softer demand. Net sales in our FRS segment decreased $0.8 billion, or 6%, from fiscal year 2024, driven primarily by a decrease in
net sales of 10% in our Industrial business which was driven by weaker demand in renewables, clean energy and industrial devices partially offset by strong
growth and the Crown acquisition in critical power offerings, a 3% decrease in our Automotive business, and a 3% decrease in our Health Solution business,
primarily driven by softening demand in medical equipment, partially offset by increased demand for medical devices. The factors described above include the
impact of certain customers transitioning from point in time to over time revenue recognition which increased net sales by approximately 1% for the year ended
March 31, 2025. This transition also contributed to an increase in contract assets as of March 31, 2025.

Net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 increased $0.4 billion to $12.7 billion in the Americas, decreased $0.8 billion to $7.7 billion in Asia,
and decreased $0.2 billion to $5.5 billion in Europe.

Our ten largest customers during fiscal years 2025 and 2024 accounted for approximately 44% and 37% of net sales, respectively. We have made
substantial efforts to maintain a diverse portfolio which allows us to operate at scale in many different industries, and, as a result, no customer accounted for
greater than 10% of net sales in fiscal year 2025 or 2024.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales is affected by a number of factors, including the number and size of new manufacturing programs, product mix, labor cost fluctuations by
region, component costs and availability and capacity utilization.

Cost of sales during fiscal year 2025 totaled $23.6 billion, representing a decrease of approximately $0.8 billion, or 3% from $24.4 billion during fiscal
year 2024. The decrease in cost of sales is more than the decreased consolidated sales of $0.6 billion, or 2%, as a result of favorable mix with increases in
revenue in higher margin cloud and power products as well as cost actions taken during the period. Cost of sales in FAS decreased $45 million, less than 1%,
from fiscal year 2024 and cost of sales in FRS for fiscal year 2025 decreased $0.8 billion, or approximately 7%, from fiscal year 2024, as a result of decreased
sales and product mix.

Gross profit

Gross profit is affected by a fluctuation in cost of sales elements as outlined above and further by a number of factors, including product lifecycles, unit
volumes, product mix, pricing, competition, new product introductions, and the expansion or consolidation of manufacturing facilities, as well as specific
restructuring activities initiated from time to time. The flexible design of our manufacturing processes allows us to manufacture a broad range of products in
our facilities and better utilize our manufacturing capacity across our diverse geographic footprint and service customers from all markets. In the case of new
programs, profitability normally lags revenue growth due to product start-up costs, lower manufacturing program volumes in the start-up phase, operational
inefficiencies, and under-absorbed overhead. Gross margin for these programs often improves over time as manufacturing volumes increase, as our utilization
rates and overhead absorption improve, and as we increase the level of manufacturing services content. As a result of these various factors, our gross margin
varies from period to period.

Gross profit during fiscal year 2025 increased $0.3 billion to $2.2 billion, or 8.4% of net sales, from $1.9 billion, or 7.1% of net sales, during fiscal year
2024. The increase in gross profit during fiscal year 2025 in spite of lower sales was due to the factors discussed above as well as lower restructuring costs in
fiscal year 2025.

Segment income
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An operating segment's performance is evaluated based on its pre-tax operating contribution, or segment income. Segment income is defined as net sales
less cost of sales, and segment selling, general and administrative expenses, and does not include amortization of intangibles, stock-based compensation,
certain restructuring charges, customer related asset impairment, legal and other, interest expense, interest income, other charges (income), net, and equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. A portion of depreciation is allocated to the respective segments, together with other general corporate, research and
development and administrative expenses.

The following table sets forth segment income and margins. Segment margins in the table below may not recalculate exactly due to rounding.

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

  2025 2024

  (In millions)

Segment income:
Flex Agility Solutions $ 854  6.1 % $ 669  4.8 %
Flex Reliability Solutions 684  5.8 % 666  5.3 %

FAS segment margin increased 130 basis points, to 6.1% for fiscal year 2025, from 4.8% for fiscal year 2024. The margin increase during the period was
driven by strong execution, product mix and cost actions taken.

FRS segment margin increased 50 basis points, to 5.8% for fiscal year 2025, from 5.3% for fiscal year 2024. The margin increase in the FRS segment was
primarily driven by increased productivity, favorable mix and cost actions taken.

Restructuring charges

During fiscal year 2025, we committed to targeted restructuring activities to improve operational efficiency by reducing excess workforce capacity. As a
result, we recognized approximately $86 million of restructuring charges, primarily related to employee severance. During fiscal year 2024, we recognized
approximately $175 million of restructuring charges, also primarily related to employee severance.

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further discussion of our
restructuring activities.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses ("SG&A") totaled $904 million, during fiscal year 2025, compared to $922 million during fiscal year 2024,
decreasing by $18 million and representing no significant change as SG&A remained consistent at 3.5% of net sales.

Intangible amortization

Amortization of intangible assets were $70 million in each of fiscal years 2025 and 2024, representing no significant change from fiscal year 2024, due
to amortization related to existing intangibles decreasing year over year being offset by amortization related to intangibles acquired from various business
acquisitions occurring in the second half of fiscal year 2025.

Interest expense

Interest expense was $218 million during fiscal year 2025, compared to $207 million during fiscal year 2024, increasing $11 million primarily due to the
issuance of $0.5 billion in senior notes during fiscal year 2025.

Interest income

Interest income was $61 million during fiscal year 2025, compared to $56 million during fiscal year 2024, increasing $5 million primarily due to
increased cash deposits.

Other charges (income), net

During fiscal year 2025, we recorded $14 million of other income, net, compared to $44 million of other charges, net, in fiscal year 2024. The increase in
other income, net was primarily driven by a gain on bargain purchase of $19 million as a result of an acquisition occurring during the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2025. Additionally, losses on foreign exchange items in fiscal year 2025 decreased from $24 million to $10 million compared to fiscal year 2024.
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Refer to notes 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further discussion of our
other charges (income), net and business acquisitions & divestitures.

Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates

During fiscal year 2025, we recorded $3 million of equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates, compared to $8 million of equity in earnings of
unconsolidated affiliates during fiscal year 2024. The decrease during fiscal year 2025 was primarily due to lower investment fund gains versus fiscal year
2024, resulting from overarching market conditions that impacted investment fund values during the fiscal year.

Income taxes

We work to ensure that we accrue and pay the appropriate amount of income taxes according to the laws and regulations of each jurisdiction in which we
operate. Certain of our subsidiaries have, at various times, been granted tax relief in their respective countries, resulting in lower income taxes than would
otherwise be the case under ordinary tax rates. The consolidated effective tax rates were 18.1% and (30.9)% for the fiscal years 2025 and 2024, respectively.
The effective rate varies from the Singapore statutory rate of 17.0% in each year as a result of the following items:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024

Income taxes based on domestic statutory rates 17.0 % 17.0 %
Effect of jurisdictional tax rate differential 1.3 % 10.3 %
Change in unrecognized tax benefit (1.9)% (1.4)%
Change in valuation allowance (3.6)% (102.9)%
Foreign exchange movement on prior year taxes recoverable 0.4 % (0.2)%
Liability for undistributed earnings 0.6 % 20.3 %
Global intangible low-taxes income (GILTI) / Subpart F income 0.9 % 1.9 %
Nextracker related transactions gains — % 17.2 %
Earnings from partnership — % 7.0 %
U.S. state taxes 1.0 % 1.5 %
Excess compensation (Section 162(m)) 1.6 % 2.3 %
Other 0.8 % (3.9)%
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes 18.1 % (30.9)%

A number of countries in which the Company is located allow for tax holidays or provide other tax incentives to attract and retain business. In general,
these holidays were secured based on the nature, size and location of the Company’s operations. The effect of tax holidays and tax incentives we received
primarily for our subsidiaries in China, Malaysia, Netherlands, Costa Rica, and Israel was $17 million and $20 million in fiscal years 2025 and 2024,
respectively. Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further discussion. We
generate most of our revenues and profits from operations outside of Singapore.

We are regularly subject to tax return audits and examinations by various taxing jurisdictions around the world, and there can be no assurance that the
final determination of any tax examinations will not be materially different than that which is reflected in our income tax provisions and accruals. Should
additional taxes be assessed as a result of a current or future examination, there could be a material adverse effect on our effective tax rate, tax position,
operating results, financial position and cash flows.

The OECD Pillar Two Global Anti-Base Erosion ("GloBE") model rules, issued under the OECD Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion and Profit
Shifting, introduce a global minimum tax of 15% applicable to multinational enterprise groups with consolidated financial statement revenue in excess of €750
million. Numerous foreign jurisdictions have already enacted tax legislation based on the GloBE rules, with some effective as early as January 1, 2024. As of
March 31, 2025, we recognized a nominal income tax expense for Pillar Two GloBE minimum tax. However, Singapore (our parent company jurisdiction) has
enacted OECD Pillar 2 legislation which will be applicable to our fiscal year 2026, which we believe will adversely impact our effective tax rate. The amount
of the future impact will be dependent upon a number of factors, including the changing jurisdictional mix of earnings, future legislative enactments in other
jurisdictions, and new OECD guidance. The Company will continue to monitor the evolving tax legislation and OECD guidance, along with its impact to the
effective tax rate and cash flows.
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On August 16, 2022, the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 ("IRA") was enacted into law, which includes a new corporate minimum tax, a stock repurchase
excise tax, numerous green energy credits, other tax provisions, and significantly increased enforcement resources. While detailed regulations on some aspects
of the act are still outstanding, we do not anticipate a material impact to our consolidated financial statements from these provisions.

Net income from continuing operations

Net income from continuing operations was $838 million during fiscal year 2025, compared to $872 million during fiscal year 2024, primarily driven by
the same factors attributable to income from continuing operations before income taxes and the release of U.S. deferred tax asset valuation allowances in fiscal
year 2024 as outlined above.

Net income from discontinued operations

Net income from discontinued operations was zero in fiscal year 2025, compared to $373 million in fiscal year 2024. Net income from discontinued
operations was solely related to our Nextracker business that was spun off during fiscal year 2024.

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest was zero in fiscal year 2025, compared to $239 million during fiscal year 2024, primarily driven by the
same factors noted in the discussion above for net income from discontinued operations.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We continuously evaluate our ability to meet our obligations over the next 12 months and have proactively adjusted our capital structure to improve
maturities and liquidity. We expect that our current financial condition, including our liquidity sources, are adequate to fund current and future commitments.
As of March 31, 2025, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $2.3 billion and bank and other borrowings of approximately $3.7 billion. We have a
$2.5 billion revolving credit facility that is due to mature in July 2027 (the "2027 Credit Facility"), under which we had no borrowings outstanding as of
March 31, 2025. In March 2025 we entered into a $500 million delayed draw term loan credit agreement, under which we had no borrowings outstanding as of
March 31, 2025. Borrowings under the delayed draw term loan may be used for working capital, capital expenditures, refinancing of current debt, and other
general corporate purposes. Refer to note 9 to the condensed consolidated financial statement for details on the 2027 Credit Facility and the delayed draw term
loan. As of March 31, 2025, we were in compliance with the covenants under all of our credit facilities and indentures and expect to remain in compliance with
the covenants in the upcoming 12 months.

In fiscal year 2024, we implemented a 10b5-1 bond buyback program, aiming to repurchase certain outstanding bonds issued by us. During the twelve-
month period ended March 31, 2025, we repurchased approximately $53 million of our 4.750% Notes due June 2025, resulting in an immaterial gain in our
consolidated statement of operations.

Our cash balances are held in numerous locations throughout the world. As of March 31, 2025, approximately 81% of our cash and cash equivalents were
held by foreign subsidiaries outside of Singapore. Although substantially all of the amounts held outside of Singapore could be repatriated, under current laws,
a significant amount could be subject to income tax withholdings. We provide for tax liabilities on these amounts for financial statement purposes, except for
certain of our foreign earnings that are considered indefinitely reinvested outside of Singapore (approximately $0.8 billion as of March 31, 2025). Repatriation
could result in an additional income tax payment; however, our intent is to permanently reinvest these funds outside of Singapore and our current plans do not
demonstrate a need to repatriate them to fund our operations in jurisdictions outside of where they are held. Where local restrictions prevent an efficient
intercompany transfer of funds, our intent is that cash balances would remain outside of Singapore and we would meet our liquidity needs through ongoing
cash flows, external borrowings, or both.

Fiscal Year 2025

Cash provided by operating activities was $1.5 billion during fiscal year 2025. The total cash provided by operating activities resulted primarily from
$0.8 billion of net income for the period plus $0.8 billion of non-cash charges such as depreciation, amortization, non-cash lease expense, restructuring and
impairment charges, deferred income taxes and stock-based compensation. Non-cash charges were in line with the prior year with the exception of deferred
income taxes that were significantly impacted in fiscal year 2024 by factors outlined in the income tax section above. These cash inflows of $1.6 billion were
partially offset by a net change in our operating assets and liabilities of $0.1 billion as the reduction in inventory and increase in payables compared to fiscal
year 2024 were offset by increases in accounts receivable, contract assets and a decrease in working capital advances.

We believe net working capital is a key metric that measures our liquidity. Net working capital is calculated as current assets less current liabilities. Net
working capital decreased by $1.5 billion to $3.0 billion as of March 31, 2025 from $4.5
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billion as of March 31, 2024. This decrease was primarily driven by a $1.2 billion increase in the current portion of long-term debt as two notes will mature
within twelve months of March 31, 2025. Additional factors include a $1.1 billion decrease in inventory and a $0.7 billion increase in accounts payable being
partially offset by a $0.6 billion increase in accounts receivable, net, a $0.4 billion increase in contract assets and working capital advances decreasing by $0.6
billion as inventory levels reduced.

Cash used in investing activities totaled $0.8 billion during fiscal year 2025. This was primarily driven by $0.4 billion of cash paid for the acquisitions of
the Orangeburg manufacturing facility, Crown and JetCool, net of cash acquired, and $0.4 billion of capital expenditures for property and equipment to
continue expanding capabilities and capacity in support of our businesses. Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data" for further discussion of our business acquisitions & divestitures.

Cash used in financing activities was $0.8 billion during fiscal year 2025. This was primarily driven by $1.3 billion of cash paid for the repurchase of our
ordinary shares, partially offset by $0.5 billion of proceeds from borrowings. Refer to note 9 and note 20 to the consolidated financial statement in Item 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional details.

Fiscal Year 2024

Cash provided by operating activities was $1.3 billion during fiscal year 2024. The total cash provided by operating activities resulted primarily from
$1.2 billion of net income for the period plus $0.3 billion of non-cash charges such as depreciation, amortization, non-cash lease expense, restructuring and
impairment charges, deferred income taxes and stock-based compensation. Depreciation expense was $0.4 billion and relatively consistent with prior years.
These additions were offset by a net change in our operating assets and liabilities of $0.3 billion.

We believe net working capital is a key metric that measures our liquidity. Net working capital is calculated as current assets less current liabilities. Net
working capital decreased by $0.7 billion to $4.5 billion as of March 31, 2024 from $5.2 billion as of March 31, 2023. This decrease was primarily driven by a
$1.2 billion decrease in inventories, a $0.5 billion decrease in accounts receivable, net and derecognition of $0.4 billion of Nextracker's working capital
following the spin-off, partially offset by a $1.3 billion decrease in accounts payables.

Cash used in investing activities totaled $0.5 billion during fiscal year 2024. This was primarily driven by $0.5 billion of capital expenditures for
property and equipment to continue expanding capabilities and capacity in support of our CEC, Automotive, and Industrial businesses.

Cash used in financing activities was $1.7 billion during fiscal year 2024. This was primarily driven by $1.3 billion of cash paid for the repurchase of our
ordinary shares and $0.4 billion net cash for repayments of bank borrowings and long-term debt, as cash received from the sale of Nextracker shares was offset
by the capital reduction from the Nextracker spin-off and other financing items. Refer to note 9 and note 20 to the consolidated financial statement in Item 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional details.

Adjusted Free Cash Flow

We believe adjusted free cash flow is an important liquidity metric because it measures, during a given period, the amount of cash generated that is
available to repay debt obligations, make investments, fund acquisitions, repurchase company shares and for certain other activities. Our adjusted free cash
flow is defined as cash from operations, less net purchases of property and equipment to present adjusted free cash flows on a consistent basis for investors.
Our adjusted free cash flow was $1.1 billion and $0.8 billion for fiscal years 2025 and 2024, respectively. Adjusted free cash flow is not a measure of liquidity
under U.S. GAAP, and may not be defined and calculated by other companies in the same manner. Adjusted free cash flow should not be considered in
isolation or as an alternative to net cash provided by operating activities. Adjusted free cash flows reconcile to the most directly comparable GAAP financial
measure of cash flows from operations as follows:

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
  2025 2024
  (In millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,505  $ 1,326 
Purchases of property and equipment (438) (530)
Proceeds from the disposition of property and equipment 15  25 
Adjusted free cash flow $ 1,082  $ 821 
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Our cash balances are generated and held in numerous locations throughout the world. Liquidity is affected by many factors, some of which are based on
normal ongoing operations of the business and some of which arise from fluctuations related to global economics and markets. Local government regulations
may restrict our ability to move cash balances to meet cash needs under certain circumstances; however, any current restrictions are not material. We do not
currently expect such regulations and restrictions to impact our ability to pay vendors and conduct operations throughout the global organization. We believe
that our existing cash balances, together with anticipated cash flows from operations and borrowings available under our credit facilities, will be sufficient to
fund our operations through at least the next twelve months and beyond.

Future liquidity needs will depend on fluctuations in levels of inventory, accounts receivable and accounts payable, the timing of capital expenditures for
new equipment, the extent to which we utilize operating leases for new facilities and equipment, and the levels of shipments and changes in the volume of
customer orders.

We maintain a commercial paper program which provides short-term financing under which there were no borrowings outstanding as of March 31, 2025.

Historically, we have funded operations from cash and cash equivalents generated from operations, proceeds from public offerings of debt securities,
bank debt and lease financings. We may enter into debt and equity financings, sales of accounts receivable and lease transactions to fund acquisitions and
anticipated growth as needed. During fiscal year 2025 and 2024, we received approximately $4.0 billion and $3.6 billion, respectively, from other sales of
receivables under our factoring programs. As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the outstanding balance on receivables sold for cash was $0.7 billion and $0.8
billion, respectively, under our accounts receivable factoring programs, which were removed from accounts receivable balances in our consolidated balance
sheets.

Historically we have been successful in refinancing and extending the maturity dates on our term loans and credit facilities. In July 2022, the Company
entered into a new $2.5 billion credit agreement which matures in July 2027 and consists of a $2.5 billion revolving credit facility with a sub-limit of $360
million available for swing line loans, and a sub-limit of $175 million available for the issuance of letters of credit. In August 2024, the Company issued
$500 million of 5.250% Notes due 2032. The Company received proceeds of approximately $496 million, net of discount and certain issuance costs. Refer to
note 9 to the condensed consolidated financial statement for details.

The sale or issuance of equity or convertible debt securities could result in dilution to current shareholders. Further, we may issue debt securities that
have rights and privileges senior to those of holders of ordinary shares, and the terms of this debt could impose restrictions on operations and could increase
debt service obligations. This increased indebtedness could limit our flexibility as a result of debt service requirements and restrictive covenants, potentially
affect our credit ratings, and may limit our ability to access additional capital or execute our business strategy. Any downgrades in credit ratings could
adversely affect our ability to borrow as a result of more restrictive borrowing terms. We continue to assess our capital structure and evaluate the merits of
redeploying available cash to reduce existing debt or repurchase ordinary shares.

Under our current share repurchase program, our Board of Directors authorized repurchases of our outstanding ordinary shares for up to $1.7 billion in
accordance with the share purchase mandate approved by our shareholders at the date of the most recent Annual General Meeting which was held on August 8,
2024. During fiscal year 2025, we paid $1.3 billion to repurchase shares under the current and prior repurchase plans at an average price of $32.66 per share.
As of March 31, 2025, shares in the aggregate amount of $1.0 billion were available to be repurchased under the current plan.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

In March 2025, we entered into a $500 million delayed draw term loan credit agreement, under which we had no borrowings outstanding as of March 31,
2025. Borrowings under the delayed draw term loan may be used for working capital, capital expenditures, refinancing of current debt, and other general
corporate purposes. All borrowings under the delayed draw term loan will become due on December 31, 2027. Interest is based on either (a) a Term SOFR-
based formula plus a margin of 87.5 basis points to 150 basis points, depending on the Company’s credit ratings, or (b) a Base Rate formula plus a margin of
0.0 basis point to 50.0 basis points, depending on the Company's credit ratings. Refer to note 9 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data" for details of our debt obligations.

In addition. we have leased certain of our property and equipment under finance lease commitments, and certain of our facilities and equipment under
operating lease commitments. The following table summarizes current and non-current material cash requirements as of March 31, 2025 including future
payments due under our debt including finance leases and related interest obligations and operating leases (amounts may not sum due to rounding):
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  Total 1 Year or Less 2 - 3 Years 4 - 5 Years
Greater Than

5 Years
  (In millions)

Contractual Obligations:          
Bank borrowings, long-term debt and finance lease
obligations:          

Bank borrowings and long-term debt $ 3,706  $ 1,209  $ 398  $ 709  $ 1,390 
Interest on long-term debt obligations 642  146  242  174  80 
Operating leases, net of subleases 670  158  232  146  134 
Restructuring costs 51  51  —  —  — 

Total contractual obligations $ 5,069  $ 1,564  $ 872  $ 1,029  $ 1,604 

We also have outstanding firm purchase orders with certain suppliers for the purchase of inventory, which are not included in the table above. The
majority of the purchase obligations are generally short-term in nature. We generally do not enter into non-cancelable purchase orders for materials until we
receive a corresponding production forecast from our customers. Our purchase obligations can fluctuate significantly from period to period and can materially
impact our future operating asset and liability balances, and our future working capital requirements. We intend to use our existing cash balances, together with
anticipated cash flows from operations to fund our existing and future contractual obligations.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for recent accounting
pronouncements.
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ITEM 7A.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

INTEREST RATE RISK

A portion of our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to our highly liquid investment portfolio, with maturities of three months or
less from original dates of purchase and are classified as cash equivalents on our consolidated balance sheet. We do not use derivative financial instruments in
our highly liquid investment portfolio. We place cash and cash equivalents with various major financial institutions and highly rated money market accounts.
Our investment policy has strict guidelines focusing on preservation of capital. The portfolio is comprised of various instruments including term deposits with
banks, marketable securities and money market accounts. Our cash is principally invested in the U.S. dollar and China renminbi serving as a natural hedge of
our renminbi denominated costs. As of March 31, 2025, the outstanding amount in the highly liquid investment portfolio was $1.5 billion, the largest
components of which were U.S. dollar, Indian rupee, Brazilian real and Hong Kong dollar denominated money market accounts with an average return of
4.5%. A hypothetical 10% change in interest rates would not be expected to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows
over the next fiscal year.

As of March 31, 2025, the approximate average fair value of our debt outstanding under our Notes due June 2025, February 2026, January 2028, June
2029, May 2030 and January 2032 was 99.8% of the face value of the debt obligations based on broker trading prices in active markets.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK

We transact business in various foreign countries and are, therefore, subject to risk of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. We have established a
foreign currency risk management policy to manage this risk. To the extent possible, we manage our foreign currency exposure by evaluating and using non-
financial techniques, such as currency of invoice, leading and lagging payments and receivables management. In addition, we may borrow in various foreign
currencies and enter into short-term and long-term foreign currency derivative contracts, including forward, swap, and option contracts to hedge only those
currency exposures associated with certain assets and liabilities, mainly accounts receivable, accounts payable, debt, and cash flows denominated in non-
functional currencies.

We endeavor to maintain a partial or fully hedged position for certain transaction exposures. These exposures are primarily, but not limited to, revenues,
customer and vendor payments and inter-company balances in currencies other than the functional currency of the operating entity. The credit risk of our
foreign currency derivative contracts is minimized since all contracts are with large financial institutions and accordingly, fair value adjustments related to the
credit risk of the counter-party financial institutions were not material. The gains and losses on foreign currency derivative contracts generally offset the losses
and gains on the assets, liabilities and transactions hedged. The fair value of currency derivative contracts is reported on the balance sheet. The aggregate
notional amount of outstanding contracts as of March 31, 2025 amounted to $7.9 billion and the recorded fair values of the associated assets and liabilities were
not material to the Company's consolidated financial position. The majority of these foreign exchange contracts expire in less than three months. They will
settle primarily in the Brazilian real, Hong Kong dollar, China renminbi, Euro, Malaysian ringgit, Mexican peso, and U.S. dollar.

Based on our overall currency rate exposures as of March 31, 2025, including the derivative financial instruments intended to hedge the nonfunctional
currency-denominated monetary assets, liabilities and cash flows, and other factors, a 10% appreciation or depreciation of the U.S. dollar from its cross-
functional rates would not be expected, in the aggregate, to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows in the near-
term.
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ITEM 8.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Flex Ltd., Singapore

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Flex Ltd. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, redeemable noncontrolling interest and shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31, 2025, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2025, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2025, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated May 21, 2025 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to
be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on
the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Revenue - Variable Consideration and Associated Customer-Related Accruals for Pricing Adjustments - Refer to Notes 2 and 4 to the Financial Statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

Certain of the Company’s customer agreements include potential price adjustments which may result in variable consideration. These price adjustments include
committed price reductions, material margins earned over the period that are contractually required to be paid to the customers, and other periodic pricing
resets that may be refundable to customers. The Company recognizes estimates of this variable consideration that are not expected to result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future, primarily based on the amount of potential refunds required by the contract, historical experience and other surrounding facts
and circumstances.

We identified the recognition of variable consideration and the associated customer-related accruals for pricing adjustments as a critical audit matter due to the
judgments necessary to determine when estimates of this variable consideration are no longer expected to result in a significant revenue reversal in the future.
This required extensive audit effort and a higher degree of auditor judgment when performing audit procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of the variable
consideration and associated customer-related accruals for pricing adjustments.
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How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to variable consideration and associated customer related accruals for pricing adjustments included the following, among others:

• We tested the effectiveness of controls the Company has in place relating to reviewing customer contracts to identify price adjustment clauses,
estimating variable consideration and assessing the reasonableness of customer related accrual balances.

• We evaluated the Company’s accounting policy with respect to variable consideration, as well as its process for identifying contracts that include
potential price adjustment clauses.

• We selected a sample of contracts with customers that included potential price adjustment clauses and performed the following:
– We read the customer contracts to develop an understanding of clauses that could give rise to variable consideration and evaluated whether the

Company’s accounting conclusions with respect to those clauses were reasonable.
– We obtained and tested the mathematical accuracy of the Company’s calculations of customer related accruals and evaluated the Company’s

judgments regarding the amount of variable consideration that should be deferred. In making this evaluation we considered both the terms
included in the customer contract and the Company’s historical experience in settling amounts with the customer.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Jose, California
May 21, 2025

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2002.
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FLEX LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
  As of March 31,
  2025 2024
  (In millions, except share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,289  $ 2,474 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 3,671  3,033 
Contract assets 616  249 
Inventories 5,071  6,205 
Other current assets 1,194  1,031 

Total current assets 12,841  12,992 
Property and equipment, net 2,330  2,269 
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 562  601 
Goodwill 1,341  1,135 
Other intangible assets, net 343  245 
Other non-current assets 964  1,015 

Total assets $ 18,381  $ 18,257 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:    
Bank borrowings and current portion of long-term debt $ 1,209  $ — 
Accounts payable 5,147  4,468 
Accrued payroll and benefits 560  488 
Deferred revenue and customer working capital advances 1,957  2,615 
Other current liabilities 977  968 

Total current liabilities 9,850  8,539 
Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,483  3,261 
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 456  490 
Other non-current liabilities 590  642 

Total liabilities 13,379  12,932 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
Shareholders' equity    

Flex Ltd. shareholders' equity
Ordinary shares, no par value; 383,369,073 and 408,101,772 issued, and 377,817,433 and 408,101,772
outstanding as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively 4,142  5,074 
Treasury stock, at cost; 5,551,640 and zero shares as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively (200) — 
Accumulated earnings 1,284  446 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (224) (195)

Total shareholders' equity 5,002  5,325 
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 18,381  $ 18,257 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FLEX LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
  2025   2024 2023
  (In millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales $ 25,813  $ 26,415  $ 28,502 
Cost of sales 23,584  24,395  26,503 
Restructuring charges 70  155  23 

Gross profit 2,159  1,865  1,976 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 904  922  874 
Intangible amortization 70  70  81 
Restructuring charges 16  20  4 

Operating income 1,169  853  1,017 
Interest expense 218  207  230 
Interest income 61  56  30 
Other charges (income), net (14) 44  6 
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates (3) 8  (4)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 1,023  666  807 
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 185  (206) 124 

Net income from continuing operations 838  872  683 
   Net income from discontinued operations, net of tax —  373  350 

Net income 838  1,245  1,033 
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest and redeemable noncontrolling interest —  239  240 
Net income attributable to Flex Ltd. $ 838  $ 1,006  $ 793 

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations $ 2.14  $ 2.00  $ 1.50 
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations —  0.31  0.25 
Basic earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of Flex Ltd. $ 2.14  $ 2.31  $ 1.75 

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $ 2.11  $ 1.98  $ 1.48 
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations —  0.30  0.24 
Diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of Flex Ltd. $ 2.11  $ 2.28  $ 1.72 

Weighted-average shares used in computing per share amounts:
Basic 391  435  454 
Diluted 398  441  462 

   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FLEX LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
  2025   2024 2023
  (In millions)

Net income $ 838  $ 1,245  $ 1,033 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:      

Foreign currency translation adjustments (6) (19) (64)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other (23) 18  52 

Comprehensive income $ 809  $ 1,244  $ 1,021 
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest and redeemable
noncontrolling interest —  239  240 
Comprehensive income attributable to Flex Ltd. $ 809  $ 1,005  $ 781 

   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FLEX LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Redeemable
Noncontrolling

Interest Ordinary Shares Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Total

Amount
Shares

Outstanding Amount

Accumulated
Earnings
(Deficit)

Unrealized
Gain (Loss) on

Derivative
Instruments
And Other

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments

Total
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Gain (Loss)

Total
Flex Ltd.

Shareholders'
Equity

Noncontrolling
Interest

Shareholders'
Equity

(In millions)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31,
2022 $ 78  461  $ 5,664  $ (1,353) $ (66) $ (116) $ (182) $ 4,129  $ —  $ 4,129 

Issuance of Nextracker common
stock and related transactions (99) —  644  —  —  —  —  644  158  802 
Payment for pre-IPO dividend to
redeemable noncontrolling
interest (22) —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Repurchase of Flex Ltd. ordinary
shares at cost —  (20) (337) —  —  —  —  (337) —  (337)
Issuance of Flex Ltd. vested
shares under restricted share unit
awards —  9  1  —  —  —  —  1  —  1 
Net income 43  —  —  793  —  —  —  793  197  990 
Stock-based compensation —  —  133  —  —  —  —  133  —  133 
Total other comprehensive gain
(loss) —  —  —  —  52  (64) (12) (12) —  (12)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31,
2023 —  450  6,105  (560) (14) (180) (194) 5,351  355  5,706 

Spin-off of Nextracker —  —  (492) —  —  —  —  (492) (480) (972)
Nextracker follow-on
transactions and distribution —  —  607  —  —  —  —  607  (114) 493 
Repurchase of Flex Ltd. ordinary
shares at cost —  (51) (1,298) —  —  —  —  (1,298) —  (1,298)
Issuance of Flex Ltd. vested
shares under restricted share unit
awards —  9  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Net income —  —  —  1,006  —  —  —  1,006  239  1,245 
Stock-based compensation —  —  152  —  —  —  —  152  —  152 
Total other comprehensive gain
(loss) —  —  —  —  18  (19) (1) (1) —  (1)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31,
2024 —  408  5,074  446  4  (199) (195) 5,325  —  5,325 

Repurchase of Flex Ltd. ordinary
shares at cost —  (38) (1,257) —  —  —  —  (1,257) —  (1,257)
Issuance of Flex Ltd. vested
shares under restricted share unit
awards —  8  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Net income —  —  —  838  —  —  —  838  —  838 
Stock-based compensation —  125  —  —  —  —  125  —  125 
Total other comprehensive gain
(loss) —  —  —  —  (23) (6) (29) (29) —  (29)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31,
2025 $ —  378  $ 3,942  $ 1,284  $ (19) $ (205) $ (224) $ 5,002  $ —  $ 5,002 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FLEX LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
  2025   2024 2023
  (In millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:      
Net income $ 838  $ 1,245  $ 1,033 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:      

Depreciation 439  431  414 
Amortization and other impairment charges    100  106  87 
Other non-cash income 3  (16) (41)
Non-cash lease expense 142  139  131 
Stock-based compensation 125  152  133 
Deferred income taxes 23  (480) (192)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:      

Accounts receivable (601) 380  (388)
Contract assets (365) (41) (27)
Inventories 1,176  1,105  (974)
Other current and noncurrent assets (216) (297) (55)
Accounts payable 630  (986) (341)
Other current and noncurrent liabilities (789) (412) 1,170 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,505  1,326  950 
Cash flows from investing activities:      

Purchases of property and equipment (438) (530) (635)
Proceeds from the disposition of property and equipment           15  25  20 
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (405) —  2 
Proceeds from divestiture of businesses, net of cash held in divested businesses (21) 12  2 
Other investing activities, net 11  1  7 

Net cash used in investing activities (838) (492) (604)
Cash flows from financing activities:      

Proceeds from bank borrowings and long-term debt 499  2  718 
Repayments of bank borrowings and long-term debt (58) (409) (1,024)
Payments for repurchases of ordinary shares (1,257) (1,298) (337)
Proceeds from issuances of Nextracker shares —  552  694 
Payment for pre-IPO dividend to redeemable noncontrolling interest —  —  (22)
Payment for purchase of Nextracker LLC units from TPG —  (57) — 
Capital reduction from Nextracker spin off —  (368) — 
Other financing activities, net (5) (78) (27)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (821) (1,656) 2 
Effect of exchange rates on cash (31) 2  (18)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (185) (820) 330 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,474  3,294  2,964 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,289  $ 2,474  $ 3,294 

    
   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FLEX LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION OF THE COMPANY

Flex Ltd. ("Flex" or the "Company") is the advanced, end-to-end manufacturing partner of choice that helps a diverse customer base design, build, deliver
and manage innovative products that improve the world. Through the collective strength of a global workforce across approximately 30 countries with
responsible, sustainable operations, Flex delivers technology innovation, supply chain, and manufacturing solutions to diverse industries and end markets. The
Company's full suite of specialized capabilities includes design and engineering, supply chain, manufacturing, post-production and post-sale services, and
proprietary products. Flex partners with customers across a diverse set of industries including data center, communications, enterprise, consumer, automotive,
industrial, healthcare, industrial and power. As of March 31, 2025, Flex reports its financial performance based on two operating and reportable segments as
follows:

• Flex Agility Solutions ("FAS"), which is comprised of the following end markets:

◦ Communications, Enterprise and Cloud, including data center, edge, and communications infrastructure
◦ Lifestyle, including appliances, floorcare, smart living, HVAC, and power tools
◦ Consumer Devices, including mobile and high velocity consumer devices.

• Flex Reliability Solutions ("FRS"), which is comprised of the following end markets:

◦ Industrial, including industrial devices, capital equipment, renewables, critical power, and embedded power.
◦ Automotive, including compute platforms, power electronics, motion, and interface
◦ Health Solutions, including medical devices, medical equipment, and drug delivery

The Company's service offerings include a comprehensive range of value-added design and engineering services that are tailored to the various markets
and needs of its customers. Other focused service offerings relate to manufacturing (including enclosures, metals, plastic injection molding, precision plastics,
machining, and mechanicals), system integration and assembly and test services, materials procurement, inventory management, logistics and after-sales
services (including product repair, warranty services, re-manufacturing and maintenance), supply chain management software solutions and component product
offerings (including flexible printed circuit boards and power adapters and chargers).

Nextracker Follow-on Offering and Spin-off

On February 13, 2023, Nextracker Inc. ("Nextracker") completed an initial public offering (the "IPO") of its Class A common stock. Prior to the IPO, the
Company maintained an 82.6% indirect ownership in Nextracker and consolidated Nextracker. On July 3, 2023, Nextracker completed a follow-on offering to
its IPO and issued 15,631,562 shares of Class A common stock and received net proceeds of $552 million. The entire net proceeds were used by Nextracker to
acquire 14,025,000 Nextracker LLC common units from Yuma, Inc., the Company’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, and 1,606,562 Nextracker LLC
common units from TPG Rise Flash, L.P., an affiliate of the global alternative asset management firm TPG. As a result of the repurchase of Nextracker LLC
common units by Nextracker, 15,631,562 shares of Nextracker Class B common stock were cancelled. The Company received approximately $495 million
from the follow-on offering, after distribution of net proceeds to TPG and expenses. After the follow-on transaction, Flex held approximately 51.5% of
Nextracker's common stock.

In connection with the IPO, Nextracker entered into a Tax Receivable Agreement ("TRA") with Flex and TPG wherein 85% of the tax benefits realized in
relation to the IPO would be paid to those parties. Flex has not recorded an asset in relation to amounts potentially due to Flex under the TRA as the amounts
are contingent upon Nextracker realizing the IPO related tax benefits. As such, amounts will be recognized in income, if and when they are received. Amounts
that could be received by Flex, over a 20 year period, range from zero to approximately $300 million. During fiscal year 2025, $13 million was received under
the Nextracker TRA.

On January 2, 2024, the Company completed its previously announced spin-off of its remaining interest in Nextracker to Flex shareholders on a pro-rata
basis based on the number of ordinary shares of Flex held by each shareholder of Flex (the “Distribution”) as of December 29, 2023, which was the record date
of the Distribution, pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of
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FLEX LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Merger, dated as of February 7, 2023. Under the terms of the Nextracker spin-off, Flex shareholders received approximately 0.17 shares of Nextracker Class A
common stock for each Flex ordinary share held as of the record date of the Distribution. Flex shareholders received cash in lieu of any fractional shares.
Nextracker spin-off is intended to qualify as a tax-free transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

As a result of the completion of this spin-off, Nextracker became a fully independent public company, Flex no longer directly or indirectly holds any
shares of Nextracker common stock or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Nextracker common stock and Flex no longer consolidates
Nextracker into its financial results. All noncontrolling interest related to Nextracker have been eliminated through additional paid-in capital. Prior to or in
connection with this spin-off, Flex entered into various agreements to effect Nextracker spin-off and provide a framework for the relationship between Flex and
Nextracker following the spin-off, including a Separation Agreement, a Tax Matters Agreement, a Transition Services Agreement, as well as agreements
governing future trading relationships.

Subsequent to this spin-off, Flex presents Nextracker’s historical operations as discontinued operations and, as such, Nextracker’s historical results have
been excluded from continuing operations and unless otherwise indicated Flex’s disclosures are presented on a continuing operations basis.

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Flex and its majority-owned subsidiaries, after elimination of intercompany
accounts and transactions. Amounts included in these consolidated financial statements are expressed in U.S. dollars unless otherwise designated. The
Company consolidates its majority-owned subsidiaries and investments in entities in which the Company has a controlling interest. For the consolidated
majority-owned subsidiaries in which the Company owns less than 100%, the Company recognizes a noncontrolling interest for the ownership of the
noncontrolling owners.

The historical statements of comprehensive income and cash flows and the balances related to stockholders’ equity have not been revised to reflect the
effect of the Nextracker spin-off. See note 7 "Discontinued Operations" for additional information.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things: allowances for doubtful accounts; inventory write-downs;
valuation allowances for deferred tax assets; uncertain tax positions; valuation and useful lives of long-lived assets including property, equipment, and
intangible assets; valuation of goodwill; valuation of investments in privately held companies; asset impairments; fair values of financial instruments, notes
receivable and derivative instruments; restructuring charges; contingencies; warranty provisions; incremental borrowing rates in determining the present value
of lease payments; accruals for potential price adjustments arising from customer contracts; fair values of assets obtained and liabilities assumed in business
combinations; and the fair values of restricted share unit awards granted under the Company's stock-based compensation plans. Due to global economic
conditions, including the impact of ongoing trade conflicts and tariffs, and geopolitical conflicts (including the Russian invasion of Ukraine, the Israel-Hamas
war, and other geopolitical conflicts) there has been and will continue to be uncertainty and disruption in the global economy and financial markets. The
Company has made estimates and assumptions taking into consideration certain possible impacts due to the foregoing factors. These estimates may change, as
new events occur, and additional information is obtained. Actual results may differ from previously estimated amounts, and such differences may be material to
the consolidated financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions are reflected in the period they occur.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

The financial position and results of operations for certain of the Company's subsidiaries are measured using a currency other than the U.S. dollar as their
functional currency. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities for these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the current exchange rates as of the respective
balance sheet dates. Revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period. Cumulative gains and losses from the
translation of these subsidiaries' financial statements are reported as other comprehensive income (loss), a component of shareholders' equity.
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FLEX LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity involved, and re-
measurement adjustments for foreign operations where the U.S. dollar is the functional currency, are included in the Company's consolidated results of
operations. Non-functional currency transaction gains and losses, and re-measurement adjustments were not material to the Company's consolidated results of
operations for all periods presented, and have been classified as a component of other charges (income), net in the consolidated statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition

In determining the appropriate amount of revenue to recognize, the Company applies the following steps: (i) identifies the contracts with the customers;
(ii) identifies performance obligations in the contracts; (iii) determines the transaction price; (iv) allocates the transaction price to the performance obligations
per the contracts; and (v) recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation. Further, the Company assesses whether control of
the products or services promised under the contract is transferred to the customer at a point in time (PIT) or over time (OT). The Company is first required to
evaluate whether its contracts meet the criteria for OT recognition. The Company has determined that for a portion of its contracts, the Company is
manufacturing products for which there is no alternative use (due to the unique nature of the customer-specific product and intellectual property restrictions)
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment including a reasonable profit for work-in-progress inventory with respect to these contracts. For certain
other contracts, the Company’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Company performs under the contract. As a result,
revenue is recognized under these contracts OT based on the cost-to-cost method as it best depicts the transfer of control to the customer measured based on the
ratio of costs incurred to date as compared to the total estimated costs at completion of the performance obligation. For all other contracts that do not meet
these criteria, the Company recognizes revenue when it has transferred control of the related manufactured products which generally occurs upon delivery and
passage of title to the customer. Service contract revenue is recognized on an overtime basis using the output method. Certain of the Company’s customer
agreements include potential price adjustments which may result in variable consideration. These price adjustments include, but are not limited to, sharing of
cost savings, committed price reductions, material margins earned over the period that are contractually required to be paid to the customers, rebates, refunds
tied to performance metrics such as on-time delivery, and other periodic pricing resets that may be refundable to customers. The Company recognizes estimates
of this variable consideration that are not expected to result in a significant revenue reversal in the future, primarily based on the amount of potential refunds
required by the contract, historical experience and other surrounding facts and circumstances. Certain of the Company's customer contracts involve purchasing
raw materials from customers or acting as an agent for the sale of certain customer products. Finished goods billings related to these products are reported net
of the associated material cost in net sales in the consolidated statements of operations. Refer to note 4 "Revenue" for further details.

Government Incentives and Grants

The Company receives incentives from federal, state and local governments in different regions of the world that primarily encourage the Company to
establish, maintain, or increase investment, employment, or production in the regions. The Company accounts for government incentives as a reduction in the
cost of the capital investment or a reduction of expense, based on the substance of the incentives received. Benefits are generally recorded when all conditions
attached to the incentive have been met and there is reasonable assurance of receipt. The Company records capital-related incentives as a reduction to Property
and equipment, net on the consolidated balance sheets and recognizes a reduction to depreciation and amortization expense over the useful life of the
corresponding acquired asset. The Company records operating grants as a reduction to expense in the same line item on the consolidated statements of
operations as the expenditure for which the grant is intended to compensate. Government incentives and grant transactions are not material to the Company's
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are primarily accounts receivable, derivative instruments,
and cash and cash equivalents.

Customer Credit Risk

The Company has an established customer credit policy, through which it manages customer credit exposures through credit evaluations, credit limit
setting, monitoring, and enforcement of credit limits for new and existing customers. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers'
financial condition and makes provisions for doubtful accounts based on the outcome of those credit evaluations. The Company evaluates the collectability of
its accounts receivable based on specific customer circumstances, current economic trends, historical experience with collections and the age of past due
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FLEX LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

receivables. To the extent the Company identifies exposures as a result of credit or customer evaluations, the Company also reviews other customer related
exposures, including but not limited to inventory and related contractual obligations.

The following table summarizes the activity in the Company's allowance for doubtful accounts during fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023:

Balance at
Beginning

of Year
Charges (Recoveries) to
Costs and Expenses(1)

Deductions/
Write-Offs (2)

Balance at
End of
Year

(In millions)

Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended March 31, 2023 $ 52  $ 4  $ (50) $ 6 
Year ended March 31, 2024 6  9  (3) 12 
Year ended March 31, 2025 12  (1) (4) 7 

(1) Charges and recoveries incurred during fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023 are primarily for costs and expenses or bad debt recoveries related to various distressed
customers.

(2) Deductions and write-offs during fiscal year 2023 is primarily as a result of a settlement reached with a certain former customer.

No customer accounted for greater than 10% of the Company's net sales in fiscal years 2025, 2024 or 2023. No customer accounted for greater than 10%
of the Company's total balance of accounts receivable, net as of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 or March 31, 2023.

The Company's ten largest customers accounted for approximately 44%, 37% and 37%, of its net sales in fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

The amount subject to credit risk related to derivative instruments is generally limited to the amount, if any, by which a counterparty's obligations exceed
the obligations of the Company with that counterparty. To manage counterparty risk, the Company limits its derivative transactions to those with recognized
financial institutions. See additional discussion of derivatives in note 10.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with various financial institutions that management believes to be of high credit quality. These
financial institutions are located in many different locations throughout the world. The Company's investment portfolio, which consists of short-term bank
deposits and money market accounts, is classified as cash equivalents on the consolidated balance sheets.

All highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from original dates of purchase are carried at cost, which approximates fair market
value, and are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash deposited in checking accounts, money market funds and time
deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following:

As of March 31,
2025 2024

(In millions)
Cash and bank balances $ 754  $ 1,715 
Money market funds and time deposits 1,535  759 

$ 2,289  $ 2,474 
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (on a first-in, first-out basis) or net realizable value. The stated cost is comprised of direct materials, labor and
overhead. The components of inventories, net of applicable lower of cost or net realizable value write-downs, were as follows:

As of March 31,
2025 2024

(In millions)

Raw materials $ 4,092  $ 5,045 
Work-in-progress 485  623 
Finished goods 494  537 

$ 5,071  $ 6,205 

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are recognized on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, with the exception of building leasehold improvements, which are depreciated over the term of
the lease, if shorter. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Property and equipment is comprised of the following:

Depreciable
Life

(In Years)
As of March 31,

2025 2024
(In millions)

Machinery and equipment 2 - 10 $ 3,978  $ 3,960 
Buildings 30 1,342  1,212 
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or useful life of the improvement 669  651 
Furniture, fixtures, computer equipment and
software, and other 3 - 7 564  549 
Land — 126  123 
Construction-in-progress — 271  214 

6,950  6,709 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,620) (4,440)
Property and equipment, net $ 2,330  $ 2,269 

Total depreciation expense associated with property and equipment was approximately $439 million, $428 million and $411 million in fiscal years 2025,
2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Company reviews property and equipment for impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of property and equipment is determined by comparing its carrying amount to the lowest
level of identifiable projected undiscounted cash flows the property and equipment are expected to generate. An impairment loss is recognized when the
carrying amount of property and equipment exceeds its fair value.

Deferred Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes in accordance with the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred
income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amount and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities
by applying the applicable statutory tax rate to such differences. Additionally, the Company assesses whether each income tax position is "more likely than not"
of being sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation, if any. For each income tax position that meets the "more likely than not"
recognition threshold, the Company would then assess the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon effective
settlement with the tax authority.

Accounting for Business and Asset Acquisitions
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The Company has strategically pursued business and asset acquisitions. For business combinations, the fair value of the net assets acquired and the results
of the acquired businesses are included in the Company's consolidated financial statements from the acquisition dates forward. The Company is required to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and results of operations during the reporting period. Estimates are
used in accounting for, among other things, the fair value of acquired net operating assets, property and equipment, intangible assets and related deferred tax
liabilities, useful lives of plant and equipment and amortizable lives for acquired intangible assets. Any excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value
of the identified assets and liabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill and if the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the purchase
consideration a gain on bargain purchase is recognized.

The Company estimates the preliminary fair value of acquired assets and liabilities as of the date of acquisition based on information available at that
time. Contingent consideration is recorded at fair value as of the date of the acquisition with subsequent adjustments recorded in earnings. Changes to valuation
allowances on acquired deferred tax assets are recognized in the provision for, or benefit from, income taxes. The valuation of these tangible and identifiable
intangible assets and liabilities is subject to further management review and may change materially between the preliminary allocation and end of the purchase
price allocation period. Any changes in these estimates may have a material effect on the Company's consolidated operating results or financial position.

Goodwill

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level annually, and in certain circumstances such as a change in reporting units or
whenever there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment assessment on January 1, 2025 and
as a result of the quantitative assessment of its goodwill, the Company determined that no impairment existed as of the date of the impairment test because the
fair value of each one of its six reporting units exceeded its respective carrying value.

Recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting unit level by comparing the reporting unit's carrying amount, including goodwill, to the fair value
of the reporting unit, which typically is measured based upon, among other factors, market valuations, market multiples for comparable companies as well as a
discounted cash flow analysis. Certain of these approaches use significant unobservable inputs, or Level 3 inputs, as defined by the fair value hierarchy and
require management to make various judgmental assumptions about sales, operating margins, growth rates and discount rates which consider the Company's
budgets, business plans and economic projections, and are believed to reflect market participant views. Some of the inherent estimates and assumptions used in
determining fair value of the reporting units are outside the control of management, including interest rates, cost of capital, tax rates, market EBITDA
comparable and credit ratings. While the Company believes it has made reasonable estimates and assumptions to calculate the fair value of the reporting units,
it is possible a material change could occur. If the actual results are not consistent with management's estimates and assumptions used to calculate fair value, it
could result in material impairments of the Company's goodwill.

If the recorded value of the assets, including goodwill, and liabilities ("net book value") of any reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss
may be required to be recognized.
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The following table summarizes the activity in the Company's goodwill during fiscal years 2025 and 2024:

FAS FRS Total
(In millions)

Balance at March 31, 2023 $ 371  $ 768  $ 1,139 
Divestitures (1) —  (1) (1)
Foreign currency translation adjustments —  (3) (3)

Balance at March 31, 2024 371  764  1,135 
Acquisitions (2) 39  170  209 
Foreign currency translation adjustments —  (3) (3)

Balance at March 31, 2025 $ 410  $ 931  $ 1,341 

(1) A reduction of approximately $1 million as a result of the divestiture of a non-strategic immaterial business within the FRS segment in fiscal year 2024.

(2) Represents goodwill of $170 million from the Crown acquisition, $31 million from the JetCool acquisition and $8 million from an acquisition completed in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2025. Refer to Note 19 for further details.

Other Intangible Assets

The Company's acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization over their estimated useful lives and are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an intangible asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the
carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds its fair value. The Company reviewed the carrying value of its intangible assets as of March 31, 2025 and
concluded that such amounts continued to be recoverable.

Intangible assets are comprised of customer-related intangible assets that include contractual agreements and customer relationships, and licenses and
other intangible assets that are primarily comprised of licenses, patents and trademarks, and developed technologies. Generally, both customer-related
intangible assets and licenses and other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis, over a period of up to ten years. No residual value is estimated
for any intangible assets. The fair value of the Company's intangible assets purchased through business combinations is determined based on management's
estimates of cash flow and recoverability. During fiscal year 2025, the total value of intangible assets increased by $165 million as a result of the Company's
acquisitions during the period. These acquisitions contributed an additional $100 million in customer-related intangible assets and $65 million in licenses and
other intangibles assets, such as trade names and technology. Refer to note 19 for additional information.

The components of acquired intangible assets are as follows:

As of March 31, 2025 As of March 31, 2024
Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Useful life
(in Years)

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

(In millions)

Intangible assets:
Customer-related intangibles 8.3 $ 383  $ (186) $ 197  $ 316  $ (186) $ 130 
Licenses and other intangibles 6.7 365  (219) 146  298  (183) 115 

Total $ 748  $ (405) $ 343  $ 614  $ (369) $ 245 
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Total intangible asset amortization expense recognized in operations during fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023 was $70 million, $70 million and
$81 million, respectively. The gross carrying amounts of intangible assets are removed when fully amortized. During fiscal year 2025, the gross carrying
amounts of fully amortized intangible assets totaled $31 million. The estimated future annual amortization expense for acquired intangible assets is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending March 31, Amount
(In millions)

2026 $ 67 
2027 57 
2028 43 
2029 40 
2030 35 
Thereafter 101 

Total amortization expense $ 343 

The Company owns or licenses various United States and foreign patents relating to a variety of technologies. For certain of the Company's proprietary
processes, inventions, and works of authorship, the Company relies on trade secret or copyright protection. The Company also maintains trademark rights
(including registrations) for the Company's corporate name and several other trademarks and service marks that the Company uses in the Company's business
in the United States and other countries throughout the world. The Company has policies and procedures (including both technological means and training
programs for the Company's employees) to identify and protect the Company's intellectual property, as well as that of the Company's customers and suppliers.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

All derivative instruments are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. If the derivative instrument is designated as a cash flow hedge,
effectiveness is tested monthly using a regression analysis of the change in spot currency rates and the change in present value of the spot currency rates. The
spot currency rates are discounted to present value using functional currency Inter-bank Offering Rates over the maximum length of the hedge period. The
effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument (excluding time value) is recognized in shareholders' equity as a separate component
of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), and recognized in the consolidated statements of operations when the hedged item affects earnings.
Ineffective and excluded portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized in earnings immediately. If the derivative instrument is
designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized
in earnings in the current period. Cash receipts and cash payments related to derivative instruments are recorded in the same category as the cash flows from
the items being hedged on the consolidated statements of cash flows. Additional information is included in note 10.

Investments

The Company has an investment portfolio that consists of strategic investments in privately held companies, and certain venture capital funds which are
included within other non-current assets. These privately held companies range from startups to more mature companies with established revenue streams and
business models. As of March 31, 2025, and 2024, the Company's investments in non-consolidated companies totaled $119 million and $123 million,
respectively.

The Company recognized $3 million of equity in losses and $8 million of equity in earnings, associated with its equity method investments, in Equity in
earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates on the consolidated statements of operations during fiscal years 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Non-consolidated investments in entities are accounted for using the equity method when the Company has an investment in common stock or in-
substance common stock, and either (a) has the ability to significantly influence the operating decisions of the issuer, or (b) if the Company has a voting
percentage generally equal to or greater than 20% but less than 50%, and for non-majority-owned investments in partnerships when generally greater than 5%.
Cost method is used for investments where the Company does not have the ability to significantly influence the operating decisions of the investee, or if the
Company’s investment is in securities other than common stock or in-substance common stock.

The Company monitors these investments for impairment indicators and makes appropriate reductions in carrying values as required whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the assets may be impaired. The factors the Company
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considers in its evaluation of potential impairment of its investments include, but are not limited to, a significant deterioration in the earnings performance or
business prospects of the investee, or factors that raise significant concerns about the investee’s ability to continue as a going concern, such as negative cash
flows from operation or working capital deficiencies. Fair values of these investments, when required, are estimated using unobservable inputs, or Level 3
inputs, as defined by the fair value hierarchy, and require management to make various judgmental assumptions primarily about comparable company multiples
and discounted cash flow projections. Some of the inherent estimates and assumptions used in determining the fair value of the investments are outside the
control of management. While the Company believes it has made reasonable estimates and assumptions to calculate the fair value of the investments, it is
possible a material change could occur. If the actual results are not consistent with management's estimates and assumptions used to calculate fair value, it
could result in material impairments of investments.

For investments accounted for under the cost method that do not have readily determinable fair values, the Company measures them at cost minus
impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a similar investment of the same
issuer.

Customer Working Capital Advances

Customer working capital advances were $1.6 billion and $2.2 billion, as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The customer working capital
advances are not interest-bearing, do not generally have fixed repayment dates and are generally reduced as the underlying working capital is consumed in
production or the customer working capital advance agreement is terminated.

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets include deferred tax assets of $577 million and $644 million as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities include customer-related accruals of $246 million and $277 million as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Supplier Finance Programs

The Company has four supplier finance programs, all of which have substantially similar characteristics, with various financial institutions that act as the
paying agent for certain payables of the Company. The Company established these programs through agreements with the financial institutions to enable more
efficient payment processing to our suppliers while also providing our suppliers a potential source of liquidity to the extent they choose to sell their receivables
to the financial institutions in advance of the due dates. Our suppliers’ participation in the programs is voluntary, the Company is not involved in negotiations
of the suppliers’ arrangements with the financial institutions to sell their receivables, and our rights and obligations to our suppliers are not impacted by our
suppliers’ decisions to sell amounts under these programs. Under these supplier finance programs, the Company pays the financial institutions the stated
amount of confirmed invoices from its participating suppliers on the original maturity dates of the invoices. All payment terms are short-term in nature and are
not dependent on whether the suppliers participate in the supplier finance programs or if the suppliers elect to receive early payment from the financial
institutions. No guarantees are provided by the Company under the supplier finance programs and the Company incurs no costs related to the programs. We
have no economic interest in a supplier’s decision to participate in the supplier finance programs.

Obligations under these programs are classified within accounts payable on the condensed consolidated balance sheets, with the associated payments
reflected in the operating activities section of the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows. The roll-forward of the Company's outstanding obligations
confirmed as valid under its supplier finance programs for the
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fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(In millions)

Confirmed obligations outstanding at the beginning of the year $ 123  $ 157 
Invoices confirmed during the year 574  604 
Confirmed invoices paid during the year (569) (643)
Foreign currency exchange impact (9) 5 
Confirmed obligations outstanding at the end of the year $ 119  $ 123 

Leases

The Company is a lessee with several non-cancellable operating leases, primarily for warehouses, buildings, and other assets such as vehicles and
equipment. The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at contract inception. A contract is a lease or contains a lease when (1) there is an identified
asset, and (2) the Company has the right to control the use of the identified asset. The Company recognizes a right-of-use ("ROU") asset and a lease liability at
the lease commencement date for the Company's operating leases. For operating leases, the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
unpaid lease payments at the lease commencement date. The Company has elected the short-term lease recognition and measurement exemption for all classes
of assets, which allows the Company to not recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and with no purchase
option the Company is reasonably certain of exercising. The Company has also elected the practical expedient to account for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component, for all classes of underlying assets. Therefore, the lease payments used to measure the lease liability include all of the
fixed considerations in the contract. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), and variable payments that depend on an index or rate (initially measured using the index or rate at the lease commencement date).
As the Company cannot determine the interest rate implicit in the lease for the Company's leases, the Company uses the Company's estimate of the incremental
borrowing rate as of the commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The Company's estimated incremental borrowing rate is the
rate of interest it would have to pay on a collateralized basis to borrow an amount equal to the lease payments under similar terms. The lease term for all of the
Company's leases includes the non-cancellable period of the lease plus any additional periods covered by either an option to extend (or not to terminate) the
lease that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, or an option to extend (or not to terminate) the lease controlled by the lessor.

As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, current operating lease liabilities were $135 million and $136 million, respectively, which are included in other current
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

Restructuring Charges

The Company recognizes restructuring charges related to its plans to close or consolidate excess manufacturing facilities and reduce excess workforce
capacity. In connection with these activities, the Company records restructuring charges for employee termination costs, long-lived asset impairment and other
exit-related costs.

The recognition of restructuring charges requires the Company to make certain judgments and estimates regarding the nature, timing and amount of costs
associated with the planned exit activity. To the extent the Company's actual results differ from its estimates and assumptions, the Company may be required to
revise the estimates of future liabilities, requiring the recognition of additional restructuring charges or the reduction of liabilities already recognized. Such
changes to previously estimated amounts may be material to the consolidated financial statements. At the end of each reporting period, the Company evaluates
the remaining accrued balances to ensure that no excess accruals are retained, and the utilization of the provisions are for their intended purpose in accordance
with developed restructuring plans. See note 16 for additional information regarding restructuring charges.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03 "Income Statement-Reporting Comprehensive Income-Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic
220-40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses", which requires public entities to disclose specified information about certain costs and expenses. The
guidance is effective for the Company beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2028 and will be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented on its
consolidated financial statements. We are currently evaluating the guidance to determine the impact on the Company's disclosures. In January 2025,
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the FASB issued ASU 2025-01 on the same topic to clarify the amendments for ASU 2024-03 are effective for the Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2028.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09 "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures", which expands disclosures in
an entity’s income tax rate reconciliation table and regarding cash taxes paid both in the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions. The guidance is effective for the
Company beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2026. The Company expects the new guidance will have an immaterial impact on its consolidated
financial statements, and intends to adopt the guidance prospectively when it becomes effective in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2026.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07 "Segment Reporting - Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures", which updates reportable
segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses and information used to assess segment
performance. The guidance is effective for the Company beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2025. The Company adopted the guidance retrospectively
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2025. See note 21 for additional reportable segment disclosures.

3. LEASES

The Company has several commitments under operating leases for warehouses, buildings, and equipment. The Company also has a number of finance
leases with an immaterial impact on its consolidated financial statements. Leases have remaining lease terms ranging from approximately 1 year to 19 years.

The components of lease cost recognized were as follow (in millions): 

Lease cost Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Operating lease cost $ 173  $ 167 

Amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet as of the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were (in millions, except weighted average
lease term and discount rate):

As of March 31, 2025 As of March 31, 2024

Operating Leases:
   Operating lease right of use assets $ 562 $ 601
   Operating lease liabilities * 591 626

Weighted-average remaining lease term (In years)
   Operating leases 6.0 6.3

Weighted-average discount rate
   Operating leases 4.4 % 4.4 %
* Operating lease liabilities includes $135 million current lease liabilities and $456 million non-current lease liabilities.

Other information related to leases was as follow (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:  
   Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 168  $ 160 

Right‑of‑use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities
   Operating Lease $ 106  $ 134 
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Future lease payments under non-cancellable leases as of March 31, 2025 were as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, Operating Leases

2026 $ 158 
2027 126 
2028 106 
2029 84 
2030 62 
Thereafter 134 

Total undiscounted lease payments 670 
Less: imputed interest 79 

Total lease liabilities $ 591 

Total rent expense amounted to $194 million, $188 million and $182 million in fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

4. REVENUE

Revenue Recognition

The Company provides a comprehensive suite of services for its customers that range from advanced product design to manufacturing and logistics to
after-sales services. The first step in its process for revenue recognition is to identify a contract with a customer. A contract is defined as an agreement between
two parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and can be written, verbal, or implied. The Company generally enters into master supply agreements
("MSAs") with its customers that provide the framework under which business will be conducted. This includes matters such as warranty, indemnification,
transfer of title and risk of loss, liability for excess and obsolete inventory, pricing formulas, payment terms, etc., and the level of business under those
agreements may not be guaranteed. In those instances, the Company bids on a program-by-program basis and typically receives customer purchase orders for
specific quantities and timing of products. As a result, the Company considers its contract with a customer to be the combination of the MSA and the purchase
order, or any other similar documents such as a statement of work, product addendum, forecast commitments, emails or other communications that embody the
commitment by the customer.

In determining the appropriate amount of revenue to recognize, the Company applies the following steps: (i) identifies the contracts with the customers;
(ii) identifies performance obligations in the contracts; (iii) determines the transaction price; (iv) allocates the transaction price to the performance obligations
per the contracts; and (v) recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation. Further, the Company assesses whether control of
the products or services promised under the contract are transferred to the customer at a point in time (PIT) or over time (OT). The Company is first required to
evaluate whether its contracts meet the criteria for OT recognition. The Company has determined that for a portion of its contracts the Company is
manufacturing products for which there is no alternative use (due to the unique nature of the customer-specific product and intellectual property restrictions)
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment including a reasonable profit for work-in-progress inventory with respect to these contracts. For certain
other contracts, the Company’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Company performs under the contract. As a result,
revenue is recognized under these contracts OT based on the cost-to-cost method as it best depicts the transfer of control to the customer measured based on the
ratio of costs incurred to date as compared to the total estimated costs at completion of the performance obligation. For all other contracts that do not meet
these criteria, the Company recognizes revenue when it has transferred control of the related manufactured products which generally occurs upon delivery and
passage of title to the customer. Service contract revenue is recognized on an overtime basis using the output method.

Customer Contracts and Related Obligations

Certain of the Company’s customer agreements include potential price adjustments which may result in variable consideration. These price adjustments
include, but are not limited to, sharing of cost savings, committed price reductions, material margins earned over the period that are contractually required to be
paid to the customers, rebates, refunds tied to performance metrics such as on-time delivery, and other periodic pricing resets that may be refundable to
customers. The Company estimates the variable consideration related to these price adjustments as part of the total transaction price and recognizes revenue in
accordance with the pattern applicable to the performance obligation, subject to a constraint. The Company constrains the amount of revenues recognized for
these contractual provisions based on its best estimate of the
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amount which will not result in a significant reversal of revenue in a future period. The Company determines the amounts to be recognized based on the
amount of potential refunds required by the contract, historical experience and other surrounding facts and circumstances. Often these obligations are settled
with the customer in a period after shipment through various methods which include reduction of prices for future purchases, issuance of a payment to the
customer, or issuance of a credit note applied against the customer’s accounts receivable balance. In many instances, the agreement is silent on the settlement
mechanism. Any difference between the amount accrued for potential refunds and the actual amount agreed to with the customer is recorded as an increase or
decrease in revenue. These potential price adjustments are included as part of other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and disclosed as part of
customer-related accruals in note 2.

Performance Obligations

The Company derives its revenues primarily from manufacturing services, and to a lesser extent, from innovative design, engineering, and supply chain
services and solutions.

A performance obligation is an implicitly or explicitly promised good or service that is material in the context of the contract and is both capable of being
distinct (customer can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other readily available resources) and distinct within the context of the
contract (separately identifiable from other promises). The Company considers all activities typically included in its contracts, and identifies those activities
representing a promise to transfer goods or services to a customer. These include, but are not limited to, design and engineering services, prototype products,
tooling, etc. Each promised good or service with regards to these identified activities is accounted for as a separate performance obligation only if it is distinct -
i.e., the customer can benefit from it on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer. Certain activities on the other hand
are determined not to constitute a promise to transfer goods or service, and therefore do not represent separate performance obligations for revenue recognition
(e.g., procurement of materials and standard workmanship warranty).

A contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is
satisfied. The majority of the Company's contracts have a single performance obligation as the promise to transfer the individual good or service is not
separately identifiable from other promises in the contract and is, therefore, not distinct. Promised goods or services that are immaterial in the context of the
contract are not separately assessed as performance obligations. In the event that more than one performance obligation is identified in a contract, the Company
is required to allocate the transaction price between the performance obligations. The allocation would generally be performed on the basis of a relative
standalone price for each distinct good or service. This standalone price most often represents the price that the Company would sell similar goods or services
separately.

Contract Balances

A contract asset is recognized when the Company has recognized revenue, but not issued an invoice for payment. Contract assets are classified separately
on the consolidated balance sheets and transferred to receivables when rights to payment become unconditional and invoiced.

A contract liability is recognized when the Company receives payments in advance of the satisfaction of performance. Contract liabilities, identified as
deferred revenue, were $377 million and $490 million as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, of which $347 million and $449 million, respectively, is
included in deferred revenue and customer working capital advances under current liabilities.
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Disaggregation of Revenue

The following table presents the Company’s revenue disaggregated based on timing of transfer - PIT and OT for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025,
2024 and 2023:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023

Timing of Transfer (In millions)

FAS
Point in time $ 11,303  $ 12,811  $ 14,942 
Over time 2,771  1,112  827 

Total 14,074  13,923  15,769 
FRS

Point in time 8,778  11,706  12,004 
Over time 2,961  786  729 

Total 11,739  12,492  12,733 
Flex

Point in time 20,081  24,517  26,946 
Over time 5,732  1,898  1,556 

Total $ 25,813  $ 26,415  $ 28,502 

During the year ended March 31, 2025, certain existing customer contractual relationships were changed to provide an enforceable right to payment for
work completed to date that had the effect of transitioning revenue with those customers from being recognized on a point in time to an over time basis, with
prospective effect. This change had the effect of increasing contract assets by $232 million as of March 31, 2025. Contract assets are generally transferred to
receivables in the succeeding quarter due to the short-term nature of the Company’s manufacturing cycle.

5. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Equity Compensation Plan

Flex historically maintains stock-based compensation plans at the corporate level. The Company grants equity compensation awards under its 2017
Equity Incentive Plan (as amended, the "2017 Plan").

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

The following table summarizes the Company's stock-based compensation expense for the 2017 Plan:

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
  2025 2024 2023
  (In millions)

Cost of sales $ 32  $ 28  $ 24 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 93  85  77 
Total share-based compensation expense $ 125  $ 113  $ 101 

Cash flows related to tax benefits from stock-based compensation are classified as operating cash flows. During fiscal year 2025, the Company
recognized $14 million of tax benefit associated with stock-based compensation expense as an operating cash inflow. No such tax benefits were recognized in
fiscal years 2024 and 2023.

The 2017 Plan

As of March 31, 2025, the Company had approximately 18.4 million shares available for grant under the 2017 Plan. The Company grants restricted share
unit ("RSU") awards under its 2017 Plan. RSU awards are rights to acquire a specified number of ordinary shares for no cash consideration in exchange for
continued service with the Company. RSU awards generally vest in installments over three years, and unvested RSU awards are generally forfeited upon
termination of employment.
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Vesting for certain RSU awards is contingent upon both service and market conditions or both service and performance conditions.

As of March 31, 2025, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested RSU awards under the 2017 Plan was approximately $196 million.
These costs will be amortized generally on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average period of approximately two years. Approximately $14 million of the
total unrecognized compensation cost is related to RSU awards granted to certain key employees whereby vesting is contingent on meeting certain market
conditions. Approximately $16 million of the total unrecognized compensation cost is related to RSU awards granted to certain key employees whereby vesting
is contingent on meeting certain performance conditions.

Determining Fair Value - RSU awards

Valuation and Amortization Method—The fair market value of RSU awards granted, other than those awards with a market condition, is the closing price
of the Company's ordinary shares on the date of grant and is generally recognized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the respective vesting
period.

Determining Fair Value - RSU awards with service and market conditions

Valuation and Amortization Method—The Company estimates the fair value of RSU awards granted under the 2017 Plan whereby vesting is contingent
on meeting certain market conditions using Monte Carlo simulation. This fair value is then amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, which is
the service period.

Expected Volatility of Flex—Volatility used in a Monte Carlo simulation is derived from the historical volatility of Flex's stock price over a period equal
to the service period of the RSU awards granted. The service period is three years for those RSU awards granted in fiscal years 2025, 2024, and 2023.

Average Peer Volatility—Volatility used in a Monte Carlo simulation is derived from the historical volatilities of Flex's peer companies for the RSU
awards granted in fiscal years 2025, 2024, and 2023.

Average Peer Correlation—Correlation coefficients were used to model the movement of Flex's stock price relative to Flex's peer companies for the RSU
awards granted in fiscal years 2025, 2024, and 2023.

Expected Dividend —The Company has never paid dividends on its ordinary shares and accordingly the dividend yield percentage is zero for all periods.

Risk-Free Interest Rate assumptions—The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Monte Carlo simulation on the implied yield currently
available on U.S. Treasury constant maturities issued with a term equivalent to the expected term of the RSU awards.

The fair value of the Company's RSU awards under the 2017 Plan, whereby vesting is contingent on meeting certain market conditions, for fiscal years
2025, 2024, and 2023 was estimated using the following weighted-average assumptions:

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
  2025 2024 2023

Expected volatility 34.6 % 36.9 % 49.0 %
Average peer volatility 34.0 % 35.2 % 41.4 %
Average peer correlation 0.3 0.4 0.4
Risk-free interest rate 4.4 % 4.3 % 3.0 %

72



Table of Contents

FLEX LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share-Based Awards Activity

The following table summarizes the Company's RSU award activity under the 2017 Plan ("Price" reflects the weighted-average grant-date fair value):

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Unvested RSU awards outstanding, beginning of fiscal
year 15,367,056  $ 17.73  15,348,615  $ 16.79  17,019,559  $ 14.13 

Granted (1) 5,747,499  33.38  6,162,067  27.86  8,416,650  18.22 
Vested (1) (8,213,127) 16.46  (8,529,857) 14.34  (9,229,198) 12.51 
Forfeited (2) (1,170,193) 20.88  (994,150) 19.76  (858,396) 15.31 
Adjustment due to the Nextracker spin-off (3) —  3,380,381  — 

Unvested RSU awards outstanding, end of fiscal year (4) 11,731,235  $ 24.96  15,367,056  $ 17.73  15,348,615  $ 16.79 

(1) Included in fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, amounts are 0.7 million, 1.2 million and 1.2 million of share bonus awards representing the number of awards achieved
above target levels based on the achievement of certain market and performance conditions for awards granted in fiscal years 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These
awards were issued and immediately vested in accordance with the terms and conditions of the underlying awards.

(2) Includes immaterial RSU awards previously granted to Nextracker employees under the 2017 Plan canceled due to the Nextracker spin-off.

(3) Represents an adjustment to the outstanding RSU awards under the terms of the 2017 Plan using a conversion ratio of approximately 1.29 as a result of the Nextracker
spin-off.

(4) The weighted-average grant date fair value of the RSUs included in the line item "Adjustment due to the Nextracker spin-off" is equal to the weighted-average grant
date fair value of the awards at their respective grant date divided by a factor of approximately 1.29. The weighted-average grant date fair value of the unvested RSUs
as of March 31, 2024 reflects the adjustment.

Of the 5.7 million unvested RSU awards granted in fiscal year 2025, approximately 4.0 million are plain-vanilla unvested RSU awards with no
performance or market conditions with an average grant date price of $33.08 per share. Further, approximately 0.3 million of these unvested RSU awards
granted in fiscal year 2025 represents the target amount of grants made to certain key employees whereby vesting is contingent on certain market conditions,
with an average grant date fair value estimated to be $42.36 per award calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation. Vesting information for these shares is
further detailed in the table below.

Of the 11.7 million unvested RSU awards outstanding under the 2017 Plan as of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, approximately 1.2 million
unvested RSU awards represents the target amount of grants made to certain key employees whereby vesting is contingent on meeting certain market
conditions summarized as follows:

Target
number of

awards as of
March 31, 2025
(in shares) (1)

Range of shares
that may be issued (2)

Average
grant date
fair value

(per share) Assessment datesYear of grant Minimum Maximum

Fiscal 2025 283,002  $ 42.36  —  566,004  June 2027
Fiscal 2024 386,668  $ 35.55  —  773,336  June 2026
Fiscal 2023 539,204  $ 23.45  —  1,078,408  June 2025
Totals 1,208,874    2,417,748   

(1)    Includes an adjustment to the outstanding RSU awards under the terms of the 2017 Plan using a conversion ratio of approximately 1.29 as a result of the Nextracker
spin-off.

(2)    Vesting ranges from zero to 200% based on measurement of Flex's total shareholder return against Flex's peer companies for RSU awards granted in fiscal years 2025,
2024 and 2023.
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The Company will continue to recognize share-based compensation expense for awards with market conditions regardless of whether such awards will
ultimately vest. During fiscal year 2025, 1.6 million shares vested in connection with the awards with market and performance conditions granted in fiscal year
2022.

Approximately 0.7 million of these unvested RSU awards granted in fiscal year 2025 represents the target amount of grants made to certain key
employees whereby vesting is contingent on certain performance conditions, with an average grant date price of $31.14 per share. Vesting information for these
shares is further detailed in the table below.

Of the 11.7 million unvested RSU awards outstanding under the 2017 Plan as of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, approximately 1.6 million
unvested RSU awards represents the target amount of grants made to certain key employees whereby vesting is contingent on meeting certain performance
conditions summarized as follows:

Target
number of

awards as of
March 31, 2025
(in shares) (1)

Range of shares
that may be issued (2)

Average
grant date
fair value

(per share) Assessment dateYear of grant Minimum Maximum

Fiscal 2025 683,786  $ 31.14  —  1,119,404  Mar 2028
Fiscal 2024 386,965  $ 26.67  —  773,930  Mar 2027
Fiscal 2023 539,606  $ 16.52  —  1,079,212  Mar 2026
Totals 1,610,357  2,972,546 

(1)    Includes an adjustment to the outstanding RSU awards under the terms of the 2017 Plan using a conversion ratio of approximately 1.29 as a result of the Nextracker
spin-off.

(2)    Vesting ranges from zero to 200% based on performance of Company's average adjusted earnings per share growth and for certain awards vesting ranges from zero to
100% based on Company's adjusted operating profit goals.

The total intrinsic value of RSU awards vested under the Company's 2017 Plan was $260 million, $227 million and $148 million during fiscal years 2025,
2024 and 2023, respectively, based on the closing price of the Company's ordinary shares on the date vested.

6. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the applicable periods.

Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution from share-based compensation awards. The potential dilution from restricted share unit awards
was computed using the treasury stock method based on the average fair market value of the Company's ordinary shares for the period.
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The computation of earnings per share and weighted average shares outstanding of the Company’s ordinary shares for the following periods is presented
below:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025   2024 2023

(In millions, except per share amounts)
Numerator:

Net income from continuing operations $ 838  $ 872  $ 683 
Net income from discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 7) —  373  350 
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest and redeemable noncontrolling interest
(Note 7) —  239  240 
Net income from discontinued operations attributable to Flex Ltd. (Note 7) —  134  110 

Total net income attributable to Flex Ltd. $ 838  $ 1,006  $ 793 

Denominator:
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding - basic 391  435  454 
Weighted-average ordinary share equivalents from RSU awards (1) 7  6  8 
Weighted-average ordinary shares and ordinary share equivalents outstanding - diluted 398  441  462 

Earnings per share - basic
Continuing operations $ 2.14  $ 2.00  $ 1.50 
Discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 7) —  0.31  0.25 

Total attributable to the shareholders of Flex Ltd. $ 2.14  $ 2.31  $ 1.75 

Earnings per share - diluted
Continuing operations $ 2.11  $ 1.98  $ 1.48 
Discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 7) —  0.30  0.24 

Total attributable to the shareholders of Flex Ltd. $ 2.11  $ 2.28  $ 1.72 

(1) An immaterial amount of RSU awards during fiscal years 2025, 2024, and 2023, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share due to
their anti-dilutive impact on the weighted average ordinary shares equivalents.
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7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On January 2, 2024, Flex completed the spin-off of our remaining interests in Nextracker to Flex shareholders on a pro-rata basis based on the number
ordinary shares of Flex held by each shareholder of Flex as of December 29, 2023, which was the record date of the Distribution.

Nextracker's financial results for periods prior to the spin-off have been reflected in our consolidated statement of operations, retrospectively, as
discontinued operations. Details of net income from discontinued operations included in our consolidated statements of operations are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2024 (1) 2023

(In millions)

Net sales (2) $ 1,664  $ 1,844 
Cost of sales (2) 1,198  1,555 

Gross profit 466  289 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 145  121 
Intangible amortization —  1 

Operating income 321  167 
Interest, net 1  1 
Other charges (income), net (2) (1)

Income before income taxes 322  167 
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes (51) (183)

Net income from discontinued operations 373  350 
Net income from discontinued operations attributable to noncontrolling interest and redeemable noncontrolling interest
(3) 239  240 
Net income from discontinued operations attributable to Flex Ltd. $ 134  $ 110 

(1) Represents the financial results for the nine-month period prior to the Nextracker spin-off. The financial results for the period from January 1, 2024 to the spin-off date
were immaterial.

(2) Both net sales and cost of sales from discontinued operations includes the effect of intercompany transactions that were eliminated from Flex's consolidated operations
of approximately $99 million and $59 million for fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

(3) Net income from discontinued operations attributable to noncontrolling interest represented a share of pre-tax income of $145 million and zero and of income tax
benefits of $94 million and $197 million and distributions to redeemable noncontrolling interest of zero and $43 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. As such, pre-tax income attributable to Flex Ltd. from discontinued operations was $177 million and $167 million for the same periods.

Details of cash flows from discontinued operations are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2024 (1) 2023

(In millions)
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations operating activities (2) $ 317  $ 108 
Net cash used in discontinued operations investing activities (4) (3)

(1) Represents the financial results for the nine-month period prior to the Nextracker spin-off.

(2) Cash flows from discontinued operations operating activities includes the effect of intercompany transactions that were eliminated from Flex's consolidated operations
of $54 million and ($23) million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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8. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES

The following table represents supplemental cash flow disclosures and non-cash investing and financing activities:
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2025 2024 2023
(In millions)

Net cash paid for:
Interest $ 214  $ 226  $ 227 
Income taxes 184  243  124 

Non-cash investing and financing activity:
Unpaid purchases of property and equipment $ 136  $ 97  $ 184 
Pre-IPO paid-in-kind dividend to redeemable noncontrolling interest —  —  21 

9. BANK BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Bank borrowings and long-term debt are as follows:

Maturity Date As of March 31,
2025 2024

(In millions)

4.750% Notes ("2025 Notes") (1) June 2025 531  584 
3.750% Notes ("2026 Notes") (1) February 2026 678  682 
6.000% Notes ("2028 Notes") (1) January 2028 398  397 
4.875% Notes ("2029 Notes") (1) June 2029 655  657 
4.875% Notes ("2030 Notes") (1) May 2030 676  681 
5.250% Notes ("2032 Notes") (1)(2) January 2032 499  — 
3.600% HUF Bonds (3) December 2031 269  274 
Other —  1 
Debt issuance costs (14) (15)

3,692  3,261 
Current portion, net of debt issuance costs (1,209) — 
Non-current portion $ 2,483  $ 3,261 

(1) The notes are carried at the principal amount of each note, less any unamortized discount or premium and unamortized debt issuance costs. The notes are the
Company’s senior unsecured obligations and rank equally with all other existing and future senior unsecured debt obligations.

(2) In August 2024, the Company issued $500 million of 5.250% Notes due 2032. The Company received proceeds of approximately $496 million, net of discount and
certain issuance costs.

(3) In December 2021, the Company issued HUF 100 billion (approximately $269 million as of March 31, 2025) in aggregate principal amount of bonds under the
National Bank of Hungary’s Bond Funding for Growth Scheme. The bonds are unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Company and rank equally with all of
the Company’s other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. The outstanding principal amount of the bonds bear interest at 3.60% per annum.
The proceeds of the bonds were used for general corporate purposes. The bonds mature in December 2031 with annual payments equal to 10% of the original principal
amount thereof on each of the seventh, eighth, and ninth anniversaries of the bonds, with the remaining 70% due upon maturity.

Revolving Credit Facilities:

In July 2022, the Company entered into a $2.5 billion credit agreement which matures in July 2027 (the "2027 Credit Facility") and consists of a
$2.5 billion revolving credit facility with a sub-limit of $360 million available for swing line loans, and a sub-limit of $175 million available for the issuance of
letters of credit. The 2027 Credit Facility replaced the previous $2.0 billion revolving credit facility, which was due to mature in January 2026. As of March 31,
2025 and 2024, no borrowings were outstanding.
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Borrowings under the 2027 Credit Facility bear interest, at the Company’s option, either at (i) the Base Rate (as defined in the 2027 Credit Facility), plus
1.0% and an applicable margin ranging from 0.125% to 0.750% per annum based on credit ratings or (ii) Term SOFR (or an Alternative Currency Term Rate
based on the applicable currency at issue or Alternative Currency Daily Rate based on Sterling Overnight Index Average) plus the applicable margin ranging
between 1.125% and 1.750% per annum based on credit ratings, plus an adjustment for Term SOFR loans of 0.10% per annum and an adjustment for Sterling
Overnight Index Average loans of 0.0326% per annum. Interest on the outstanding borrowings is payable, (i) in the case of borrowings at the Base Rate, on the
last business day of March, June, September and December of each calendar year and the maturity date, (ii) in the case of borrowings at the Term SOFR rate
(or Alternative Currency Term Rate), on the last day of the applicable interest period selected by the Company, which date shall be no later than the last day of
every third month and the maturity date and (iii) in the case of borrowings at the Alternative Currency Daily Rate, on the last day of each calendar month and
the maturity date. The Company is required to pay a quarterly commitment fee on the unutilized portion of the revolving credit commitments under the 2027
Credit Facility ranging from 0.125% to 0.275% per annum, based on credit ratings. The Company is also required to pay letter of credit usage fees ranging
from 1.125% to 1.750% per annum (based on the credit ratings) on the amount of the daily average outstanding letters of credit and a fronting fee of 0.125%
per annum on the undrawn and unexpired amount of each letter of credit.

Under the 2027 Credit Facility, the interest rate margins, commitment fee and letter of credit usage fee are subject to upward or downward adjustments if
the Company achieves, or fails to achieve, certain specified sustainability targets with respect to workplace safety and greenhouse gas emissions. Such upward
or downward sustainability adjustments may be up to 0.05% per annum in the case of the interest rate margins and letter of credit usage fee and up to 0.01%
per annum in the case of the commitment fee.

As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries had various uncommitted revolving credit facilities, lines of credit and other
credit facilities of $584 million and $318 million in the aggregate, respectively. There were no borrowings outstanding under these facilities as of March 31,
2025 and 2024. These unsecured credit facilities, and lines of credit and other credit facilities bear annual interest at the respective country's inter-bank offering
rate, plus an applicable margin.

Delayed Draw Term Loan:

In March 2025, the Company entered into a $500 million delayed draw term loan credit agreement. Borrowings under the delayed draw term loan may be
used for working capital, capital expenditures, refinancing of current debt and other general corporate purposes. The delayed draw term loan is available to be
drawn through June 30, 2025. All borrowings under the delayed draw term loan will become due on December 31, 2027. Interest is based on either (a) a Term
SOFR-based formula plus a margin of 87.5 basis points to 150 basis points, depending on the Company’s credit ratings, or (b) a Base Rate formula plus a
margin of 0.0 basis point to 50.0 basis points, depending on the Company's credit ratings. As of March 31, 2025, the Company had no borrowings outstanding.

Debt Covenants:

Borrowings under the Company’s debt agreements are subject to various covenants that limit the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, sell
assets, effect mergers and certain transactions, and effect certain transactions with subsidiaries and affiliates. In addition, the 2027 Credit Facility and delayed
draw term loan also require that the Company maintain a maximum ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, taxes,
depreciation and amortization), and a minimum interest coverage ratio. The Company is also subject to certain covenants requiring the Company to offer to
repurchase the 2025 Notes, 2026 Notes, 2028 Notes, 2029 Notes, 2030 Notes and 2032 Notes upon a change of control. As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the
Company was in compliance with its debt covenants.

The weighted-average interest rates for the Company's long-term debt were 4.6% and 4.5% as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Scheduled repayments of the Company's bank borrowings and long-term debt are as follows:
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Fiscal Year Ending March 31, Amount
(In millions)

2026 $ 1,209 
2027 — 
2028 398 
2029 27 
2030 682 
Thereafter 1,390 

Total $ 3,706 

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Foreign Currency Contracts

The Company transacts business in various foreign countries and is therefore exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk inherent in forecasted sales,
cost of sales, and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies. The Company has established risk management programs to protect
against volatility in the value of non-functional currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities, and of future cash flows caused by changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company tries to maintain a partial or fully hedged position for certain transaction exposures, which are primarily, but not limited
to, forecasted sales and cost of sales, and monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than the functional currency of the operating entity. The Company
enters into short-term and long-term foreign currency derivative contracts, including forward, swap, and option contracts, to hedge only those currency
exposures associated with certain assets and liabilities, primarily accounts receivable, accounts payable, debt, and cash flows denominated in non-functional
currencies. Gains and losses on the Company's derivative contracts are designed to offset losses and gains on the assets, liabilities and transactions hedged, and
accordingly, generally do not subject the Company to risk of significant accounting losses. The Company hedges committed exposures and does not engage in
speculative transactions. The credit risk of these derivative contracts is minimized since the contracts are with large financial institutions and, accordingly, fair
value adjustments related to the credit risk of the counterparty financial institution were not material.

As of March 31, 2025, the aggregate notional amount of the Company's outstanding foreign currency derivative contracts was $7.9 billion as summarized
below:

Notional Contract
Value in USD

Currency Buy Sell
(In millions)

Cash Flow Hedges
HUF $ 400  $ — 
MXN 391  — 
Other 577  7 

1,368  7 
Other Foreign Currency Contracts
CNY 881  513 
EUR 783  787 
HKD —  441 
MXN 452  325 
MYR 379  238 
Other 807  921 

3,302  3,225 
Total Notional Contract Value in USD $ 4,670  $ 3,232 

As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the fair value of the Company's short-term foreign currency contracts was included in other current assets or other
current liabilities, as applicable, in the consolidated balance sheets. Certain of these contracts are designed to economically hedge the Company's exposure to
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a non-functional
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currency and are not accounted for as hedges under the accounting standards. Accordingly, changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognized in
earnings during the period of change as a component of other charges (income), net in the consolidated statements of operations. The Company also has
included net deferred gains and losses in accumulated other comprehensive loss, a component of shareholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheets,
relating to changes in fair value of its foreign currency contracts that are accounted for as cash flow hedges. Deferred losses were $8 million as of March 31,
2025, and are expected to be recognized primarily as a component of cost of sales in the consolidated statement of operations primarily over the next twelve-
month period, except for gains attributable to changes in fair value of the USD HUF cross currency swaps, which are discussed below.

The Company entered into USD HUF cross currency swaps in December 2021 to hedge the foreign currency risk on the HUF bonds due December 2031,
and the fair value of the cross currency swaps was included in other current assets and other non-current liabilities as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
respectively. The changes in fair value of the USD HUF cross currency swaps are reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss. In addition,
corresponding amounts are reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss to other charges (income), net to offset the remeasurement of the
underlying HUF bond principal, which also impacts the same line.

The following table presents the fair value of the Company's derivative instruments utilized for foreign currency risk management purposes at March 31,
2025 and 2024:

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments
Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

Fair Value Fair Value
Balance Sheet

Location
March 31,

2025
March 31,

2024
Balance Sheet

Location
March 31,

2025
March 31,

2024
(In millions)

Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments
Foreign currency contracts Other current assets $ 13  $ 45  Other current liabilities $ (18) $ (9)

Foreign currency contracts
Other non-current

assets —  — 
Other non-current

liabilities (46) (33)
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency contracts Other current assets $ 21  $ 14  Other current liabilities $ (15) $ (10)

The Company has financial instruments subject to master netting arrangements, which provide for the net settlement of all contracts with certain
counterparties. The Company does not offset fair value amounts for assets and liabilities recognized for derivative instruments under these arrangements, as
such, the asset and liability balances presented in the table above reflect the gross amounts of derivatives in the consolidated balance sheets. The impact of
netting derivative assets and liabilities is not material to the Company's financial position for any of the periods presented.

11. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss by component, net of tax, during fiscal years ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 are as
follows:
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Unrealized gain (loss)
on

derivative
instruments and

other

Foreign currency
translation

adjustments Total
(In millions)

Ending balance on March 31, 2022 $ (66) $ (116) $ (182)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (25) (67) (92)
Net (gain) loss reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss 77  3  80 
Net current-period other comprehensive gain (loss) 52  (64) (12)

Ending balance on March 31, 2023 $ (14) $ (180) $ (194)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications 95  (19) 76 
Net (gain) loss reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss (77) —  (77)
Net current-period other comprehensive gain (loss) 18  (19) (1)

Ending balance on March 31, 2024 $ 4  $ (199) $ (195)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications (77) (6) (83)
Net (gain) loss reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss 54  —  54 
Net current-period other comprehensive gain (loss) (23) (6) (29)

Ending balance on March 31, 2025 $ (19) $ (205) $ (224)

Substantially all unrealized gains and losses relating to derivative instruments and other, reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss for the
fiscal year 2025 were reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss to other charges (income), net and cost of sales in the consolidated statement of
operations, which primarily relate to the Company's foreign currency contracts accounted for as cash flow hedges.

The tax impact to other comprehensive loss was immaterial for all periods presented.

12. TRADE RECEIVABLES SALES PROGRAMS

The Company sells accounts receivables to certain third-party banking institutions under factoring programs. The outstanding balance of receivables sold
and not yet collected on accounts where the Company has continuing involvement was approximately $0.7 billion and $0.8 billion as of March 31, 2025 and
2024, respectively. For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023, total accounts receivable sold to certain third party banking institutions was
approximately $4.0 billion, $3.6 billion and $3.5 billion, respectively. The receivables that were sold were removed from the consolidated balance sheets and
the cash received was included as cash provided by operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to be recorded at fair value,
the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact, and it considers assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. The accounting guidance for fair value establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective
evidence surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial instrument's categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 - Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. There were no balances
classified as level 1 in the fair value hierarchy as of March 31, 2025.

Level 2 - Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient
volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets) such as cash and cash equivalents and money market funds; or model-derived valuations in which
significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data.

The Company values foreign exchange forward contracts using level 2 observable inputs which primarily consist of an income approach based on the
present value of the forward rate less the contract rate multiplied by the notional amount.
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The Company's cash equivalents include bank time deposits and money market funds, which are valued using level 2 inputs, such as interest rates and
maturity periods. Due to their short-term nature, their carrying amount approximates fair value.

The Company has deferred compensation plans for its officers and certain other employees. Amounts deferred under the plans are invested in hypothetical
investments selected by the participant or the participant's investment manager. The Company's deferred compensation plan assets are included in other non-
current assets on the consolidated balance sheets and include money market funds, mutual funds, corporate and government bonds and certain convertible
securities that are valued using prices obtained from various pricing sources. These sources price these investments using certain market indices and the
performance of these investments in relation to these indices. As a result, the Company has classified these investments as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Level 3 - Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the measurement of
the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The Company has accrued for contingent consideration related to its acquisition of JetCool, classified as a level 3 measurement in the fair value hierarchy
due to significant unobservable inputs. Fair value is determined using internal cash flow models that incorporate unobservable inputs, including the probability
of achieving performance milestones. As of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the balances of contingent consideration were $5 million and zero,
respectively.

The significant inputs include the Company's probability assessments of expected future revenue during the earn-out periods, associated volatility, and a
discount rate reflecting uncertainties in the obligation consistent with the terms of the purchase agreement. Significant decreases in expected revenue, or
increases in the discount rate or volatility, would reduce fair value estimates. The interrelationship between these inputs is not considered significant.

There were no transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy during fiscal years 2025 and 2024.

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following table presents the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Fair Value Measurements as of March 31, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(In millions)

Assets:        
Money market funds and time deposits (Note 2) $ —  $ 1,535  $ —  $ 1,535 
Foreign currency contracts (Note 10) —  34  —  34 
Deferred compensation plan assets:

Mutual funds, money market accounts and equity securities —  43  —  43 
Liabilities:

Foreign currency contracts (Note 10) $ —  $ (79) $ —  $ (79)
Contingent consideration in connection with acquisitions —  —  (5) (5)

Fair Value Measurements as of March 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(In millions)
Assets:

Money market funds and time deposits (Note 2) $ —  $ 759  $ —  $ 759 
Foreign currency contracts (Note 10) —  59  —  59 
Deferred compensation plan assets:

Mutual funds, money market accounts and equity securities —  41  —  41 
Liabilities:

Foreign currency contracts (Note 10) $ —  $ (52) $ —  $ (52)
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Other financial instruments

The following table presents the Company's major debts not carried at fair value as of March 31, 2025 and 2024:

As of March 31, 2025 As of March 31, 2024
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Fair Value
Hierarchy

(In millions) (In millions)

4.750% Notes due June 2025 531  531  584  578  Level 1
3.750% Notes due February 2026 678  672  682  662  Level 1
6.000% Notes due January 2028 398  409  397  404  Level 1
4.875% Notes due June 2029 655  651  657  643  Level 1
4.875% Notes due May 2030 676  669  681  662  Level 1
5.250% Notes due January 2032 499  497  —  —  Level 1
3.600% HUF Bonds due December 2031 269  215  274  219  Level 2

The Notes due June 2025, February 2026, January 2028, June 2029, May 2030 and January 2032 are valued based on broker trading prices in active
markets. HUF Bonds are valued based on the broker trading prices in an inactive market.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the gross carrying amount and associated accumulated depreciation of the Company's property and equipment financed
under finance leases, and the related obligations was not material. The Company also leases certain of its facilities and equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases. These operating leases expire in various years through 2044. Refer to note 3 for additional details on the minimum lease payments.

Litigation and other legal matters

In connection with the matters described below, the Company has accrued for loss contingencies where it believes that losses are probable and estimable.
Although it is reasonably possible that actual losses could be in excess of the Company’s accrual, the Company is unable to estimate a reasonably possible loss
or range of loss in excess of its accrual, due to various reasons, including, among others, that: (i) the proceedings are in early stages or no claims have been
asserted, (ii) specific damages have not been sought in all of these matters, (iii) damages, if asserted, are considered unsupported and/or exaggerated, (iv) there
is uncertainty as to the outcome of pending appeals, motions, or settlements, (v) there are significant factual issues to be resolved, and/or (vi) there are novel
legal issues or unsettled legal theories presented. Any such excess loss could have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or cash flows for a
particular period or on the Company’s financial condition.

As previously disclosed, the Company was involved in a commercial dispute related to a construction matter with related production objectives.
Management had assessed the potential outcomes of this dispute, considered available information, and consulted with legal counsel and as a result of this
assessment recognized $50 million in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 as an accrual. The parties reached a settlement in line with the
accrued amount after the end of the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025.

One of the Company's Brazilian subsidiaries received six assessments for certain sales and import taxes. Four of the assessments have been successfully
definitively defeated. The Company was unsuccessful at the administrative level in two of the remaining assessments and filed annulment actions in federal
court in Brasilia, Brazil. The first annulment action was filed on March 23, 2020; the updated value of that assessment inclusive of interest and penalties is
37 million Brazilian reals (approximately USD $6 million). The Brazilian court ruled in favor of the Company on the first annulment action on March 7, 2025
and the assessment obligation has been canceled, although it remains subject to appeal. The second annulment action was filed on September 19, 2023; the
updated value of that assessment inclusive of interest and penalties is 60 million Brazilian reals (approximately USD $10 million). The Company is still
awaiting a resolution of the second annulment action. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to these assessments and will continue to
vigorously oppose them, as well as any future assessments. The Company does not expect final judicial determination on any of these claims in the near future.
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A foreign Tax Authority ("Tax Authority") had assessed a cumulative total of approximately $285 million in taxes owed for multiple Flex legal entities
within its jurisdiction for various fiscal years ranging from fiscal year 2010 through fiscal year 2020. The assessed amounts related to the denial of certain
deductible intercompany payments and taxability of income earned outside such jurisdiction. In the quarter ended March 31, 2025, approximately $118 million
of the approximate $285 million assessment was abated by the Tax Authority, leaving approximately $167 million remaining. The Company disagrees with the
Tax Authority’s remaining assessments and is actively contesting the assessments through the administrative and judicial processes. 

As the final resolution of the above outstanding tax item remains uncertain, the Company continues to provide for the uncertain tax positions based on the
more likely than not standard. While the resolution of the issues may result in tax liabilities, interest and penalties, which may be significantly higher than the
amounts accrued for these matters, management currently believes that the resolution will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In addition to the matters discussed above, from time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinary
course of business. The Company defends itself vigorously against any such claims. Although the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable,
management expects that any losses that are probable or reasonably possible of being incurred as a result of these matters, which are in excess of amounts
already accrued in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, would not be material to the financial statements as a whole.

15. INCOME TAXES

The domestic (Singapore) and foreign components of income from continuing operations before income taxes were comprised of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023

(In millions)
Domestic $ 94  $ (165) $ 99 
Foreign 929  831  708 

Total $ 1,023  $ 666  $ 807 

The (benefit from) provision for income taxes from continuing operations consisted of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023

(In millions)

Current:
Domestic $ 2  $ 3  $ 6 
Foreign 128  161  117 

130  164  123 
Deferred:

Domestic 3  (1) 1 
Foreign 52  (369) — 

55  (370) 1 
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes $ 185  $ (206) $ 124 
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The domestic statutory income tax rate was approximately 17.0% in fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023. The reconciliation of the income tax expense
(benefit) from continuing operations expected based on domestic statutory income tax rates to the expense (benefit) for income taxes included in the
consolidated statements of operations is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023

(In millions)

Income taxes based on domestic statutory rates $ 174  $ 113  $ 137 
Effect of jurisdictional tax rate differential 13  68  52 
Change in unrecognized tax benefit (19) (10) (7)
Change in valuation allowance (37) (685) (290)
Foreign exchange movement on prior year taxes recoverable 4  (1) 4 
Liability for undistributed earnings 6  135  — 
Global intangible low-taxed income (GILTI) / Subpart F income 9  13  18 
Nextracker related transactions gains —  115  158 
Earnings from partnership —  47  39 
U.S. state taxes 10  10  2 
Excess compensation (Section 162(m)) 16  15  9 
Other 9  (26) 2 
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes $ 185  $ (206) $ 124 

A number of countries in which the Company is located allow for tax holidays or provide other tax incentives to attract and retain business. In general,
these holidays were secured based on the nature, size and location of the Company’s operations. The aggregate dollar effect on the Company’s income resulting
from tax holidays and tax incentives to attract and retain business for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 were $17 million, $20 million and
$14 million, respectively. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, the effect on basic and diluted earnings per share was $0.04, and the effects on basic and
diluted earnings per share during fiscal years 2024 and 2023 were $0.05, and $0.03, respectively. Unless extended or otherwise renegotiated, the Company's
existing holidays will expire in various years through the end of fiscal year 2032.

The Company provides a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets that in the Company's estimation are not more likely than not to be realized.
During fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, the Company released net valuation allowances totaling $4 million, $447 million and $6 million, respectively. For
fiscal year 2025, included in the $4 million net release was a $5 million valuation allowance release related to the Company’s Canadian operations as these
amounts were deemed to be more likely than not to be realized.

In addition, various other valuation allowance positions in other jurisdictions were increased or decreased to offset movement in deferred tax positions
due to varying factors such as one-time income recognition in loss entities with existing valuation allowances, liquidation of entities with existing valuation
allowances, recognition of uncertain tax positions impacting deferred tax assets with existing valuation allowances, foreign exchange impacts on deferred tax
balances with existing valuation allowances, and current period losses in legal entities with existing valuation allowance positions. These offsetting changes in
the valuation allowance included a decrease of $53 million in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, an increase of $43 million and a decrease of $254 million
in the fiscal years ended March 31 2024 and, 2023, respectively.

Under its territorial tax system, Singapore generally does not tax foreign sourced income until repatriated to Singapore. The Company has included the
effects of Singapore's territorial tax system in the rate differential line above. The tax effects of foreign income not repatriated to Singapore for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 were $96 million, zero and $31 million, respectively.
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The components of deferred income taxes are as follows:

As of March 31,
2025 2024

(In millions)

Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets $ (44) $ (59)
Intangible assets (52) (56)
Others (128) (149)
Total deferred tax liabilities (224) (264)

Deferred tax assets:
Fixed assets 76  82 
Intangible assets 3  4 
Deferred compensation 37  25 
Inventory valuation 32  26 
Provision for doubtful accounts 3  2 
Net operating loss and other carryforwards 1,022  1,168 
Tax receivable agreement 74  77 
Others 186  184 
Total deferred tax assets 1,433  1,568 

Valuation allowances (781) (838)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances 652  730 

Net deferred tax asset $ 428  $ 466 
The net deferred tax asset is classified as follows:

Long-term asset $ 577  $ 644 
Long-term liability (149) (178)
Total $ 428  $ 466 

Utilization of the Company's deferred tax assets is limited by the future earnings of the Company in the tax jurisdictions in which such deferred assets
arose. As a result, management is uncertain as to when or whether these operations will generate sufficient profit to realize any benefit from the deferred tax
assets. The valuation allowance provides a reserve against deferred tax assets that are not more likely than not to be realized by the Company. However,
management has determined that it is more likely than not that the Company will realize certain of these benefits and, accordingly, has recognized a deferred
tax asset from these benefits. The change in valuation allowance is net of certain increases and decreases to prior year losses and other carryforwards that have
no current impact on the tax provision.

The Company has recorded deferred tax assets of approximately $1.1 billion related to tax losses and other carryforwards against which the Company has
recorded a valuation allowance for all but $286 million of the deferred tax assets. These tax losses and other carryforwards will expire at various dates as
follows:

Expiration dates of deferred tax assets related to operating losses and other carryforwards
Fiscal year (In millions)
2026 - 2031 $ 134 
2032 - 2037 204 
2038 and thereafter 17 
Indefinite 696 

$ 1,051 

The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced or increased in the near-term if facts, including the amount of taxable
income or the mix of taxable income between subsidiaries, differ from management’s estimates.
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The Company does not provide for income taxes on approximately $767 million of undistributed earnings of its subsidiaries which are considered to be
indefinitely reinvested outside of Singapore as management has plans for the use of such earnings to fund certain activities outside of Singapore. The estimated
amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability on these undistributed earnings is approximately $80 million. In the current year, the Company, as part of its
regular process, assessed its cash position in overseas territories relative to the levels needed to manage operations and fund future investment in those
territories. Following a sustained improvement in the working capital position in China and a trend of customers nearshoring their manufacturing operations,
management noted that the current and forecasted cash position in China was in excess of levels required to fund the Company’s business in the country. As a
result, a deferred tax liability of $117 million was recorded on the remaining distributable earnings from China of approximately $1.17 billion.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
March 31,

2025 2024
(In millions)

Balance, beginning of fiscal year $ 197  $ 268 
Additions based on tax position related to the current year 10  10 
Additions for tax positions of prior years 1  22 
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (5) (82)
Reductions related to lapse of applicable statute of limitations (23) (17)
Impact from foreign exchange rates fluctuation —  (4)

Balance, end of fiscal year $ 180  $ 197 

The Company’s unrecognized tax benefits are subject to change over the next twelve months primarily as a result of the expiration of certain statutes of
limitations and as audits are settled. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by an
additional approximate $15 million within the next twelve months primarily due to potential settlements of various audits and the expiration of certain statutes
of limitations.

The Company and its subsidiaries file federal, state, and local income tax returns in multiple jurisdictions around the world. With few exceptions, the
Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2006.

Of the $180 million of unrecognized tax benefits at March 31, 2025, $153 million will affect the annual effective tax rate ("ETR") if the benefits are
eventually recognized. The amount that does not impact the ETR relates to positions that would be settled with a tax loss carryforward previously subject to a
valuation allowance.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits within the Company’s tax expense. During the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized interest and penalties of approximately ($3) million, ($2) million and ($1) million,
respectively. The Company had approximately $10 million, $13 million and $15 million accrued for the payment of interest and penalties as of the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

16. RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

Fiscal Year 2025

During fiscal year 2025, the Company committed to targeted restructuring activities to improve operational efficiency by reducing excess workforce
capacity. As a result, the Company recognized approximately $86 million of restructuring charges, most of which related to employee severance. Certain
restructuring charges of $84 million are not included in segment income, as disclosed further in note 21.

Fiscal Year 2024

The Company identified certain structural changes to restructure its business throughout fiscal year 2024. During fiscal year 2024, the Company
recognized approximately $175 million of restructuring charges, most of which related to employee severance and are not included in segment income.

Fiscal Year 2023
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The Company identified certain structural changes to restructure its business throughout fiscal year 2023. During fiscal year 2023, the Company
recognized approximately $27 million of restructuring charges, most of which related to employee severance. Restructuring charges are not included in
segment income.

The following table summarizes the provisions for charges incurred, respective payments for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023,
respectively, and remaining accrued balances as of the same periods:

Severance

Long-Lived
Asset

Impairment
Other

Exit Costs Total
(In millions)

Balance as of March 31, 2022 $ 35  $ —  $ 8  $ 43 
Provision for charges incurred in fiscal year 2023 27  —  —  27 
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2022 and prior (7) —  —  (7)
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2023 (11) —  —  (11)
Non-cash reductions incurred in fiscal year 2023 —  —  (2) (2)

Balance as of March 31, 2023 44  —  6  50 
Provision for charges incurred in fiscal year 2024 161  14  —  175 
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2023 and prior (13) —  —  (13)
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2024 (115) —  —  (115)
Non-cash reductions incurred in fiscal year 2024 —  (14) (3) (17)

Balance as of March 31, 2024 77  —  3  80 
Provision for charges incurred in fiscal year 2025 76  10  —  86 
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2024 and prior (20) —  —  (20)
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2025 (54) —  —  (54)
Non-cash reductions incurred in fiscal year 2025 (1) (28) (10) (3) (41)

Balance as of March 31, 2025 51  —  —  51 
Less: Current portion (classified as other current liabilities) 51  —  —  51 
Accrued restructuring costs, net of current portion (classified as other non-current
liabilities) $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 

(1) The non-cash adjustments predominantly relate to the liabilities derecognized as part of a business disposition. Refer to Note 19 for further details.

17. OTHER CHARGES (INCOME), NET

Other charges (income), net for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 are comprised of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31
2025 2024 2023

(In millions)

(Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange transactions $ 10  $ 24  $ (7)
(Gain) on bargain purchase (1) (19) —  — 
Other (5) 20  13 

(1) Represents the gain on bargain purchase as a result of an acquisition occurring during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2025. See note 19 "Business and Asset
Acquisitions & Divestitures" for additional information.

18. INTEREST EXPENSE AND INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense and interest income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 are primarily comprised of the following:
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31
2025 2024 2023

(In millions)
Interest expenses on debt obligations $ 185  $ 161  $ 191 
AR sales programs related expenses 33  46  39 
Interest income (61) (56) (30)

19. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS & DIVESTITURES

Fiscal 2025 Acquisitions and divestitures

The Company completed four acquisitions during fiscal year 2025, accounted for as business combinations. The results of the acquired businesses are
included in the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements from their respective acquisition dates. The allocation of the purchase price to the
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed was based on their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. The excess of
the purchase price over the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed has been allocated to goodwill and if the fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the purchase consideration a gain on bargain purchase was recognized. Pro-forma results of operations have not
been presented because the effects were not material to the Company’s condensed consolidated financial results for all periods presented. Additional
information, which existed as of the acquisition date, may become known to the Company during the remainder of the measurement period, a period not to
exceed 12 months from the date of acquisition. Changes to amounts recorded as assets and liabilities may result in a corresponding adjustment to goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase during the respective measurement periods.

Acquisition of Crown Technical Systems ("Crown")

On November 19, 2024, the Company completed the business acquisition of 100% ownership of Crown, a U.S. leader in critical power solutions for a total
estimated purchase consideration of $319 million, including cash of $313 million and a $6 million estimate of customary closing adjustments. The acquisition
adds complementary capabilities to our existing portfolio in the United States, primarily strengthening our industrial power solutions. Crown is included in the
Industrial reporting unit within the FRS segment. The following represents the Company's preliminary allocation of the total purchase price to the acquired
assets and liabilities of Crown (in millions):

Current Assets:
Cash $ 5 
Accounts receivable 23 
Inventory 10 
Other current assets 2 
        Total current assets 40 
Property and equipment 1 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 7 
Intangible assets 128 
Goodwill 170 
        Total assets $ 346 

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4 
Accrued liabilities & other current liabilities 17 
        Total current liabilities 21 
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 6 
          Total aggregate purchase price $ 319 

The intangible assets of $128 million are comprised of customer related intangible assets of $83 million and licenses and other intangible assets such as
trade names and patented technology of $45 million. Customer related assets will be amortized
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over a weighted-average estimated useful life of 12.6 years while licenses and other intangibles will be amortized over a weighted-average estimated useful life
of 10.0 years.

Acquisition of JetCool Technologies Inc. ("JetCool")

On November 14, 2024, the Company acquired 100% ownership of JetCool, a provider of liquid cooling solutions tailored for the data center market, for
approximately $43 million in cash, a deemed settled pre-existing loan from Flex of approximately $5 million, and $5 million of contingent consideration for a
total estimated purchase price of $53 million. JetCool is included in the Communications, Enterprise and Cloud reporting unit within the FAS segment. The
following represents the Company's preliminary allocation of the total purchase price to the acquired assets and liabilities of JetCool (in millions):

Current Assets:
Cash $ 4 
Inventory 1 
        Total current assets 5 
Property and equipment 1 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 2 
Intangible assets 21 
Goodwill 31 
        Total assets $ 60 

Operating lease liabilities $ 2 
Deferred tax liability 5 
          Total aggregate purchase price $ 53 

Intangible assets of $21 million relate to developed technology and will be amortized over a weighted-average estimated useful life of 6.5 years.

Acquisition of Orangeburg Manufacturing Facility ("Orangeburg")

On February 4, 2025, the Company acquired the U.S. manufacturing operations of the Forest & Garden division of Husqvarna, a leading global producer of
outdoor power products. Under the agreement, the Company assumed operation of Husqvarna’s Orangeburg, South Carolina, facility to support Husqvarna’s
U.S. manufacturing requirements. The total estimated purchase consideration was $78 million, including $57 million in cash and $21 million in deferred
consideration, to be paid $8 million in fiscal year 2026, $5 million in fiscal year 2027, $4 million in fiscal year 2028 and $4 million in fiscal year 2029.
Additionally, the Company recognized a gain on bargain purchase of $19 million in other charges (income) on the consolidated statements of operations during
fiscal year 2025. The gain on bargain purchase reflects the seller’s strategic decision to prioritize its partnership with Flex as a manufacturing partner. The
acquired business is included in the Lifestyle reporting unit within the FAS segment. The following represents the Company's preliminary allocation of the total
purchase price to the acquired assets and liabilities of the business (in millions):
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Current Assets:
Inventory $ 32 
        Total current assets 32 
Property and equipment 57 
Intangible assets 15 
        Total assets $ 104 

Deferred tax liability $ 7 
Net assets acquired $ 97 
Gain on Bargain Purchase $ (19)
          Total aggregate purchase price $ 78 

Intangible assets of $15 million relate to customer relationships and will be amortized over a weighted-average estimated useful life of 5 years.

Other Acquisition

In May 2024, the Company completed the acquisition of a business that was not material to the Company's consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows. The acquisition expands the Company’s service offerings across multiple markets and supports sustainability initiatives through
second-life products. $8 million of goodwill was recognized in connection with this transaction, as of March 31, 2025.

Divestiture

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, the Company disposed of one of its European sites. The property and equipment and various other assets sold
and liabilities transferred were not material to the Company's consolidated financial results. The net loss on disposition of $6 million was recorded in other
charges (income), net in the consolidated statements of operations for fiscal year 2025.

Fiscal 2024 Divestitures

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, the Company completed the spin-off of Nextracker. See note 7 - "Discontinued Operations" for additional
information.

In addition, the Company disposed of a non-strategic business within the FRS segment and received proceeds of approximately $14 million. The property
and equipment and various other assets sold and liabilities transferred were not material to the Company's consolidated financial results. The net loss on
dispositions was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial results, and was included in other charges (income), net in the consolidated statements of
operations for fiscal year 2024.

Fiscal 2023 Divestitures

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the Company disposed of a non-strategic business within the FRS segment and received approximately
$4 million of proceeds. The property and equipment and various other assets sold and liabilities transferred were not material to the Company's consolidated
financial results. The net gain on dispositions was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial results, and was included in other charges (income), net
in the consolidated statements of operations for the fiscal year 2023.

20. SHARE REPURCHASE PLAN

During fiscal year 2025, the Company repurchased approximately 38.5 million shares for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.3 billion and
retired 32.9 million of these shares.

Under the Company’s current share repurchase program, the Board of Directors authorized repurchases of its outstanding ordinary shares for up to $1.7
billion in accordance with the share repurchase mandate approved by the Company’s shareholders at the date of the most recent Annual General Meeting held
on August 8, 2024. As of March 31, 2025, shares in the aggregate amount of $1.0 billion were available to be repurchased under the current plan.
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21. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company's Chief Executive Officer is our Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") who evaluates how we allocate resources, assess performance
and make strategic and operational decisions. Based on such evaluation, the Company determined as of and for the period ended March 31, 2025, that Flex has
two operating and reportable segments. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2024, following the Nextracker spin-off, the Company classified the pre spin-
off results of Nextracker, formerly our Nextracker segment, as discontinued operations in our consolidated statements of operations. See note 7 "Discontinued
Operations" for additional information.

The FAS segment is optimized for speed to market based on a highly flexible supply and manufacturing system. FAS is comprised of the following end
markets that represent reporting units:

• Communications, Enterprise and Cloud, including data center, edge, and communications infrastructure
• Lifestyle, including appliances, floorcare, smart living, HVAC, and power tools
• Consumer Devices, including mobile and high velocity consumer devices.

The FRS segment is optimized for longer product lifecycles requiring complex ramps with specialized production models and critical environments. FRS
is comprised of the following end markets that represent reporting units:

• Industrial, including industrial devices, capital equipment, renewables, critical power, and embedded power.
• Automotive, including compute platforms, power electronics, motion, and interface
• Health Solutions, including medical devices, medical equipment, and drug delivery

The determination of the separate operating and reporting segments is based on several factors, including the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, customer base, delivery channels and similar economic characteristics.

An operating segment's performance is evaluated based on its pre-tax operating contribution, or segment income. Segment income is defined as net sales
less cost of sales (disaggregated below into cost of inventory and manufacturing expenses), and segment selling, general and administrative expenses, and does
not include amortization of intangibles, stock-based compensation, certain restructuring charges, customer related asset impairment, legal and other, interest
expense, interest income, other charges (income), net, and equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. A portion of depreciation is allocated to the respective
segments, together with other general corporate, research and development and administrative expenses.
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Selected financial information by segment is in the tables below.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2025 FAS FRS Corporate & Other Total
Net Sales $ 14,074  $ 11,739  $ —  $ 25,813 

Cost of inventory (10,378) (7,866) —  (18,244)
Manufacturing expenses (2,508) (2,774) (26) (5,308)
Segment selling, general and administrative expenses (334) (415) (53) (802)

Segment income $ 854  $ 684  $ (79) $ 1,459 

Intangible amortization $ 70 
Stock-based compensation 125 
Restructuring charges 84 
Customer related asset impairment (1) 2 
Legal and other (2) 9 
Interest expenses 218 
Interest income 61 
Other charges (income), net (14)
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates (3)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 1,023 

(1) Customer related asset impairments may consist of non-cash impairments of property and equipment to estimated fair value for customers from whom we have
disengaged or are in the process of disengaging as well as additional provisions for doubtful accounts receivable for customers that are experiencing financial
difficulties and inventory that is considered non-recoverable that is written down to net realizable value. In subsequent periods, the Company may recover a portion of
the costs previously incurred related to assets impaired or reduced to net realizable value. During fiscal year 2025, the Company recognized approximately $2 million
of customer related asset impairments.

(2) Legal and other consists of costs not directly related to core business results including matters relating to commercial disputes, government regulatory and compliance,
intellectual property, antitrust, tax, employment or shareholder issues, product liability claims and other issues on a global basis as well as acquisition related costs and
asset impairment. During fiscal year 2025, the Company accrued for $5 million related to asset impairments and $4 million is related to acquisition costs.
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2024 FAS FRS Corporate & Other Total
Net Sales $ 13,923  $ 12,492  $ —  $ 26,415 

Cost of inventory (10,549) (8,610) 10  (19,149)
Manufacturing expenses (2,382) (2,796) (28) (5,206)
Segment selling, general and administrative expenses (323) (420) (50) (793)

Segment income $ 669  $ 666  $ (68) $ 1,267 

Intangible amortization $ 70 
Stock-based compensation 113 
Restructuring charges 172 
Customer related asset impairment (1) 14 
Legal and other (2) 45 
Interest expenses 207 
Interest income 56 
Other charges (income), net 44 
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates 8 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 666 

(1) Customer related asset impairments may consist of non-cash impairments of property and equipment to estimated fair value for customers from whom we have
disengaged or are in the process of disengaging as well as additional provisions for doubtful accounts receivable for customers that are experiencing financial
difficulties and inventory that is considered non-recoverable that is written down to net realizable value. In subsequent periods, the Company may recover a portion of
the costs previously incurred related to assets impaired or reduced to net realizable value. During fiscal year 2024, the Company recognized approximately $14 million
of customer related asset impairments.

(2) Legal and other consists of costs not directly related to core business results including matters relating to commercial disputes, government regulatory and compliance,
intellectual property, antitrust, tax, employment or shareholder issues, product liability claims and other issues on a global basis as well as acquisition related costs and
customer related asset recoveries. During fiscal year 2024, the Company recognized a $50 million loss contingency for a commercial dispute related to a construction
matter with related production objectives.
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023 FAS FRS Corporate & Other Total
Net Sales $ 15,769  $ 12,733  $ —  $ 28,502 

Cost of inventory (12,256) (9,067) 19  (21,304)
Manufacturing expenses (2,485) (2,655) (30) (5,170)
Segment selling, general and administrative expenses (334) (404) (58) (796)

Segment income $ 694  $ 607  $ (69) $ 1,232 

Intangible amortization $ 81 
Stock-based compensation 101 
Restructuring charges 27 
Customer related asset impairment — 
Legal and other (1) 6 
Interest expenses 230 
Interest income 30 
Other charges (income), net 6 
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates (4)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 807 

(1) Legal and other consists of costs not directly related to core business results including matters relating to commercial disputes, government regulatory and compliance,
intellectual property, antitrust, tax, employment or shareholder issues, product liability claims and other issues on a global basis as well as acquisition related costs and
customer related asset recoveries. During fiscal year 2023, the Company accrued for certain loss contingencies where losses are considered probable and estimable
offset by a gain upon successful settlement of certain supplier claims.

Corporate and Other primarily includes corporate service costs that are not included in the CODM's assessment of the performance of each of the
identified reporting segments.

The Company provides an overall platform of assets and services, which the segments utilize for the benefit of their various customers. The shared assets
and services are contained within the Company's global manufacturing and design operations and include manufacturing and design facilities. Most of the
underlying manufacturing and design assets are co-mingled in the operating campuses and are compatible to operate across segments and highly
interchangeable throughout the platform. Given the highly interchangeable nature of the assets, they are not separately identified by segment nor reported by
segment to the Company's CODM.
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Property and equipment on a segment basis is not separately identified and is not internally reported by segment to the Company's CODM as described
above. During fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, total depreciation expense, including amounts allocated to the reportable segments and Corporate and Other, is
as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023

(In millions)
Depreciation expense:

Flex Agility Solutions $ 179  $ 171  $ 177 
Flex Reliability Solutions 249  241  217 
Corporate and Other 11  16  17 

Total depreciation expense $ 439  $ 428  $ 411 

Geographic information of net sales is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023

(In millions)

Net sales by region:
Americas $ 12,656  49 % $ 12,232  46 % $ 11,906  42 %
Asia 7,701  30 % 8,540  32 % 10,384  36 %
Europe 5,456  21 % 5,643  22 % 6,212  22 %

$ 25,813  $ 26,415  $ 28,502 

Revenues are attributable to the country in which the product is manufactured or service is provided.

During fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, net sales generated from Singapore, the country of domicile, were approximately $266 million, $660 million
and $552 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes the countries that accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal years 2025, 2024, and 2023:

  Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023

  (In millions)

Net sales by country:
Mexico $ 6,854  27 % $ 6,935  26 % $ 6,626  23 %
China 4,319  17 % 5,117  19 % 6,562  23 %
U.S. 4,162  16 % 3,598  14 % 3,394  12 %

No other country accounted for more than 10% of net sales for the fiscal periods presented in the table above.

Geographic information of property and equipment, net is as follows:

As of March 31,
2025 2024

(In millions)
Property and equipment, net:

Americas $ 1,292  55 % $ 1,220  54 %
Asia 555  24 % 565  25 %
Europe 483  21 % 484  21 %

$ 2,330  $ 2,269 
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As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, property and equipment, net held in Singapore was approximately $4 million and $5 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes the countries that accounted for more than 10% of property and equipment, net in fiscal years 2025 and 2024:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(In millions)
Property and equipment, net:

Mexico $ 815  35 % $ 793  35 %
U.S. 376  16 % 334  15 %
China 293  13 % 307  14 %

No other country accounted for more than 10% of property and equipment, net for the fiscal periods presented in the table above.

22. NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

On January 2, 2024, the Company completed its previously announced spin-off of its remaining interests in Nextracker to Flex shareholders on a pro-rata
basis based on the number of ordinary shares of Flex held by each shareholder of Flex as of December 29, 2023, which was the record date of the Distribution,
pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 7, 2023.

Flex's noncontrolling and redeemable noncontrolling interest related solely to Nextracker. As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, noncontrolling interest was
zero. Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest was zero, $239 million and $197 million in fiscal years 2025, 2024, and 2023, respectively. Net income
attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest was zero in fiscal years 2025 and 2024, and $43 million in fiscal year 2023.

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 30, 2025, Flex completed the acquisition of a manufacturing business in Bielsko Biała, Poland for estimated consideration of $35 million. The
acquisition, which will be accounted for as a business combination, is not significant to the consolidated financial position, result of operations and cash flows
of the Company. The acquired business will support the growth of Flex's power business in Europe.

24. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The Company's third fiscal quarter ends on December 31, and the fourth fiscal quarter and fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year. The first fiscal
quarters of 2025 and 2024 ended on June 28, 2024 and June 30, 2023 respectively, and the second fiscal quarters of 2025 and 2024, ended on September 27,
2024, and September 29, 2023, respectively.
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The Company completed the Nextracker spin-off in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2024, which resulted in material retrospective changes to our
consolidated statements of operations. See note 7 "Discontinued Operations" for further information. The following tables contain unaudited quarterly financial
data for fiscal year 2025 and 2024:

Fiscal Year 2025
Three Months Ended

June 28, 2024 September 27, 2024 December 31, 2024 March 31, 2025
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales $ 6,314  $ 6,545  $ 6,556  $ 6,398 
Gross profit 471  531  594  563 
Operating income 233  297  334  305 
Net income attributable to Flex Ltd. 139  214  263  222 

Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding - basic 402 394 387 381
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding - diluted 411 400 394 389

Earnings per share - basic (1)
Total attributable to the shareholders of Flex Ltd. $ 0.35  $ 0.54  $ 0.68  $ 0.58 

Earnings per share - diluted (1)
Total attributable to the shareholders of Flex Ltd. $ 0.34  $ 0.54  $ 0.67  $ 0.57 

(1)    Earnings per share are computed independently for each quarter presented; therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per share may not equal the total earnings per
share amounts for the fiscal year.
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Fiscal Year 2024
Three Months Ended

June 30, 2023 September 29, 2023 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales $ 6,892  $ 6,933  $ 6,421  $ 6,169 
Gross profit 476  519  433  437 
Operating income 215  281  198  159 
Net income from continuing operations 147  201  129  395 
Net income from discontinued operations, net of tax 64  205  104  — 
Net income 211  406  233  395 
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest and redeemable
noncontrolling interest 25  178  36  — 
Net income attributable to Flex Ltd. $ 186  $ 228  $ 197  $ 395 

Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding - basic 447 443 431 417
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding - diluted 455 448 436 425

Earnings per share - basic (1)
Continuing operations $ 0.33  $ 0.45  $ 0.30  $ 0.95 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 0.09  0.06  0.16  — 
Total attributable to the shareholders of Flex Ltd. $ 0.42  $ 0.51  $ 0.46  $ 0.95 

Earnings per share - diluted (1)
Continuing operations $ 0.32  $ 0.45  $ 0.30  $ 0.93 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 0.09  0.06  0.15  — 
Total attributable to the shareholders of Flex Ltd. $ 0.41  $ 0.51  $ 0.45  $ 0.93 

(1)    Earnings per share are computed independently for each quarter presented; therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per share may not equal the total earnings per
share amounts for the fiscal year.
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ITEM 9.    CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A.    CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company's management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) as
of March 31, 2025. Based on that evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of March 31, 2025, the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act, is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and (ii)
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting consists of policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) are designed and operated to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the Company's financial reporting and the Company's process for the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent
limitations, a system of internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance and may not prevent or detect misstatements or prevent
or detect instances of fraud. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls may be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or
by management override of the control. The projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management excluded Crown Technical Systems, JetCool Technologies Inc., and the U.S. manufacturing operations of the Forest & Garden division of
Husqvarna, which were acquired during fiscal year 2025, from its annual assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
March 31, 2025. These fiscal year 2025 acquisitions constitute, in aggregate, less than 2% of total assets and less than 1% of net sales of the related
consolidated financial statement amounts as of, and for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025.

As of March 31, 2025, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, an evaluation was conducted of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO"). Based on that
evaluation, management concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of March 31, 2025.

(c) Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2025 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears in this Item under the heading "Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm."

(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter ended March 31, 2025 that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Flex Ltd., Singapore

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Flex Ltd. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of March 31, 2025, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2025, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, of the Company, and our report dated May 21, 2025 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements.

As described in Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the internal control
over financial reporting of Crown Technical Systems, JetCool Technologies Inc., and the U.S. manufacturing operations of the Forest & Garden division of
Husqvarna, which were acquired during fiscal year 2025, and whose financial statements, in the aggregate, constitute less than 2% of total assets and less than
1% of net sales of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, our audit did not include the
internal control over financial reporting at Crown Technical Systems, JetCool Technologies Inc., nor the U.S. manufacturing operations of the Forest & Garden
division of Husqvarna.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Jose, California
May 21, 2025
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ITEM 9B.    OTHER INFORMATION

Insider Trading Arrangements

During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2025, none of the Company’s directors or officers adopted or terminated a "Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement"
or "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement", as those terms are defined in Regulation S-K, Item 408.

ITEM 9C.    DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not applicable.

PART III

ITEM 10.    DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information with respect to this item may be found in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be delivered to shareholders in connection with the
Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Such information is incorporated by reference.

ITEM 11.    EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to this item may be found in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be delivered to shareholders in connection with the
Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Such information is incorporated by reference.

ITEM 12.    SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

Information with respect to this item may be found in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be delivered to shareholders in connection with the
Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Such information is incorporated by reference.

ITEM 13.    CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information with respect to this item may be found in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be delivered to shareholders in connection with the
Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Such information is incorporated by reference.

ITEM 14.    PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES (Deloitte & Touche LLP, PCAOB ID: 34)

Information with respect to this item may be found in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be delivered to shareholders in connection with the
Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Such information is incorporated by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.    EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K:

1.    Financial Statements.    See Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."

2.    Financial Statement Schedules.   "Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts" is included in the financial statements, see Concentration of
Credit Risk in Note 2, "Summary of Accounting Policies" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data."

3.    Exhibits.    Reference is made to Item 15(b) below.

(b)    Exhibits.    The Exhibit Index, which immediately precedes the signature page to this annual report on Form 10-K, is incorporated by reference into
this annual report on Form 10-K.

(c)    Financial Statement Schedules.    Reference is made to Item 15(a)(2) above.

ITEM 16.    FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None

EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit No. Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date Exhibit No. Filed Herewith

3.01 Constitution of the Registrant (incorporating all
amendments as at August 20, 2019)

10-Q 000-23354 10/30/2019 3.01

4.01 Indenture, dated as of June 8, 2015, by and between the
Registrant, the Guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee

8-K 000-23354 6/8/2015 4.1

4.02 Form of 4.750% Note due 2025 (included in Exhibit 4.01) 8-K 000-23354 6/8/2015 4.1
4.03 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 11,

2015, among the Registrant, the Guarantor party thereto
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, related to
the Registrant’s 4.750% Notes due 2025

S-4 333-207067 9/22/2015 4.04

4.04 Indenture, dated as of June 6, 2019, by and between the
Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee

8-K 000-23354 6/6/2019 4.1

4.05 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 6, 2019, by
and between the Company and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee

8-K 000-23354 6/6/2019 4.2

4.06 Form of 4.875% Global Note due 2029 (included in
Exhibit 4.05)

8-K 000-23354 6/6/2019 4.3

4.07 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 7,
2019, by and between the Company and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee

8-K 000-23354 11/7/2019 4.3

4.08 Form of 4.875% Global Note due 2029 (included in
Exhibit 4.07)

8-K 000-23354 11/7/2019 4.4

4.09 Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 12, 2020,
by and between the Company and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee

8-K 000-23354 5/12/2020 4.2

4.10 Form of 3.750% Global Note due 2026 (included in
Exhibit 4.09)

8-K 000-23354 5/12/2020 4.3

4.11 Form of 4.875% Global Note due 2030 (included in
Exhibit 4.09)

8-K 000-23354 5/12/2020 4.4

103

https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-19-000013.html?hash=083553a8170cd604d6ab2b5a77174305f8b53f29fdfea9b312a81a597ad0e551&dest=flex-exx301x9272019_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-15-044024.html?hash=d784b5fd8405ec328e8a490d5091bde6eda2c6df2451eee99973344cefce3a52&dest=a15-12952_4ex4d1_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-15-044024.html?hash=d784b5fd8405ec328e8a490d5091bde6eda2c6df2451eee99973344cefce3a52&dest=a15-12952_4ex4d1_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001047469-15-007450.html?hash=cfbc024b1a8233d424180abf239ed0e04c3c37d77a55c152115daaa9ae62e2ff&dest=a2225866zex-4_04_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-19-034315.html?hash=57f77c316ddca52d11a693e8ae5bb5e8644711c19b77af7d467d5f4fa7cd3fff&dest=a19-11177_1ex4d1_htm_EXHIBIT4_1_105343
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-19-034315.html?hash=57f77c316ddca52d11a693e8ae5bb5e8644711c19b77af7d467d5f4fa7cd3fff&dest=a19-11177_1ex4d2_htm_EXHIBIT4_2_112841
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-19-034315.html?hash=57f77c316ddca52d11a693e8ae5bb5e8644711c19b77af7d467d5f4fa7cd3fff&dest=a19-11177_1ex4d2_htm_EXHIBIT4_2_112841
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-19-061133.html?hash=4273c4c8617263dfe6aa0c913448ed9f4e915dcf9a284e8f5577c38636d47a2d&dest=tm1920918d4_ex4-3_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-19-061133.html?hash=4273c4c8617263dfe6aa0c913448ed9f4e915dcf9a284e8f5577c38636d47a2d&dest=tm1920918d4_ex4-3_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-20-060179.html?hash=48fbfed9f8db1e8bd5c4e8a1110fa68ef51cdd1800e9048fd317cef8b29887e6&dest=tm2016732d5_ex4-2_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-20-060179.html?hash=48fbfed9f8db1e8bd5c4e8a1110fa68ef51cdd1800e9048fd317cef8b29887e6&dest=tm2016732d5_ex4-2_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-20-060179.html?hash=48fbfed9f8db1e8bd5c4e8a1110fa68ef51cdd1800e9048fd317cef8b29887e6&dest=tm2016732d5_ex4-2_htm


Table of Contents

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit No. Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date Exhibit No. Filed Herewith

4.12 Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 17,
2020, by and between the Company and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee

8-K 000-23354 8/17/2020 4.3

4.13 Form of 3.750% Global Note due 2026 (included in
Exhibit 4.12)

8-K 000-23354 8/17/2020 4.4

4.14 Form of 4.875% Global Note due 2030 (included in
Exhibit 4.12)

8-K 000-23354 8/17/2020 4.5

4.15 Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 7,
2022, by and between the Company and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as trustee

8-K 000-23354 12/7/2022 4.2

4.16 Form of 6.000% Global Note due 2028 (included in
Exhibit 4.15)

8-K 000-23354 12/7/2022 4.3

4.17 Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 21,
2024, by and between the Company and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as trustee

8-K 000-23354 8/21/2024 4.2

4.18 Form of 5.250% Global Note due 2032 (included in
Exhibit 4.17)

8-K 000-23354 8/21/2024 4.3

4.19 Description of Registrant's Securities 10-K 000-23354 5/28/2020 4.14
10.01 Credit Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2022, among Flex

Ltd. and certain of its subsidiaries, from time to time party
thereto, as borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, an L/C Issuer and a Swing Line
Lender, and the other L/C Issuers, Swing Line Lenders and
Lenders party thereto

8-K 000-23354 7/22/2022 10.01

10.02 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the
Registrant and its Directors and certain officers†

10-K 000-23354 5/20/2009 10.01

10.03 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Flextronics
Corporation and the Directors and certain officers of the
Registrant†

10-K 000-23354 5/20/2009 10.02

10.04 Flex Ltd. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (as amended and
restated as of August 2, 2023)†

DEF 14A 000-23354 6/21/2023 Annex B

10.05 First Amendment to Flex Ltd. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
(as amended and restated as of August 2, 2023) effective as
of March 5, 2025†

8-K 000-23354 3/7/2025 10.1

10.06 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the
Amended and Restated Flex Ltd. 2017 Equity Incentive
Plan for performance-based vesting awards (FY23)†

10-Q 000.23354 7/29/2022 10.03

10.07 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the
Flex Ltd. Amended and Restated 2017 Equity Incentive
Plan for Non-Employee Directors†

10-Q 000-23354 10/31/2022 10.02

10.08 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the
Amended and Restated Flex Ltd. 2017 Equity Incentive
Plan for performance-based vesting awards (FY24)†

10-Q 000-23354 7/31/2023 10.03

10.09 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the
Amended and Restated 2017 Equity Incentive Plan for
service-based vesting awards (FY25)†

10-Q 000-23354 7/26/2024 10.03

10.10 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the
Amended and Restated 2017 Equity Incentive Plan for
performance-based vesting awards (FY25)†

10-Q 000-23354 7/26/2024 10.04
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10.11 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the
Amended and Restated 2017 Equity Incentive Plan for
service-based vesting awards (FY25 2-year prorated)†

10-Q 000-23354 10/31/2024 10.01

10.12 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the
Amended and Restated 2017 Equity Incentive Plan for
service-based vesting awards (FY25 supplemental equity)†

10-Q 000-23354 10/31/2024 10.02

10.13 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the
Amended and Restated 2017 Equity Incentive Plan for
performance-based vesting awards (FY25 supplemental
equity)†

10-Q 000-23354 10/31/2024 10.03

10.14 2010 Flextronics International USA, Inc. Deferred
Compensation Plan†

10-Q 000-23354 11/3/2010 10.04

10.15 First Amendment to Flex 2010 Deferred Compensation
Plan, dated December 17, 2018†

10-Q 000-23354 10/29/2021 10.01

10.16 Second Amendment to Flex 2010 Deferred Compensation
Plan, dated August 16, 2019†

10-Q 000-23354 10/29/2021 10.02

10.17 Third Amendment to Flex 2010 Deferred Compensation
Plan, dated June 3, 2020†

10-Q 000-23354 10/29/2021 10.03

10.18 Form of Award Agreement under 2010 Deferred
Compensation Plan†

10-Q 000-23354 7/30/2012 10.01

10.19 Form of 2010 Deferred Compensation Plan Award
Agreement (performance targets, cliff vesting)†

10-Q 000-23354 8/2/2013 10.02

10.20 Form of 2010 Deferred Compensation Plan Award
Agreement (non-performance, periodic vesting, continuing
Participant)†

10-Q 000-23354 8/2/2013 10.03

10.21 Award Agreement under the 2010 Deferred Compensation
Plan†

10-Q 000-23354 7/28/2014 10.01

10.22 Form of Addendum Award Agreement under the 2010
Deferred Compensation Plan (FY21)†

10-Q 000-23354 1/29/2021 10.02

10.23 Form of Addendum Award Agreement under the 2010
Deferred Compensation Plan (FY25)†

10-Q 000-23354 7/26/2024 10.05

10.24 Summary of Directors' Compensation† 10-Q 000-23354 10/30/2017 10.02
10.25 Flex Ltd. Amended and Restated Executive Severance

Plan†
X

10.26 Revathi Advaithi Offer Letter, dated February 7, 2019† 10-K 000-23354 5/21/2019 10.29
10.27 Revathi Advaithi Offer Letter Amendment, dated March 5,

2025†
X

10.28 Scott Offer Amended Offer Letter, dated as of January 27,
2019†

10-K 000-23354 5/28/2020 10.29

10.29 Kevin Krumm Offer Letter, dated November 7, 2024† 10-Q 000-23354 1/31/2025 10.01
10.30 Description of Annual Incentive Bonus Plan for Fiscal Year

2025†
10-Q 000-23354 7/26/2024 10.01

10.31 Agreement and Plan of Merger, by and among Flex Ltd.,
Yuma, Inc., Nextracker Inc. and Yuma Acquisition Corp,
dated as of February 7, 2023

8-K 000-23354 2/13/2023 10.1

10.32 Tax Matters Agreement, by and among Flex Ltd., Yuma,
Inc., and Nextracker Inc., dates as of January 2, 2024

8-K 000-23354 1/2/2024 10.2

19.01 Insider Trading Policy 10-K 000-23354 5/17/2024 19.01

105

https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000053.html?hash=fedc6efe5533f42add829c885a529f6b9fd412f87947027c781a0f26d101079e&dest=flex-exx1001x9272024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000053.html?hash=fedc6efe5533f42add829c885a529f6b9fd412f87947027c781a0f26d101079e&dest=flex-exx1001x9272024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000053.html?hash=fedc6efe5533f42add829c885a529f6b9fd412f87947027c781a0f26d101079e&dest=flex-exx1002x9272024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000053.html?hash=fedc6efe5533f42add829c885a529f6b9fd412f87947027c781a0f26d101079e&dest=flex-exx1002x9272024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000053.html?hash=fedc6efe5533f42add829c885a529f6b9fd412f87947027c781a0f26d101079e&dest=flex-exx1003x9272024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000053.html?hash=fedc6efe5533f42add829c885a529f6b9fd412f87947027c781a0f26d101079e&dest=flex-exx1003x9272024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000950123-10-100203.html?hash=977dae3b723398f6f473a484abcfdb1436c5969166b6fb30a5d48782d5350129&dest=c07568exv10w04_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-21-000062.html?hash=4596f9e3588202eacec5663b3db2e5c38d5c7dfddad0566857a1cb4cbaf6304e&dest=flex-exx1001x1012021_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-21-000062.html?hash=4596f9e3588202eacec5663b3db2e5c38d5c7dfddad0566857a1cb4cbaf6304e&dest=flex-exx1002x1012021_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-21-000062.html?hash=4596f9e3588202eacec5663b3db2e5c38d5c7dfddad0566857a1cb4cbaf6304e&dest=flex-exx1003x1012021_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-12-052187.html?hash=1d342328ad11bef54391e66393d952a40037eaab5111e398808b5407092b7e58&dest=a12-13513_1ex10d01_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-12-052187.html?hash=1d342328ad11bef54391e66393d952a40037eaab5111e398808b5407092b7e58&dest=a12-13513_1ex10d01_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-13-059063.html?hash=d1f48d5b7a6b4d17f995940b56db8fbb80db1972db05f483516a8af0123f4f18&dest=a13-15132_1ex10d02_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-13-059063.html?hash=d1f48d5b7a6b4d17f995940b56db8fbb80db1972db05f483516a8af0123f4f18&dest=a13-15132_1ex10d03_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001104659-14-054018.html?hash=78ffc514604cf766479c8af02d094e9189b4a29833dbaec245a95ecbcb8077d8&dest=a14-16160_1ex10d01_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-21-000019.html?hash=2f20068b25f53202a2c1ff2c8029a6b1b2d1e00a37b7470aa4114ecf5a7080f8&dest=flex-exx1002x12312020_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000034.html?hash=9005ebe41e30c8bc9cf517578313cd4bea79939dc6cf9219931644a9f27c8a47&dest=flex-exx1005x6282024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000034.html?hash=9005ebe41e30c8bc9cf517578313cd4bea79939dc6cf9219931644a9f27c8a47&dest=flex-exx1005x6282024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-17-000012.html?hash=96fc83969b8f3729c13d6a11eb3ff00132c1566835f047d20c25fc512241d510&dest=flex-exx1002x92917_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-19-000006.html?hash=7ac21aec5a7c02123d54626ce7034b042b430753f9f3aa3dc45a82a63ee529cc&dest=flex-exx102933119_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-20-000009.html?hash=2448b0a53460e756bb753e0cd08c046a9f2c86ce4623bb2afae5c505c9a40934&dest=flex-exx10293312020_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-25-000008.html?hash=3995d1f04446f5c4896635e4bf325973fa796cc00d26a8dbfad7df6336fd86e4&dest=flex-exx1001x12312024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-25-000008.html?hash=3995d1f04446f5c4896635e4bf325973fa796cc00d26a8dbfad7df6336fd86e4&dest=flex-exx1001x12312024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000034.html?hash=9005ebe41e30c8bc9cf517578313cd4bea79939dc6cf9219931644a9f27c8a47&dest=flex-exx1001x6282024_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001193125-23-035922.html?hash=bc4e25c7d4368b06f634df344f2e8887894f85f9d85ab61163b5fe88ea588516&dest=d446099dex101_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000005.html?hash=438f911de10a733e8b0d6829d47ad5afbc29e69d7657c3561c17c8218ce28902&dest=flex-8xkexh102taxmattersag_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0000866374-24-000021.html?hash=2f3bc0f606b802065050023ce8b6d029d4457ec6785a45b5085639ca03ad1001&dest=flex-exx1901_3312024_htm


Table of Contents

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit No. Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date Exhibit No. Filed Herewith

21.01 Subsidiaries of Registrant X
23.01 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP X
24.01 Power of Attorney (included on the signature page to this

Form 10-K)
X

31.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule
13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act

X

31.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule
13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act

X

32.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the
Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350*

X

97.01 Executive Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy 10-K 000-23354 5/17/2024 97.01
101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document X

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Scheme Document X
101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

Document
X

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document

X

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
Document

X

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
Document

X

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline
XBRL with applicable taxonomy extension information
contained in Exhibits 101)

X

_______________________________________________________________________________

* This exhibit is furnished with this Annual Report on Form 10-K, is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and is not
incorporated by reference into any filing of Flex Ltd. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.

† Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Flex Ltd.
Date: May 21, 2025 By: /s/ REVATHI ADVAITHI

Revathi Advaithi
 Chief Executive Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints jointly and severally, Revathi
Advaithi and Kevin Krumm and each one of them, her or his attorneys-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for her or him in any and all capacities, to
sign any and all amendments to this Report, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or her or his substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ REVATHI ADVAITHI
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and

Director May 21, 2025
Revathi Advaithi

/s/ KEVIN KRUMM Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) May 21, 2025
Kevin Krumm

/s/ DANIEL J. WENDLER
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal

Accounting Officer) May 21, 2025
Daniel J. Wendler

/s/ WILLIAM D. WATKINS Chairman of the Board May 21, 2025
William D. Watkins

/s/ JOHN D. HARRIS II Director May 21, 2025
John D. Harris II

/s/ MICHAEL E. HURLSTON Director May 21, 2025
Michael E. Hurlston

/s/ ERIN L. MCSWEENEY Director May 21, 2025
Erin L. McSweeney

/s/ CHARLES K. STEVENS, III Director May 21, 2025
Charles K. Stevens, III

/s/ MARYROSE SYLVESTER Director May 21, 2025
Maryrose Sylvester

/s/ LAY KOON TAN Director May 21, 2025
Lay Koon Tan

/s/ PATRICK J. WARD Director May 21, 2025
Patrick J. Ward
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EXHIBIT 10.25

FLEX LTD.
AMENDED AND RESTATED EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN

(Effective Date: March 5, 2025)

In order to encourage the retention of key management employees of Flex Ltd., a Singapore registered public company limited by
shares and having company registration no. 199002645H (the “Company”), the Company has adopted this Executive Severance Plan
(this “Plan”). The purpose of the Plan is to provide severance benefits to a group of employees of the Company and its participating
Affiliates (as defined below) and the Plan is intended to be subject to ERISA as an unfunded employee welfare benefit plan primarily
providing benefits for a select group of management or highly compensated employees.

1.    ELIGIBILITY. Participants in this Plan are those individuals who are classified as employees of the Company or one of its Affiliates
who are at or above Grade 35, including the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEO”) (the “Participant” or
“Participants”). This Plan provides severance benefits to Participants whose employment is terminated by the Company without Cause
and not as a result of the Participant’s death or Permanent Disability or who terminate their employment for Good Reason, as those terms
are defined below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Plan shall not apply to any person who is party to another plan or agreement
providing for severance benefits and such person shall not be eligible to receive any benefits under this Plan. This exclusion does not
apply to severance benefits plans funded in whole or in part by Participants, such as 401(k)s, IRAs, non-qualified deferred compensation
plans, etc., or to equity awards for which special treatment is provided in connection with the termination of a Participant’s employment.

The Plan and the Plan Documents are written based on the provisions of U.S. law and the concept of “at-will” employment, but will be
modified to meet local legal requirements, provided that the broad principles and the amounts payable under this Plan are expected to be
followed to the maximum extent permissible by law.

2.    TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT.

(a) General; Qualifying Termination. In the event of (i) the termination of a Participant’s employment by the Company or an
Affiliate without Cause (as defined below) and not as a result of the Participant’s death or Permanent Disability, or (ii) a Participant’s
termination of his or her employment with the Company and its Affiliates for Good Reason (as defined below with respect to such
Participant) (either such termination of employment, a “Qualifying Termination”), if (x) such Qualifying Termination occurs outside the
Change of Control Protection Period (as defined below), such Participant (if other than the CEO) will be required to sign a Transition and
Release Agreement in a form provided by the Company (the “Transition Agreement”) pursuant to which such Participant agrees to
provide transition services to the Company consistent with the Plan for a period of 12 months (or such shorter or longer period as set forth
in the Transition Agreement) following the transition commencement date specified in the Transition Agreement (the “Transition
Period”) in order to receive benefits under this Plan, or, (y) if such Qualifying Termination occurs during the Change of Control
Protection Period (as defined below) for any Participant (including the CEO), or outside the Change of Control Protection Period for the
CEO, such Participant will be required to sign a general release of claims in favor of the Company and its Affiliates in a form provided by
the Company (the “Release”) in order to receive benefits under this Plan.

(b) Termination without Cause or Termination for Good Reason. In the case of the termination of a Participant’s employment
without Cause, the Company will provide written notice to the Participant of the Company’s election to terminate the Participant’s
employment without Cause



and simultaneously provide the Participant with the Transition Agreement or Release (as applicable). In the case of a Participant’s
termination of employment for Good Reason, the Participant must provide written notice to the Company of a Good Reason condition and
at least thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Company of the Participant’s election to terminate employment, in accordance with Section
8(c) hereof, within 90 days after the initial existence of the condition. For the avoidance of doubt, failure for any reason to give written
notice to the Company of a Good Reason condition during such 90-day period shall be deemed a waiver of the right to claim a voluntarily
termination for Good Reason under this Plan in relation to such event. If the specified Good Reason condition remains uncorrected for 30
days after the Company receives such notice, the Company shall provide Participant with the Transition Agreement or Release (as
applicable). For the avoidance of doubt, the Company may notify Participant before the Good Reason correction period expires that it will
not correct the circumstance and the correction period shall end immediately.

(i) Participants Provided with a Transition Agreement.

(A) If such a Participant who is described in clause (x) of Section 2(a) of this Plan executes the Transition
Agreement within the applicable review period and does not revoke the Transition Agreement (such that the Transition Agreement
becomes effective and irrevocable in accordance with its terms), the Participant’s employment status shall be governed by the terms of the
Transition Agreement and the Participant’s compensation and benefits shall be governed by the terms of the Transition Agreement.

(B) If such Participant is presented with and does not execute the Transition Agreement within the applicable
review period, or if such Participant revokes the executed Transition Agreement during the applicable revocation period, the Participant’s
employment will terminate immediately following expiration of the applicable review period (or immediately following such
revocation, as applicable). Such Participant will not be entitled to any of the payments or benefits under the Transition Agreement. Such
Participant shall be paid only (1) any earned but unpaid base salary and any outstanding expense reimbursements submitted and
approved in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policies, (2) any accrued and unused paid time off, and (3)
other unpaid vested amounts or benefits under the Company’s or any of its Affiliates’ compensation, incentive and benefit plans in which
the Participant participates, in each case as of the effective date of termination of such Participant’s employment with the Company and its
Affiliates (the “Accrued Benefits”).

(ii) Participants Provided with a Release. The employment of such a Participant who is described in clause (y) of
Section 2(a) of this Plan will terminate at the time specified in the written notice of termination of employment provided by the
Company or the Participant (as applicable), or at such earlier time as may be determined by the Company.

(A) If such Participant executes the applicable Release within the applicable review period and does not revoke
the Release (such that the Release becomes effective and irrevocable in accordance with its terms), such Participant shall receive the
benefits set forth in the applicable provisions of Section 3 of this Plan, subject to the terms and conditions of this Plan and the
Release.

(B) If such Participant does not execute the Release within the applicable review period, or if such Participant
revokes the executed Release during the applicable revocation period, such Participant shall be paid only the Participant’s Accrued
Benefits.

(c) Termination for Cause, Termination without Good Reason, or Termination on Account of Death or Permanent Disability
(as such terms are defined below). In the event of the



Termination of a Participant’s employment (A) by the Company or an Affiliate for Cause, (B) as a result of the Participant’s death or
Permanent Disability, or (C) by the Participant without Good Reason (as defined below with respect to such Participant), the Participant or
the Participant’s estate shall be paid only the Participant’s Accrued Benefits (which, for the avoidance of doubt, to the extent applicable,
may include pro rata vesting of performance-based restricted share units (“PSUs”) upon a qualifying retirement as provided in the award
agreements governing any outstanding PSUs), in each case as of the effective date of such termination. Neither the Company nor the
Participant shall be party to or bound by a Transition Agreement.

3.    BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN

In the event of a Participant’s Qualifying Termination, provided that the Participant timely signs the applicable Transition Agreement or
Release, does not revoke the applicable Transition Agreement or Release (such that the applicable Transition Agreement or Release
becomes effective and irrevocable in accordance with its terms), and complies with the terms of the Transition Agreement or Release (as
applicable), including remaining employed through the Transition Period (where applicable) and refraining from conduct prohibited under
this Plan and/or the Transition Agreement or Release (as applicable), in addition to the Accrued Benefits, the Company will provide the
benefits set forth in the applicable provisions of this Section 3.

(a) Qualifying Termination Outside of Change of Control Protection Period. If such Participant’s Qualifying Termination occurs
outside of the Change of Control Protection Period (as defined below), the Company will provide the following benefits:

(i) CEO. If, immediately prior to the Qualifying Termination (and disregarding any event that constitutes Good Reason for
such Participant’s termination of employment pursuant to Section 9(s)), such Participant is the CEO:

(A) two (2) times the sum of the CEO’s Base Salary and Target Annual Bonus, payable, subject to Section 8(i), in
substantially equal installments in accordance with the Company’s regular payroll practices over the two (2) year
period commencing on the date of the Qualifying Termination, with the first installment commencing on the first
payroll date that occurs on or immediately after the date that the Release becomes effective and irrevocable in
accordance with its terms;

(B)  two (2) years continued vesting of (I) the CEO’s then-outstanding equity awards and (II) any unvested amounts
then-credited to the CEO’s account under the Deferred Compensation Plan (and deemed earnings on such
amounts in accordance with the terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan);

(C) two (2) years continued employee benefits insurance coverage for the CEO and the CEO’s covered dependents,
subject to the CEO’s continued payment of employee premiums associated with such coverage. To the extent
required by applicable law, an amount equal to the portion of the premium paid by the Company for such
continued coverage will be included in the CEO’s income for tax purposes, and the Company or an Affiliate may
withhold taxes from other compensation payable to the CEO for such purpose; and



(D) continued provision of indemnification as provided by the Company’s indemnification policy.

(ii) Participants other than the CEO. If, immediately prior to the Transition Period (and disregarding any event that constitutes
Good Reason for such Participant’s termination of employment pursuant to Section 9(s)), such Participant is a Participant other than the
CEO:

(A)    continuation of the Participant’s Base Salary for twelve (12) months, payable, subject to Section 8(i), in
accordance with the Company’s regular payroll practices during the Transition Period;

(B)    continued vesting during the Transition Period of (I) the Participant’s then-outstanding equity awards, including,
but not limited to, service-based restricted share units (“RSUs”) and PSUs, and (II) any unvested amounts then credited to the
Participant’s account under the Deferred Compensation Plan (and deemed earnings on such amounts in accordance with the terms of
the Deferred Compensation Plan), in each case per applicable plan rules and Company policies;

(C)    payment of a pro-rated portion of the Participant’s annual bonus under the Company’s annual incentive bonus
plan in respect of the fiscal year during which the Transition Period begins, calculated by multiplying (I) the amount (if any) of the
annual bonus that otherwise would have been earned by the Participant based on actual achievement of the applicable performance
goals for the entire fiscal year (determined without regard to any discretionary adjustments that would have the effect of reducing the
amount of the Participant’s annual bonus, other than discretionary adjustments applicable to all similarly situated employees whose
employment continued through the end of such fiscal year), by (II) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of full months of
employment completed by the Participant during such fiscal year and prior to the beginning of the Transition Period, and the
denominator of which is twelve (12). Any such pro-rated annual bonus shall be payable at such time as annual bonuses for the
applicable fiscal year are payable to similarly situated employees whose employment continued through the end of such fiscal year;

(D)    accelerated vesting of any unvested RSUs and unvested amounts then credited to the Participant’s account under
the Deferred Compensation Plan (and deemed earnings on such amounts in accordance with the terms of the Deferred Compensation
Plan) that would have become vested in accordance with their terms if the Participant’s employment had continued for one (1) year
following the end of the Transition Period. This benefit is subject to Participant signing an additional Release of Claims and re-
affirmation of compliance with Participant’s obligations after the conclusion of the Transition Period;

(E)    continued employee benefits insurance coverage for the Participant and the Participant’s covered dependents for
twelve (12) months during the Transition Period, subject to the Participant’s continued payment of employee premiums associated
with such coverage; and

(F)    continued provision of indemnification as provided by the Company’s indemnification policy.

(b)    Qualifying Termination During Change of Control Protection Period. If such Participant’s Qualifying Termination
occurs during the Change of Control Protection Period (as defined below), the Company will provide the following benefits:



(i)    the sum of the Participant’s Base Salary and Target Annual Bonus multiplied by (A) 2.99 for the CEO and (B) two (2) for
Participants other than the CEO, payable in each case, subject to Section 8(i), in a single lump sum on the first payroll date that occurs on
or immediately after the date that the Release becomes effective and irrevocable in accordance with its terms;

(ii)    accelerated vesting of the Participant’s then-outstanding equity awards, in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Equity Incentive Plan and the applicable award agreements;

(iii)    without duplication of any benefit provided to the Participant pursuant to Section 4(g) of the Deferred
Compensation Plan, accelerated vesting of any unvested portion of the Participant’s account under the Deferred Compensation Plan,
effective upon the Qualifying Termination;

(iv)    continued employee benefits insurance coverage for the Participant and the Participant’s covered dependents for
(A) in the case of the CEO, three (3) years following the Qualifying Termination and (B) in the case of Participants other than the
CEO, two (2) years following the Qualifying Termination, subject to the Participant’s continued payment of employee premiums
associated with such coverage. To the extent required by applicable law, an amount equal to the portion of the premium paid by the
Company for such continued coverage will be included in the Participant’s income for tax purposes, and the Company or an Affiliate
may withhold taxes from other compensation payable to the Participant for such purpose; and

(v)    continued provision of indemnification as provided by the Company’s indemnification policy.

Other than as set forth above, all incentives due to vest after Qualifying Termination or any applicable Transition Period and any and all
remaining unvested incentives not set forth in the Release or Transition Agreement (as applicable) will expire as set forth by plan rules
without any additional compensation.

4.    EXECUTIVE’S OBLIGATIONS TO RECEIVE BENEFITS UNDER EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN

In order to be eligible for benefits under this Plan, Participant will be required to comply with the terms and conditions set forth in the
Transition Agreement or Release (as applicable) that Participant will be required to sign. Failure to comply with the obligations set forth in
the Transition Agreement or Release (as applicable) may result in suspension of benefits, clawback of all or some of the benefits already
provided, to the extent allowed by law, and appropriate legal action.

(a)    To the extent and during the period provided in the Transition Agreement (or Release if applicable), and as may be more fully set
forth therein:

(i)    Participant may not:

(A)    provide services of any kind for competing firms, suppliers, and/or customers without Prior Approval (as defined
below). For the avoidance of any doubt, Participant shall also obtain Prior Confirmation (as defined below) regarding whether a potential
employer is considered a competing firm, supplier or customer of Flex;

(B)    solicit or recruit Flex employees, contractors, etc., without Prior Approval; or



(C)    solicit business from Flex customers or suppliers without Prior Approval.

(ii)    Participant shall not use or disclose Flex or customer confidential information.

(iii)    Participant shall cooperate with the Company in any investigation, litigation or other proceeding, provide testimony as
may be required, and notify the Company should Participant become aware of any investigation, litigation or other proceeding or be
subject to any subpoena or legally compulsive process seeking disclosure of confidential information.

(iv)    Participant shall provide transition duties as set forth in the Transition Agreement (if applicable).

(v)    Participant shall not disparage the Company.

(vi)    Participant shall return to the Company all Company documents, badges, devices and equipment.

(b)    Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 4 or in any Participant’s Transition Agreement or Release (as applicable)
shall restrict or prohibit any Participant from communicating with, providing testimony before, providing confidential information to, or
filing or cooperating any a claim or investigation directly with a self-regulatory authority or a government agency or entity, including the
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Department of Labor, the National Labor Relations Board, the Department of Justice,
the Securities and Exchange Commission, Congress, and any agency Inspector General, or from making other disclosures that are
protected under the whistleblower provisions of applicable state or federal law or regulation.

(c)    By accepting any benefit under this Plan, each Participant acknowledges and agrees that all benefits provided under this Plan will
be subject to recoupment in accordance with any clawback policy that the Company adopts (or has adopted, including the Executive
Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy, as amended from time to time).

(d)    For purposes of this Section 4, the term “Flex” includes the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates.

5.    DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

(a)    To the extent permitted by applicable law and to the extent that the enforceability of this Plan is not thereby impaired, any and all
disputes, controversies or claims between a Participant and the Company or any of its Affiliates arising out of, or relating to, the terms,
conditions, commencement, termination, or any other aspect of Participant’s employment or engagement with the Company or any of its
Affiliates (including but not limited to any disputes arising under this Plan), except those arising under Section 5(d) hereof, shall be
determined exclusively by final and binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in accordance with the applicable Arbitration Rules and
Procedures, or successor rules then in effect, of Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. (“JAMS”) and judgment upon the award
of the arbitrator may be rendered in any court of competent jurisdiction. As a material part of this agreement to arbitrate claims, the parties
expressly waive all rights to a jury trial in court on all statutory or other claims. This Section 5 does not purport to limit either party’s
ability to recover any remedies provided for by applicable statute, including attorneys’ fees.

(b)    The arbitration shall be held in the Austin, Texas metropolitan area, and shall be administered by JAMS or, in the event JAMS
does not then conduct arbitration proceedings, a similarly reputable arbitration administrator. Under such proceeding, the parties shall
select a



mutually acceptable, neutral arbitrator from among the JAMS panel of arbitrators. Except as provided herein, the Federal Arbitration Act
shall govern the interpretation and enforcement of such arbitration proceeding. The arbitrator shall apply the substantive law (and the law
of remedies, if applicable) of the State of Texas or federal law as applicable, and the arbitrator is without jurisdiction to apply any different
substantive law. The parties agree that they will be allowed to engage in adequate discovery, the scope of which will be determined by the
arbitrator, consistent with the nature of the claims in dispute and the efficiencies that arbitration is designed to promote. The arbitrator
shall have the authority to entertain a motion to dismiss and/or a motion for summary judgment by any party and shall apply the standards
governing such motions under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The arbitrator shall render an award that shall include a written
statement of opinion setting forth the arbitrator’s findings of fact and conclusions of law. Judgment upon the award may be entered in any
court having jurisdiction thereof. The parties intend this arbitration provision to be valid, enforceable, irrevocable and construed as broadly
as possible.

(c)    The Company shall be responsible for payment of the arbitrator’s fees as well as all administrative fees associated with the
arbitration. The parties shall be responsible for their own attorneys’ fees and costs (including expert fees and costs). However, the
arbitrator will have the authority to award attorneys’ fees to the prevailing party, if the arbitrator finds that the non-prevailing party has
acted in bad faith.

(d)    The parties agree, however, that damages would be an inadequate remedy for the Company or any of its Affiliates in the event of
a breach or threatened breach of any provision of any proprietary information and/or inventions agreement entered into by Participant. In
the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the Company or any of its Affiliates may, either with or without pursuing any potential
damage remedies, obtain from a court of competent jurisdiction, and enforce, an injunction prohibiting Participant from violating any
provision of any proprietary information agreement and requiring Participant to comply with the terms of that agreement.

6.    ADMINISTRATION OF PLAN; CLAIMS PROCEDURE.

(a)    General. Except as specifically provided herein, the Plan shall be administered by the Compensation and People Committee of
the Board (the “Committee”). The Committee may delegate any administrative duties, including, without limitation, duties with respect
to the processing, review, investigation, approval and payment of severance benefits, to designated individuals or committees. The
Committee shall be the “administrator” and a “named fiduciary” under the Plan for purposes of ERISA (as defined below).

(b)    Interpretations and Variations. The Committee shall have the duty and authority to interpret and construe, in its sole discretion,
the terms of the Plan in regard to all questions of eligibility, the status and rights of Participants, and the manner, time and amount of any
payment under the Plan. The Committee or its representative shall decide any issues arising under this Plan, and the decision of the
Committee shall be binding and conclusive on the Participants and the Company. Any variations from the Plan may be made only by the
Committee in its sole discretion.

(c)    Filing a Claim. It is not normally necessary to file a claim in order to receive benefits under this Plan; however, if a Participant
(the “Claimant”) feels he or she has been improperly denied severance benefits, any claim for payment of severance benefits shall be
signed, dated and submitted to the General Counsel of the Company, as set forth in Section 8(c) hereof. The Committee shall then
evaluate the claim and notify the Claimant of the approval or disapproval in accordance with the provisions of this Plan not later than 90
days after the Company’s receipt of such claim unless special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claims. If such
an extension of time for processing is required, written notice of the extension shall be furnished to the Claimant prior to the termination
of the initial 90-day period which shall specify the special



circumstances requiring an extension and the date by which a final decision will be reached (which date shall not be later than 180 days
after the date on which the claim was filed). If the Claimant does not provide all the necessary information for the Committee to process
the claim, the Committee may request additional information and set deadlines for the Claimant to provide that information.

(d)    Notice of Initial Determination. The Claimant shall be given a written notice in which the Claimant shall be advised as to
whether the claim is granted or denied, in whole or in part. If a claim is denied, in whole or in part, the Claimant shall be given written
notice which shall contain (i) the specific reasons for the denial, (ii) specific references to pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial is
based, (iii) a description of any additional material or information necessary to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material
or information is necessary and (iv) an explanation of this Plan’s appeal procedures, which shall also include a statement of the Claimant’s
right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA following a denial of the claim upon review.

(e)    Right to Appeal. If a claim for payment of severance benefits made in accordance with the procedures specified in this Plan is
denied, in whole or in part, the Claimant shall have the right to request that the Committee review the denial, provided that the Claimant
files a written request for review with the Committee within 60 days after the date on which the Claimant received written notification of
the denial. The Claimant may review or receive copies, upon request and free of charge, of any documents, records or other information
“relevant” (within the meaning of Department of Labor Regulation 2560.503-1(m)(8)) to the Claimant’s claim. The Claimant may also
submit written comments, documents, records and other information relating to his or her claim.

(f)    Review of Appeal. In deciding a Claimant’s appeal, the Committee shall take into account all comments, documents, records and
other information submitted by the Claimant relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or
considered in the initial review of the claim. If the Claimant does not provide all the necessary information for the Committee to decide
the appeal, the Committee may request additional information and set deadlines for the Claimant to provide that information. Within 60
days after a request for review is received, the review shall be made and the Claimant shall be advised in writing of the decision on review,
unless special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the review, in which case the Claimant shall be given a written
notification within such initial 60 day period specifying the reasons
for the extension and when such review shall be completed (provided that, to the extent required by ERISA, such review shall be
completed within 120 days after the date on which the request for review was filed).

(g)    Notice of Appeal Determination. The decision on review shall be forwarded to the Claimant in writing and, in the case of a
denial, shall include (i) specific reasons for the decision, (ii) specific references to the pertinent Plan provisions upon which the decision is
based, (iii) a statement that the Claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all
documents, records or other information “relevant” to the Claimant’s claim and (iv) a statement of the Claimant’s right to bring a civil
action under Section 502(a) of ERISA following a wholly or partially denied claim for benefits. The Committee’s decision on review shall
be final and binding on all persons for all purposes. If a Claimant shall fail to file a request for review in accordance with the procedures
herein outlined, such Claimant shall have no right to review and shall have no right to bring any arbitration or court action, and the denial
of the claim shall become final and binding on all persons for all purposes. Any notice and decisions by the Committee under this Section
6 may be furnished electronically in accordance with the applicable Department of Labor regulations.

7.    NON-DUPLICATION OF BENEFITS; NO MITIGATION. The Company may, in its discretion and to the extent permitted
under applicable law, offset against the Participant’s benefits under this Plan or the applicable Transition Agreement or Release, any other
severance, termination,



or similar benefits payable to the Participant by the Company, including, but not limited to any amounts paid under any employment
agreement or other individual contractual arrangement, or amounts paid to comply with, or satisfy liability under, the Worker Adjustment
and Retraining Notification Act or any other federal, state, or local law requiring payments in connection with an involuntary termination
of employment, plant shutdown, or workforce reduction, including, but not limited to, amounts paid in connection with paid leaves of
absence, back pay, benefits, and other payments intended to satisfy such liability or alleged liability. In no event shall any Participant be
obligated to seek other employment or take any other action by way of mitigation of the amounts payable to the Participant under any of
the provisions of this Plan and such amounts shall not be reduced whether or not the Participant obtains other employment.

8.    GENERAL.

(a)    No Waiver. No failure by the Company or a Participant at any time to give notice of any breach by the Company or a Participant,
or to require compliance with, any condition or provision of this Plan shall be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or
conditions at the same or at any prior or subsequent time.

(b)    Severability. If for any reason a court of competent jurisdiction or arbitrator finds any provision of this Plan to be unenforceable,
the provision shall be deemed amended as necessary to conform to applicable laws or regulations, or if it cannot be so amended, the
remainder of the Plan shall continue in full force and effect as if the offending provision were not contained herein.

(c)    Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given under this Plan shall be in writing and shall be
considered effective either (a) upon personal service, or (b) upon delivery by facsimile and depositing such notice in the U.S. Mail,
postage prepaid, return receipt requested and, if addressed to the Company, in care of the General Counsel at the Company’s corporate
headquarters at 12515-8 Research Blvd, Suite 300, Austin, TX 78759, and, if addressed to Participant, at his or her most recent address
shown on the Company’s corporate records or at any other address that Participant may specify in any appropriate notice to the Company,
or (c) upon only depositing such notice in the U.S. Mail as described in clause (b) of this paragraph, or (d) upon delivery by email, if
addressed to the Company to General.Counsel@flex.com, and if addressed to Participant to such email address as Participant may
specify by notice to the Company.

(d)    Governing Law. THIS PLAN SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE MADE IN THE STATE OF TEXAS, AND, TO THE EXTENT
NOT PREEMPTED BY ERISA OR OTHER FEDERAL LAW, SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS,
WITHOUT REGARD TO ITS CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES. By participating in this Plan, each Participant and the Company
hereby irrevocably consent to, and agree not to object or assert any defense or challenge to, the jurisdiction and venue of the state and
federal courts located in Texas and agree that, subject to Sections 5 and 6 hereof, any claim may be brought in a court of law or equity in
any such Texas court. Note, however, that Transition Agreements or Releases with Participants outside of Texas may be governed by the
laws of the jurisdiction in which they worked prior to the separation of employment.

(e)    Assignment and Successors. The Company shall have the right to assign its rights and obligations under this Plan to an entity
that, directly or indirectly, acquires all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, and in the event of a Change of Control, the
Company shall require the successor or survivor corporation to expressly assume this Plan and agree to perform the Company’s
obligations under this Plan. The rights and obligations of the Company under this Plan shall inure to the benefit and shall be binding upon
the successors and assigns of the Company. Participant’s rights, benefits and obligations under this Plan are personal and shall not be
voluntarily or involuntarily



assigned, alienated, or transferred, whether by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the Company.

(f)    Amendment and Termination of this Plan. The Committee may amend, modify or terminate this Plan at any time; provided,
however, that except as specifically provided for in Section 8(j) hereof, (i) no amendment, modification or termination of the Plan that is
materially adverse to the Participants shall become effective earlier than ninety (90) days after the date of the relevant corporate action
authorizing such amendment, modification or termination, (ii) within the one-year period following a Change of Control, no amendment,
modification or termination of the Plan that is materially adverse to the Participants shall become effective earlier than one (1) year after
the date of the relevant corporate action authorizing such amendment, modification or termination, and (iii) no such amendment,
modification or termination shall affect the right to any unpaid severance benefits under the terms of this Plan or the applicable Transition
Agreement or Release of any Participant whose notice of termination without Cause or notice of termination for Good Reason has
occurred prior to such amendment, modification or termination of this Plan.

(g)    Survival. If a Participant’s notice of termination without Cause or notice of termination for Good Reason occurs while the Plan is
in effect, the provisions of this Plan, including Sections 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 shall survive and remain binding and enforceable,
notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Plan or the termination of such Participant’s employment with the Company or any of
its Affiliates, to the extent necessary to preserve the intended benefits of such provisions.

(h)    Taxes and Other Withholdings. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan, the Company or any of its Affiliates may
withhold from amounts payable hereunder all federal, state,
local and foreign taxes and other amounts that are required to be withheld by applicable laws or regulations, and the withholding of any
amount shall be treated as payment thereof for purposes of determining whether the Participant has been paid amounts to which
Participant is entitled.

(i)    Tax Matters. The intent of the parties is that payments and benefits under this Plan and the applicable Transition Agreement or
Release comply with Section 409A of the Code, to the extent subject thereto, and accordingly, to the maximum extent permitted, this Plan
and the applicable Transition Agreement or Release shall be interpreted and administered to be in compliance therewith. In the event that
the Company determines that any provision of this Plan or the applicable Transition Agreement or Release does not comply with Section
409A of the Code or any such rules, regulations or guidance and that as a result any Participant may become subject to a Section 409A tax,
notwithstanding Section 8(f) hereof, the Company shall have the discretion to amend or modify such provision to avoid the application of
such Section 409A tax, and in no event shall any Participant’s consent be required for such amendment or modification. Notwithstanding
anything contained herein to the contrary, the Participant shall not be considered to have terminated employment with the Company or any
of its Affiliates for purposes of any payments under this Plan or the applicable Transition Agreement or Release which are subject to
Section 409A of the Code until the Participant has incurred a “separation from service” from the Company and its Affiliates within the
meaning of Section 409A of the Code. Further, solely to the extent necessary to comply with Section 409A of the Code, a “Change of
Control” shall mean a transaction defined as a “Change of Control” for purposes of this Plan that also constitutes a “change in control
event” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code and Treasury Regulation § 1.409A-3(i)(5). Each amount or installment to be paid
or benefit to be provided under this Plan or the applicable Transition Agreement or Release shall be construed as a separate identified
payment for purposes of Section 409A of the Code. Without limiting the foregoing and notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, to the extent required in order to avoid an accelerated or additional tax under Section 409A of the Code, amounts that would
otherwise be payable and benefits that would otherwise be provided pursuant to this Plan, the applicable Transition Agreement or Release
and all other company plans and agreements during the six-month period immediately following a Participant’s separation from service
shall instead be



paid on the first business day after the date that is six (6) months following the Participant’s separation from service (or, if earlier, the
Participant’s date of death). With respect to any amounts or benefits that are conditioned on the receipt and non-revocation of a release of
claims, if the period during which the Participant may execute such release of claims commences in one calendar year and ends in a
subsequent calendar year, such amounts or benefits shall be paid or provided in the subsequent calendar year to the extent required to
comply with Section 409A of the Code. To the extent required to avoid an accelerated or additional tax under Section 409A of the Code,
amounts reimbursable to the Participant shall be paid to the Participant on or before the last day of the year following the year in which the
expense was incurred and the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement (and in kind benefits provided to the Participant) during one
year may not affect amounts reimbursable or provided in any subsequent year. The Company makes no representation that any or all of the
payments described in this Plan or the applicable Transition Agreement or Release will be exempt from or comply with Section 409A of
the Code and makes no undertaking to preclude Section 409A of the Code from applying to any such payment.

(j)    Excise Taxes.

(i)    Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan or the applicable Transition Agreement or Release (or any other
agreement entered into by and between a Participant and the Company or any of its Affiliates or any incentive arrangement or plan offered
by the Company or any of its Affiliates), in the event that any amount or benefit paid or distributed to the Participant pursuant to this Plan
or the applicable Transition Agreement or Release, taken together with any amounts or benefits otherwise paid or distributed to the
Participant by the Company or any of its Affiliates (collectively, the “Covered Payments”), would exceed the amount which can be paid
to the Participant without the Participant incurring an Excise Tax (as defined below), then the amounts payable to the Participant under this
Plan, the applicable Transition Agreement or Release or any other agreement by and between the Participant and the Company (or any of
its Affiliates) or pursuant to any incentive arrangement or plan offered by the Company (or any of its Affiliates) shall be reduced (but not
below zero) to the maximum amount of Covered Payments which may be paid without the Participant becoming subject to the Excise Tax
(such reduced payments to be referred to as the “Payment Cap”), but only if and to the extent such reduced amount would provide a
greater net after-tax benefit (after taking into account federal, state, local or other income, employment and excise taxes) to the Participant
than an unreduced payment that would subject the Participant to an Excise Tax. In the event the Participant receives reduced payments and
benefits as a result of application of this Section 8(j), such payments and/or benefits to the Participant shall be reduced in the following
order: first, payments that are payable in cash, with amounts that are payable last reduced first; second, payments due in respect of any
equity or equity awards included at their full value under Section 280G of the Code (rather than their accelerated value); third, payments
due in respect of any equity or equity awards valued at accelerated value under Section 280G, with the highest values reduced first (as
such values are determined under Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-1, Q&A 24); and fourth, all other non-cash benefits.

(ii)    Immediately upon a Change of Control, the Company shall notify the Participant of any modification or reduction as a
result of the application of this Section 8(j). In the event the Participant and the Company disagree as to the application of this Section
8(j), the Company shall select a law firm or accounting firm from among those regularly consulted (during the twelve-month period
immediately prior to the Change of Control that resulted in the characterization of the Covered Payments as parachute payments) by the
Company, and such law firm or accounting firm shall determine, at the Company’s expense, the amount to which the Participant shall be
entitled hereunder (and pursuant to any other agreements, incentive arrangements or plans), taking into consideration the application of
this Section 8(j), and such determination shall be final and binding upon the Participant and the Company.



(k)    Deemed Resignations. Any termination of a Participant’s employment (or execution of a Transition Agreement or Release) shall
constitute an automatic resignation of such Participant as an officer of the Company and each Affiliate of the Company, an automatic
resignation from the board of directors, if applicable, of the Company and each Affiliate of the Company and from the board of directors
or similar governing body of any corporation, limited liability company or other entity in which the Company or any Affiliate holds an
equity interest and with respect to which board or similar governing body such Participant serves as the Company’s or such Affiliate’s
designee or other representative.

(l)    No Guarantee of Employment. This Plan shall not be construed as creating any contract of employment between the Company
or any of its Affiliates, on the one hand, and any Participant, on the other hand, nor shall this Plan be construed as restricting in any way
the rights of the Company or any of its Affiliates to terminate the employment of any Participant at any time and for any reason subject,
however, to any rights of a Participant under this Plan.

(m)    Discrepancies. In case of discrepancies between this Plan and the applicable Transition Agreement or Release, the terms set
forth in the applicable Transition Agreement or Release will control.

9.    DEFINITIONS.

For purposes of this Plan, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(a)    “Accrued Benefits” shall mean, with respect to any Participant, (i) any earned but unpaid base salary and any outstanding
expense reimbursements submitted and approved in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policies, (ii) any accrued and
unused paid time off, and (iii) other unpaid vested amounts or benefits under the Company’s or any of its Affiliates’ compensation,
incentive and benefit plans in which the Participant participates, in each case as of the effective date of termination of such Participant’s
employment with the Company and its Affiliates.

(b)    “Affiliate(s)” shall mean, with respect to any specified person, any other person that, directly or indirectly, through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such specified person. For purposes of the definition of
“Affiliate(s),” the term “person” has the meaning described in Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”).

(c)    “Base Salary” shall mean, with respect to any Participant, such Participant’s annual rate of base salary in effect immediately
prior to the Participant’s Qualifying Termination or, if earlier, immediately prior to the commencement of the Participant’s Transition
Period (if applicable), determined without regard to any reduction that constitutes Good Reason for such Participant’s termination of
employment pursuant to Section 9(s).

(d)    “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

(e)    “Cause” shall mean, with respect to any Participant, the occurrence of any of the following: (i) the failure by Participant to
perform Participant’s duties with the Company and its subsidiaries (other than any such failure resulting from Participant’s incapacity due
to physical or mental illness) after a written demand for performance is delivered to Participant by the Company which demand identifies
the manner in which the Company believes that Participant has not performed Participant’s duties, (ii) the engaging by Participant in
conduct which is injurious to the Company or its subsidiaries, monetarily or otherwise, (iii) Participant’s conviction of, guilty plea to, or
entering a plea of nolo contendere to, a felony, or (iv) Participant’s breach of any terms of the Company’s Code of Conduct, employee
handbook or manual, written policies, or written agreements



between the Company and Participant, including in each case, without limitation, with respect to confidential information and restrictive
covenants.

(f)    “Change of Control” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events:

(i)    a transaction or series of transactions (other than an offering of shares to the general public through a registration
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)) whereby any “person” or related “group” of “persons” (as such
terms are used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act) (other than the Company, any of its subsidiaries, an employee benefit
plan maintained by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or a “person” that, prior to such transaction, directly or indirectly controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with,
the Company) directly or indirectly acquires beneficial ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of
securities of the Company possessing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of the Company’s securities outstanding
immediately after such acquisition; or

(ii)    during any one-year period, individuals who, at the beginning of such period, constitute the Board together with any new
director(s) (other than any one or more directors designated by any person who shall have entered into an agreement with the Company in
connection with any transaction described in subparagraphs (i) or (iii) hereof) whose election or appointment by the Board or nomination
for election by the Company’s shareholders was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then still in office who either
were directors at the beginning of the one-year period (other than vacant seats) or whose election or appointment or nomination for
election was previously so approved, cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the Board pursuant to a transaction or other
mechanism outside of the normal election process of directors under the Singapore Companies Act and/or the Company’s Constitution; or

(iii)    the consummation by the Company (whether directly involving the Company or indirectly involving the Company
through one or more intermediaries) of (x) a merger, consolidation, reorganization, or business combination or (y) a sale or other
disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets in any single transaction or series of related transactions or (z) the acquisition
of assets or shares of another entity, in each case other than a transaction:

A.    which results in the Company’s voting securities outstanding immediately before the transaction continuing to
represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the Company or the person that, as a result of the
transaction, controls, directly or indirectly, the Company or owns, directly or indirectly, all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or
otherwise succeeds to the business of the Company (the Company or such person, the “Successor Entity”) directly or indirectly, at least a
majority of the combined voting power of the Successor Entity’s outstanding voting securities immediately after the transaction, and

B.    after which no person or group, beneficially owns voting securities representing 50% or more of the combined
voting power of the Successor Entity; provided, however, that no person or group shall be treated for purposes of this subparagraph (iii)
(B) as beneficially owning 50% or more of combined voting power of the Successor Entity solely as a result of the voting power held in
the Company prior to the consummation of the transaction; or

(iv)    the Company’s shareholders approve a liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

A transaction will not constitute a Change of Control or other consolidating event if effected for the purpose of changing the place
of incorporation or form of organization of the ultimate parent entity (including where the Company is succeeded by an issuer
incorporated under the laws of another state, country or foreign government for such purpose and whether or not the Company



remains in existence following such transaction) where all or substantially all of the persons or group that beneficially own all or
substantially all of the combined voting power of the Company’s voting securities immediately prior to the transaction beneficially own all
or substantially all of the combined voting power of the Company in substantially the same proportions of their
ownership after the transaction. The Committee shall have full and final authority, which shall be exercised in its discretion, to determine
conclusively whether a Change of Control of the Company has occurred pursuant to the above definition, and the date of the occurrence of
such Change of Control and any incidental matters relating thereto.

(g)    “Change of Control Protection Period” shall mean, with respect to any Participant, the twenty-four (24) month period
commencing on the date of a Change of Control.

(h)    “CEO” shall mean Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

(i)    “Claimant” shall mean a Participant who feels he or she has been improperly denied severance benefits under this Plan and who
signs, dates and submits a claim for payment of severance benefits under this Plan to the General Counsel of the Company, as set forth in
Section 8(c) hereof.

(j)    “Committee” shall mean the Compensation and People Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

(k)    “Company” shall mean Flex Ltd., a Singapore registered public company limited by shares and having company registration no.
199002645H.

(l)    “Covered Payments” shall mean any amount or benefit paid or distributed to the Participant pursuant to this Plan or the
applicable Transition Agreement or Release, taken together with any amounts or benefits otherwise paid or distributed to the Participant by
the Company or any of its Affiliates.

(m)    “Deferred Compensation Plan” shall mean the Flex 2010 Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended, and any successor
nonqualified deferred compensation plan.

(n)    “ELT Participant” shall mean the CEO and any member of the Company’s Executive Leadership Team who reports to the
CEO, disregarding any event that constitutes Good Reason for such Participant’s termination of employment pursuant to Section
9(s).

(o)    “Equity Incentive Plan” shall mean the Flex Ltd. Amended and Restated 2017 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, or, as
applicable, any successor shareholder-approved equity compensation plan of the Company.

(p)    “ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, and the regulations
promulgated thereunder.

(q)    “Excise Tax” shall mean the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code or any similar state or local tax that may be
imposed.

(r)    “GC” shall mean the General Counsel of the Company.
(s)    “Good Reason” shall have the meaning set forth with respect to a Participant in the applicable provisions of this Section 9(s),

provided in any case that a Participant’s termination of employment shall only be considered to constitute “Good Reason” if the
Participant also timely satisfies the written notice requirements of Section 2(b) of this Plan and the Company fails to correct



the applicable condition specified in the Participant’s written notice during the correction period set out in Section 2(b) of this Plan:

(i)    ELT Participants. With respect to an ELT Participant, “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following
events or circumstances:

(A)    a material diminution in the position, authority, duties or responsibilities of the Participant;

(B)    the assignment to the Participant of any duties that are materially inconsistent with the Participant’s status as an
officer;

(C)    any failure by the Company to obtain the written assumption of this Plan by any successor to the Company as
contemplated in Section 8(e) hereof;

(D)    material reduction in target base salary and target bonus opportunity; or

(E)    mandatory relocation of 50 miles or more.

(ii)    Other Participants. With respect to any Participant other than an ELT Participant, “Good Reason” shall mean the
occurrence of any of the following events or circumstances:

(A)    a material reduction in target base salary and target bonus opportunity (other than as part of an across-the-
board, proportional salary reduction applicable to similarly situated employees); or

(B)    mandatory relocation of 50 miles or more.

(t)    “JAMS” shall mean Arbitration Rules and Procedures, or successor rules then in effect, of Judicial Arbitration and Mediation
Services, Inc.

(u)    “Participant or Participants” shall mean individuals who are classified as employees of the Company or one of its Affiliates who
are at or above Grade 35, including the CEO of the Company.

(v)    “Payment Cap” shall mean the maximum amount of Covered Payments that may be paid without the Participant becoming
subject to the Excise Tax.

(w)    “PSUs” shall mean performance-based restricted share units.

(x)    “Permanent Disability” shall mean any medically determinable physical or mental impairment that can reasonably be expected
to result in death or that has lasted or can reasonably be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve (12) months and
that renders Participant unable to perform effectively all of the essential functions of Participant’s position, with or without reasonable
accommodation.

(y)    “Plan” shall mean this Executive Severance Plan.

(z)    “Prior Approval” shall mean the CEO’s and the GC’s written approval, which shall not be denied unreasonably, that Participants
are required to obtain before providing services to competing firms, suppliers, and/or customers.



(aa)    “Prior Confirmation” shall mean the CEO’s and the GC’s written confirmation, which shall be made in good faith, that
Participants are required to obtain (before obtaining Prior Approval)
regarding whether a Participant’s potential employer is considered a competing firm, supplier or customer of the Company.

(bb)    “Qualifying Termination” shall mean (i) the termination of a Participant’s employment by the Company or an Affiliate without
Cause and not as a result of the Participant’s death or Permanent Disability, or (ii) a Participant’s termination of his or her employment
with the Company and its Affiliates for Good Reason.

(cc)    “RSUs” shall mean service-based restricted share units.

(dd)    “Target Annual Bonus” shall mean, with respect to any Participant, such Participant’s target annual bonus amount under the
Company’s annual incentive bonus plan for the fiscal year in which such Participant’s Qualifying Termination occurs (or if earlier, the
fiscal year in which such Participant’s Transition Period begins, if applicable), determined without regard to any reduction in such target
annual bonus amount that constitutes Good Reason for such Participant’s termination of employment pursuant to Section 9(s).

(ee)    “Transition Agreement” shall mean a Transition and Release Agreement in a form provided by the Company which Participants
other than the CEO are required to sign in order to receive benefits under this Plan in connection with a Qualifying Termination that
occurs outside the Change of Control Protection Period and in which such Participants agree to provide services during the Transition
Period, in each case in accordance with and subject to the terms thereof.

(ff)    “Transition Period” shall mean a period of 12 months (or such shorter or longer period as set forth in an applicable Transition
Agreement) following the transition commencement date specified in the Transition Agreement signed by a Participant other than the CEO
in connection with a Qualifying Termination that occurs outside the Change of Control Protection Period, during which such Participant
agrees to provide transition services to the Company in order to receive benefits under this Plan, in each case in accordance with and
subject to the terms of the Transition Agreement.



    

EXHIBIT 10.27                            

March 5, 2025

Ms. Revathi Advaithi

Dear Revathi:

Reference is made to the offer letter dated February 7, 2019 (the “Offer Letter”) between you and Flex Ltd. (the “Company”).

The Company maintains the Flex Ltd. Executive Severance Plan, and the Company has amended and restated the Flex Ltd. Executive
Severance Plan, effective March 5, 2025 (as amended and restated, the “Executive Severance Plan”), in order to, among other things,
provide for your participation in the Executive Severance Plan. The Company and you desire to amend the Offer Letter by this letter
amendment (“Amendment”) in order to reflect your participation in the Executive Severance Plan, effective as of the date of this
Amendment.

Amendment to Offer Letter:

The paragraph of the Offer Letter headed “Severance:” is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:

Severance:

You will be a participant in the Flex Ltd. Amended and Restated Executive Severance Plan, in accordance with the terms and
conditions thereof.

Except as expressly set forth in this Amendment, the Offer Letter remains in full force and effect according to its terms.

If you agree with the terms of this Amendment, please sign below and return to me.

Sincerely,

FLEX

/s/ Xavier Boza

Xavier Boza
Chief Human Resources Officer

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

/s/ Revathi Advaithi           March 5, 2025
Revathi Advaithi                Date
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SUBSIDIARIES OF FLEX LTD.

Name of Subsidiary Country/State of
Incorporation/Organization

(CTS) Crown Texas, LLC United States – Delaware
ACS Acquisitions Ireland Limited Ireland
ACS Acquisitions, Inc. United States – Delaware
Advance Mold & Manufacturing, Inc. United States – Connecticut
AGM Automotive Mexico, LLC United States – Delaware
AGM Automotive, LLC United States – Delaware
AGM Durmont Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Anord Control Systems (Holdings) Limited Ireland
Anord Mardix (Asia) Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Anord Mardix (Ireland) Limited Ireland
Anord Mardix (UK) Limited United Kingdom
Anord Mardix (USA) Inc. United States – Virginia
Anord Mardix Acquisitions Limited United Kingdom
Anord Mardix Critical Power Systems Limited United Kingdom
Anord Mardix Databar Busway Limited United Kingdom
Anord Mardix GmbH Germany
Anord Mardix IBAR (EMEA) Limited United Kingdom
Anord Mardix Spain, S.L.U. Spain
Anord Mardix US Acquisitions, Inc. United States – Delaware
Avail Medical Products, Inc. United States – Delaware
Availmed, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Commercial Company in the form of a limited liability company factory “Flextronics LLC” Ukraine
Connexion Innovation Systems, LLC United States – Delaware
Crown Technical Systems (Canada) ULC Canada
Crown Technical Systems, LLC United States – Delaware
Elementum Holding Ltd Cayman Islands
Esju Oy Finland
Envireverse Limited Ireland
Express Cargo Forwarding Limited United Kingdom
Farm Design, Inc. United States – New Hampshire
Finchley Trading Limited Hong Kong
FIT Instituto de Tecnologia da Amazônia Brazil
Flex Asia Investment Limited Mauritius
Flex Automotive GmbH Germany
Flex Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China
Flex Foundation United States – California
Flex Holdings Luxembourg S.a r.l. Luxembourg
Flex Intelligence Mannufacturing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China
Flex International s.r.o. Czech Republic
Flex IoT Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd China
Flex Lighting Solutions, Inc. United States – Delaware
Flex Precision Plastics Solutions (Switzerland) AG Switzerland
Flex Solutions Poland sp. z o. o. Poland
Flex Technology (Changsa) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics (Israel) Ltd. Israel



Name of Subsidiary Country/State of
Incorporation/Organization

Flextronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
Flextronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd China
Flextronics Aerospace & Defense Services Inc United States – Colorado
Flextronics America, LLC United States – Delaware
Flextronics AP, LLC United States – Colorado
Flextronics Automotive (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Automotive de Juarez, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Automotive Sales and Marketing, Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Automotive USA (Texas), LLC United States – Texas
Flextronics Automotive USA Design and Development Corporation Philippines
Flextronics Automotive USA Manufacturing Co. United States – Ohio
Flextronics Automotive USA, Inc. United States – Michigan
Flextronics Beerse N.V. Belgium
Flextronics Bermuda Ltd. Bermuda
Flextronics Canada Design Services, Inc. Canada
Flextronics Cayman (SLR) Limited Cayman Islands
Flextronics Computing (Suzhou) Co., Ltd China
Flextronics Computing Mauritius Limited Mauritius
Flextronics Corporation United States – Delaware
Flextronics da Amazônia Ltda. Brazil
Flextronics de Costa Rica, S.A. Costa Rica
Flextronics Design S.r.l. Italy
Flextronics Display Cayman Ltd. Cayman Islands
Flextronics Electronics (Mauritius) Limited Mauritius
Flextronics Electronics Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Electronics Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Enclosure (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd China
Flextronics Enclosure Zhuhai (Mauritius) Co., Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Enclosures (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
Flextronics Europe Limited United Kingdom
Flextronics Funding LLC United States – Delaware
Flextronics Global Enclosures (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics Global Enclosures Shanghai (Mauritius) Co., Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics Global Holdings II Ltd. Cayman Islands
Flextronics Global Holdings L.P. Cayman Islands
Flextronics Global Procurement Ltd. Bermuda
Flextronics Global Services (Manchester) Limited United Kingdom
Flextronics Global Services Canada Inc. | Services Globaux Flextronics Canada Inc. Canada
Flextronics Global Services Mex, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Guadalajara Group, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Holding (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics Holding Finland Oy Finland
Flextronics Holding France SAS France
Flextronics Holding GmbH Austria
Flextronics Holding USA, Inc. United States – Delaware
Flextronics Ind. (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia



Name of Subsidiary Country/State of
Incorporation/Organization

Flextronics Industrial (Shenzhen) Co Ltd China
Flextronics Industrial (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Industrial Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Industrial Shenzhen (Mauritius) Co Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Industries Singapore Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics Information Technology (Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd China
Flextronics Information Technology Shen Zhen (Mauritius) Co., Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Instituto de Tecnologia – FIT Brazil
Flextronics Integrated Services Mex, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics International (Singapore Group) Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics International (Taiwan) Ltd. Taiwan
Flextronics International Asia-Pacific Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics International Componentes Ltda. Brazil
Flextronics International da Amazônia Ltda. Brazil
Flextronics International Europe B.V. Netherlands
Flextronics International Gesellschaft m.b.H. Austria
Flextronics International Holding LLC United States – Delaware
Flextronics International Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics International Ireland Limited Ireland
Flextronics International Japan Co., Ltd Japan
Flextronics International Lojıstık Hızmetler Tıcaret Lımıted Şırketı Turkey
Flextronics International Management Services Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics International N.V. Curacao
Flextronics International Ostersund AB Sweden
Flextronics International Poland Sp. z o.o. Poland
Flextronics International Sweden AB Sweden
Flextronics International Tecnologia Ltda Brazil
Flextronics International Termelő és Szolgáltató Vámszabadterületi Korlátolt Felelősségű Társaság Hungary
Flextronics International USA, Inc. United States – California
Flextronics Investment Holding (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics Italy S.p.A. Italy
Flextronics Laval S.N.C. France
Flextronics Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
Flextronics Logistics B.V. Netherlands
Flextronics Logistics Poland Sp. z o.o. Poland
Flextronics Logistics USA, Inc. United States – California
Flextronics Manufacturing (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong
Flextronics Manufacturing (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics Manufacturing (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Manufacturing Aguascalientes, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Manufacturing Europe B.V. Netherlands
Flextronics Manufacturing Juarez, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Manufacturing Mex, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Manufacturing Zhuhai (Mauritius) Co., Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Marketing (L) Ltd. Federal Territory of Labuan



Name of Subsidiary Country/State of
Incorporation/Organization

Flextronics Mauritius Limited Mauritius
Flextronics Mechanicals Marketing (L) Ltd. Federal Territory of Labuan
Flextronics Mechanicals Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics Medical Device Manufacturing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Medical Molding (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Medical Sales and Marketing, Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics Mexico Holdings II LLC United States – Delaware
Flextronics ODM Luxembourg S.A. Luxembourg
Flextronics Ostersund AB Sweden
Flextronics Photonics PPT, Inc. United States – Oregon
Flextronics Plastic (Asia Pacific) Limited Hong Kong
Flextronics Plastic Technology (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Plastics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Flextronics Plastics Gushu (Mauritius) Co., Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics Plastics, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Power Systems (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. China
Flextronics Precision Metal (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
Flextronics Precision Plastics, Inc. United States – Delaware
Flextronics Puerto Rico Limited Cayman Islands
Flextronics R&D (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd China
Flextronics R&D Shenzhen (Mauritius) Co., Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics România S.R.L. Romania
Flextronics Sales & Marketing (A-P) Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Sales & Marketing North Asia (L) Ltd Federal Territory of Labuan
Flextronics Sales and Marketing Consumer Digital Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Sárvár Logistics Korlátolt Felelősségű Társaság Hungary
Flextronics Scotland Limited United Kingdom
Flextronics Shah Alam Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
Flextronics Shanghai (Mauritius) Co., Ltd. Mauritius
Flextronics Systems (Penang) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
Flextronics Technologies (India) Private Limited India
Flextronics Technologies Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Technologies San Luis, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Flextronics Technology (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
Flextronics Technology (Nanjing) Co., Ltd China
Flextronics Technology (Penang) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
Flextronics Technology (Shah Alam) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
Flextronics Technology (Zhuhai) Co. Ltd. China
Flextronics Technology Nanjing (Mauritius) Co., Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics Technology ShenZhen (Mauritius) Co., Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics Technology Wujiang (Mauritius) Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics Technology Zhuhai (Mauritius) Co., Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics Tecnologia Do Brasil Ltd. Cayman Islands
Flextronics Telecom Systems Ltd Mauritius
Flextronics UK Limited United Kingdom
Flextronics Verwaltungs GmbH Germany



Name of Subsidiary Country/State of
Incorporation/Organization

FreeFlow Technology Limited Ireland
I E C Holdings Limited Ireland
IDE8 Cayman Cayman Islands
IDE8 Mauritius Limited Mauritius
IDE8 Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China
International Manufacturing Synergies, Ltd. British Virgin Islands
Irish Express Cargo Limited Ireland
Irumold Servicios, S.L.U. Spain
Irumold, S.L.U. Spain
JETCOOL Technologies Inc. United States – Delaware
Kingram Mews Holdings Limited Ireland
Kunshan AGM Automotive Components Co., Ltd. China
Kunshan AGM Trading Company Ltd. China
Lab IX Cayman Islands
Lighting Acquisition LLC United States – Delaware
Limited Liability Company «Flex International UA» Ukraine
Mardix Holdings Ltd United Kingdom
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Asia B.V. Netherlands
MCi (Mirror Controls International) B.V. Netherlands
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Inc. United States – Delaware
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Ireland Limited Ireland
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Ireland Operations Limited Ireland
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Ltd. Republic of Korea
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Netherlands B.V. Netherlands
MCi Mirror Controls (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. China
MCi Mirror Controls International, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Multilayer Technology Geschäftsführungs GmbH Germany
Multilayer Technology GmbH & Co. KG Germany
Nanjing Flextronics Panda Mobile Terminals Co., Ltd China
Nextracker Chile SpA Chile
Pacific Device, Inc. United States – Delaware
Parque de Tecnologia Electronica, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Power Systems R&D (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Power Systems Technologies Ltd. Mauritius
Private Joint Stock Company “Flextronics Service UA” Ukraine
PT. Flextronics Technology Indonesia Indonesia
Sheldahl Flexible Technologies, Inc. United States – Delaware
Shiant Resource Service Co., Ltd China
Sønderborg Værktøjsfabrik A/S Denmark
Swedform Enclosure Systems AB Sweden
Vim Technologies Ltd Mauritius
Web Component Trading Unlimited Company Ireland
Z124 Cayman Islands



Advance Mold & Manufacturing, Inc. does business under the following names

Subsidiary   dba
Advance Mold & Manufacturing, Inc.    Vision Technical Molding, LLC
Advance Mold & Manufacturing, Inc. Vision Technical Molding

Crown Technical Systems group in United States does business under the following names

Subsidiary dba
(CTS) Crown Texas, LLC Crown Technical Systems
Crown Technical Systems, LLC Crown Technical Systems

Flextronics International Tecnologia Ltda. does business under the following names (“nome fantasia”)

Subsidiary   dba
Flextronics International Tecnologia Ltda.   Sinctronics

MCi (Mirror Controls International) group in Europe, Mexico and China does business under the following names

Subsidiary   dba
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Asia B.V.
MCi (Mirror Controls International) B.V.
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Ireland Limited
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Ireland Operations Limited
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Ltd.
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Netherlands B.V.
MCi (Mirror Controls International), S. de R.L. de C.V.
MCi Mirror Controls (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

 
 
 
MCi (Motion Controls International)
MCi (Motion Controls International) Netherlands

MCi (Mirror Controls International) Inc. in U.S.A.does business under the following names

Subsidiary   dba
MCi (Mirror Controls International) Inc.   MCi (Motion Controls International)

Pacific Device, Inc. does business under the following names

Subsidiary   dba
Pacific Device, Inc.    Avail Medical Products, Inc.

Sheldahl Flexible Technologies, Inc. does business under the following names

Subsidiary   dba
Sheldahl Flexible Technologies, Inc.   Sheldahl
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EXHIBIT 23.01

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-281573 on Form S-3ASR and Registration Statement Nos. 333-273790 and
333-248470, on Form S-8 of our reports dated May 21, 2025 relating to the consolidated financial statements of Flex Ltd. and subsidiaries (the "Company")
and the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Flex Ltd. for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Jose, California
May 21, 2025
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EXHIBIT 31.01

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Revathi Advaithi, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Flex Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 21, 2025
/s/ REVATHI ADVAITHI
Revathi Advaithi
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.02

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kevin Krumm, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Flex Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 21, 2025
/s/ KEVIN KRUMM
Kevin Krumm
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.01

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

We, Revathi Advaithi and Kevin Krumm, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively, of Flex Ltd. (the “Company”), hereby
certify, to the best of our knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

• the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the "Report"), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

• the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date: May 21, 2025 /s/ REVATHI ADVAITHI

Revathi Advaithi
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 21, 2025 /s/ KEVIN KRUMM
Kevin Krumm
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Flex Ltd. and will be retained by it and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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